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an Yue Technology Holdings Limited
(the “Company”) was listed on The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited in
1997. The Company and its subsidiaries’
(collectively called the “Group” or “Man Yue Tech”)
core businesses are the manufacture and sale of high
technology electronic components, including Aluminum
Electrolytic Capacitors (“E-Caps”), Conductive Polymer
Aluminum Solid Capacitors (“Polymer Caps”) and other
innovative electronic components.

The Group offers a full range of E-Caps products which
satisfy the needs of global customers, consisting
mainly of the world’s leading information technology,
telecommunications, electrical and electronic brands.
In 2006, the Group launched an innovative electronic
component known as the Polymer Caps, and has advanced
to be a major global vendor. The Group continued its
pioneering course by unveiling a new type of capacitor
in 2009 - Electric Double Layer Capacitors (“EDLC"),
which acts as an energy storage device in electrical or
electronic products.

Over the years, the Group has fostered creativity and
inventiveness among the well-trained and highly qualified
research and development (“R&D”) professionals who
have enabled the Group to develop new and ground-
breaking products.

As the key manufacturer of E-Caps and Polymer Caps, the
Group owns the renowned SAMXON® and X-CON® brands,
both are respected brands for their advanced technology
and superior quality, backed by the Group’s strong R&D
capabilities and established global network. Enhancing
their market attraction, all of the Group’s products
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comply with European Union’s Directives on Restriction of
the Use of the Certain Hazardous Substances in Electrical
and Electronic Equipment (“RoHS”) and environmental
protection requirements specific to different global
markets.

Man Yue Tech is headquartered in Hong Kong and
operates state-of-the-art E-Caps manufacturing facilities
in Dongguan, Wuxi and Jiangxi of the People’s Republic
of China (the “PRC”), with a total production capacity of
over 1 billion pieces per month. The Group owns three
aluminum foil factories located in Qingyuan, Urumgi and
Yaan of the PRC producing aluminum foil for its own
consumption. The Group has distribution offices located
in Hong Kong, the PRC and Taiwan, complemented by
worldwide distribution channels.

Man Yue Tech is fully committed to environmental
sustainability for both products and operations. All
products are halogen free and complied with RoHS. In
addition, all production facilities of the Group conform
to local environmental regulations and obtained relevant
certification where appropriate. Not content to passively
observe regulations, the Group is actively pursuing
opportunities to directly contribute to environmental
protection. The Group has introduced and continued to
develop solutions for enhancing energy efficiency, such as
capacitors found in LED lamps and high-efficiency lighting
and new storage devices for use in environmentally
friendly products. The Group remains steadfast in its
support of environmental protection, consistent with its
commitment to be a good corporate citizen.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Kee Chor Lin (Chairman)

Chan Yu Ching, Eugene (Managing Director)

Chan Tat Cheong, Alan (appointed on 3 October 2016)
Wong Ching Ming, Stanley

Yeung Yuk Lun (resigned on 12 April 2016)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr Li Sau Hung, Eddy, B.B.S., J.P.

Lo Kwok Kwei, David

Mar, Selwyn

AUDIT COMMITTEE
Mar, Selwyn (Chairman)

Dr Li Sau Hung, Eddy, B.B.S., L.P.
Lo Kwok Kwei, David

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE
Lo Kwok Kwei, David (Chairman)

Kee Chor Lin

Dr Li Sau Hung, Eddy, B.B.S., J.P.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Dr Li Sau Hung, Eddy, B.B.S., J.P. (Chairman)
Kee Chor Lin

Chan Yu Ching, Eugene

Lo Kwok Kwei, David

Mar, Selwyn

COMPANY SECRETARY
Ng Sui Yin (appointed on 12 April 2016)
Yeung Yuk Lun (resigned on 12 April 2016)

AUDITOR
KPMG

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

The Hongkong and Shanghai Banking Corporation Limited

China CITIC Bank International Limited
Bank of Tokyo-Mitsubishi UFJ, Ltd.
DBS Bank (Hong Kong) Limited

58
HITES

RRE (TE)
[RFE (EFAMEHHE)

REE M-T—R"FTA=ZREZME)

T HEEA

BEE (R T R"FOA+-BEHE)

BIFHNITES
FHREML - WEHLEE
RHE

EAE

EZLREE

FRE (ZE)
SHREML - FEAES
BEE

GMESS
BRE (£E)

s

FHEEL  WEHEE

RBRLEE
SHEML  HEHEE
R

EE

RE&

FRE

NAME

P KPS

P AP

P KPS

P KL ()

RinB (RZE—R"EFEATHEZE)
=

BB (R=Z

2B
£ EFA G AFHA

T BAERIRTT

NENA+ ZHEHE)

BE LBESRITARLQF

RERT (BIR) ARAF
—ZERFRUFERTTAR AR
ERIRT (BB) BRAF]



—
—

- ey
4--*,

Annual Report 12016 FH] :

Corporate Information
NEIER

REGISTERED OFFICE

Clarendon House, 2 Church Street
Hamilton HM 11, Bermuda

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS
16/F., Yiko Industrial Building
10 Ka Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong

PRINCIPAL SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

MUFG Fund Services (Bermuda) Limited

The Belvedere Building

69 Pitts Bay Road

Pembroke HMO8 Bermuda

BRANCH SHARE REGISTRAR
AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Tricor Tengis Limited
Level 22, Hopewell Centre
183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong

CORPORATE WEBSITE

www.manyue.com

INVESTOR RELATIONS CONTACT

E-mail: ir@manyue.com

STOCK CODE
00894
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Financial Highlights
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% changes
increase/
(decrease)
2016 2015 BAt#
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER BET-A=t—-HLEE - Sy —Z-1F #/0/)
HK$'000 HK$'000 %
Operating Results RExE FTiERT TER BAt
Revenue N 987,027 974,421 1.29
Gross profit £ 163,552 175,040 (6.56)

EBITDA ReFMEXML - BB HER
B HAI R A ([EBITDA]) 101,368 83,942 20.76
Net loss BRTE (13,102) (45,838) (71.42)
HK cents HK cents %
Per Share Data sRER gl Al BAL
Loss per share - basic FRERE - EX (3.13) (9.43) (66.81)
Net assets per share BREESE 276.01 293.18 (5.86)
HK$’000 HK$ 000 %
Financial Position AR TAET FET BNl
Total assets BEAE 2,475,167 2,553,022 (3.05)
Net assets BETHE 1,312,575 1,396,260 (5.99)
% % %
Financial Ratios i di Bl BO BO
Gross profit margin EH= 16.6 18.0 (7.78)
EBITDA to Revenue EBITDAERA B A 1L 10.3 8.6 19.77
Net gearing ratio FRELE 41.8 32.6 28.22
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For the year ended 31 December %&%ﬁ ﬁﬁu@*”
HE+-_A=+T—"HILHFE For the year ended 31 December

HK$' million & &#7T HE+T-_A=T—RHILFE

HK$' million B & T

226.4
1,322.2 210.2
1,187.0

1,391.7

175.1

974.4 987.0

101.4

83.9

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
GROSS PROFIT I)LET A§SETS \IﬂER SHARE
EH BREESE
For the year ended 31 December As at 31 December
HE+-—A=+—HILFE R+=ZA=+—H
HK$ million B &B 7T HK$ cents 71l

329.7 212 3274

293.2

2012 2013 2014 2015 2016 2012 2013 2014 2015 2016
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Chairman’s Statement
FEHE

2016 was a year full of unpredictable events, in particular,
the global political unstableness which greatly influenced the
foreign exchange market and consumer sentiment. Against the
backdrop of sluggish demand for electronic products and the
appreciation of Japanese Yen, the overall operating environment
continued to be challenging for the Group. However, the Group
has demonstrated its resilience under such difficult conditions
and expanded its business scale and revenue sources during the

Year.

For the financial year ended 31 December 2016, the Group’s
sales performance improved in terms of sales volume, which was
mainly attributable to its effort in the expansion of markets in
the Mainland China, despite that the financial impact had been
largely offset by the depreciation of Renminbi during the Year.
In addition, the Group had completed the increase of its equity
shareholding in an associated company in Taiwan, Luminous
Town Electric Co., Ltd. which is a well-established brand in
the trading and manufacture of electrolytic capacitors on 21
June 2016. Since then, Luminous Town became a subsidiary

of the Group and has made a positive sales contribution to
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Chairman’s Statement
FERE

the Group. As a result, the Group’s revenue had recorded
a modest growth of 1.3% to HK$987,027,000 for the Year.
The Group had continued to adhere to its prudent financial
management principles by streamlining its production processes
and consolidating its resources, and hence, EBITDA had been
improved and loss attributable to equity shareholders of the
Company significantly narrowed down to HK$14,905,000 as
compared with the previous year.

As one of the key suppliers of E-Caps and Polymer Caps, the
Group has been committed to provide pioneered and high quality
products to its leading global clientele in various electronic
products’ industries. Our flagship brands - SAMXON® and X-CON®
still maintain a very strong market position in the niche segment.
In the past few years, the Group has strategically focused
on developing multi-product platform with high-technology
products. During the Year, a sound progress has been made
in the business development of MLPC which would be widely
used in central processing unit related products such as servers
and laptops. This affirms the Group’s right direction in multi-
dimensional sales development aiming at achieving sales growth
in the forthcoming years.

Moreover, the PRC government continued its commitment in
environmental protection and stepped up its efforts in successive
implementation of related policies and administrative instructions
in 2016. The Group believes that the development of new energy
related industries will continue to be an inevitable trend in the
Mainland China. As a result, the Group will endeavor to develop
its ESS products with an aim of providing a total solution for
effective energy saving and storage applications in the new
energy saving-related industries.

I would like to take this opportunity to thank all our shareholders,
business partners, bankers, customers for their continuing
support to the Group. In addition, | would like to thank my
fellow directors, the management team and our staff for their
dedication and commitment in contributing to the success of the
Group.

Kee Chor Lin
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 March 2017
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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RESULTS HIGHLIGHT
+  Revenue increased slightly by 1.3% to HK$987,027,000
(2015: HK$974,421,000)

«  Gross profit margin was 16.6% (2015: 18.0%)

«  EBITDA increased by 20.8% to HK$101,368,000, representing
an EBITDA margin of 10.3% (2015: 8.6%)

«  Loss for the Year was significantly reduced to HK$13,102,000
(2015: loss of HK$45,838,000)

FINANCIAL REVIEW

The sales revenue of the Group for the Year increased to
HK$987,027,000 (2015: HK$974,421,000), representing an
increase of 1.3%, as compared with that of last year. It was
mainly attributable to the Group’s acquisition of Luminous Town
on 21 June 2016 as well as its effort in the expansion of markets
in the Mainland China leading to an overall increase in sales
volume, albeit the financial impact had been largely offset by the
depreciation of Renminbi during the Year.

Gross profit for the Year amounted to HK$163,552,000 (2015:
HK$175,040,000), representing a drop of 6.6%, as compared
with that of last year. It was mainly due to the appreciation of
Japanese Yen causing a surge in the Group’s raw material costs
during the Year.

During the Year, the Group had recognised a gain arising from
changes in the fair values of interest rate swaps of HK$2,198,000
(2015: loss of HK$4,647,000). The interest rate swaps concerned
referred to certain long term interest rate swap contracts
entered into by the Group in 2009 and 2010 with the intention to
hedge against the Group’s future borrowing costs. The Group had
to account for the changes in the fair values of these financial
instruments in the consolidated income statement at the year
end. This item did not affect the cash flow of the Group.

The Group’s EBITDA increased by 20.8% to HK$101,368,000
(2015: HK$83,942,000), representing an EBITDA margin of 10.3%
(2015: 8.6%).

Loss for the Year was significantly reduced to HK$13,102,000
(2015: loss of HK$45,838,000). The Board has resolved not to
recommend final dividend for the Year (2015: nil).
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Management Discussion And Analysis
ERENwmEDHT

BUSINESS REVIEW

Market overview

During the Year, the global demand for electronic products
remained weak resulting from the slowdown in the global
and China economy and thus, the business environment for
capacitors continued to be challenging. Nevertheless, leveraging
on its long-term relationship with customers as well as its high
quality products, the Group continues to be one of the key global
suppliers in the electronic components’ segment. As essential
components for electronic products, the Group’s major products,
E-Caps and Polymer Caps are widely used in different electronic
products industries engaging in the consumer electronic and
industrial sectors as well as home appliances, lightings and
energy saving applications. Due to the competitive advantages of
its high quality products, the Group is able to maintain its market
share from the strategy of global supply chain diversification and
product-quality focus of its customers.

In addition to committing in developing and improving its
existing core products, the Group has a long term vision in terms
of business development and investment. Development on the
use of new energy remains a top agenda item for discussion in
the international environment and climate summit. Amongst
the world’s leaders, the PRC government has a strong desire to
play a major role in curbing greenhouse gas emissions and has
devoted in implementing various environmental policies and
measures and providing enormous support to take forward the
development of a cleaner and greener environment. In the 13th
5-Year Plan, the PRC government has a target to further boost
the investment in new energy industries and related applications.
Being one of the very few global suppliers with the ability to
produce ESS products comprising EDLC and EDLC modules with
a total solution for energy-saving and storage applications, the
Group is well-positioned to capture the business opportunities in
this market sector.

Operations review

The Group has successfully established itself as a major global
supplier of several critical electronic components, namely E-Caps,
Polymer Caps, EDLC, EDLC Modules, Power Film Capacitors and
MLPC over the years. Amid the stagnant economy around the
globe, the Group’s sales performance had been improved in
terms of sales volume during the Year due to its effort in the
expansion of markets in the Mainland China; however its financial
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Management Discussion And Analysis
BEENmAINT

impact was largely offset by the depreciation of Renminbi in the
year under review. In order to further enlarge its business scope
and global footprint, in June 2016, the Group had successfully
completed an equity stake increase in Luminous Town, a
company incorporated in Taiwan, in which its principal businesses
are the trading and manufacture of electrolytic capacitors, from
Yageo Corporation at a consideration of TWD105,227,360 for
the benefit of extending the Group’s geographic market and
synergy to complement the existing business of the Group’s
capacitor segment. After the completion of acquisition on 21 June
2016, Luminous Town became a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Group and accounted for a larger sales contribution to
the Group during the Year. Furthermore, the Group had also
made an announcement on 29 September 2016 that it would
further acquire an additional 13.80% and 2.16% of the entire
issued share capital of Luminous Town from China Development
Industrial Bank Corp., and CDIB Capital Management Corporation
at a consideration of TWD92,217,490 and TWD14,428,830
respectively. The acquisitions would allow the Group to gain
further control of Luminous Town so as to generate a greater
synergy effect within the Group.
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Management Discussion And Analysis
ERENwmEDHT

Capturing the anticipated growth prospect of the new energy
related industries in the global and the PRC markets, the
Group has been committed in the R&D of the ESS product
series, comprising EDLC and EDLC modules. The Group’s ESS
product series can provide a total solution for industrial power
management and energy-storage applications, effectively
saving energy and lowering carbon emission for engine-
operated machines. The Group is currently working diligently
on the specifications for each customer and preparing itself
for authentication with potential customers. Given that the
favourabhle governmental policies which have been gradually
in place in the PRC, the Group is well-positioned to capture the
business opportunities arising from this emerging market sector.

With an aim to maintain and increase its market share and
strengthen its profitability, the Group will continue to streamline
its production process in order to enhance operating efficiency,
as well as to take initiatives to optimise its sales and marketing
strategies by focusing on the niche customer groups and
reducing the supply of low-margin products. In addition, the
Group will continuously strive to provide extra values for its
customers through innovative and high-quality products with its
bolstering R&D capabilities so as to maintain its leading market
position and long-term relationship with customers.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

As at 31 December 2016, the Group cash and cash equivalents
of HK$283,116,000 (31 December 2015: HK$347,797,000) and
time deposits over three months of HK$7,775,000 (31 December
2015: HK$11,936,000), most of which were either denominated
in United States dollars, Renminbi or Hong Kong dollars. Total
outstanding bank borrowings amounted to HK$809,748,000 (31
December 2015: HK$813,575,000) which comprised mainly bank
loans and trade finance facilities. The bank borrowings with
maturities falling due within one year and in the second to the
fifth year amounted to HK$559,815,000 and HK$249,933,000
respectively (31 December 2015: HK$505,477,000 and
HK$308,098,000 respectively).

Total interest-bearing borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2016 were all bank loans and trade finance facilities amounted
to HK$809,748,000 (31 December 2015: HK$813,575,000). All
of these borrowings were either denominated in United States
dollars or Hong Kong dollars to which the interest rates applied
were primarily subject to floating interest rate.

As at 31 December 2016, the net gearing ratio (a ratio of the sum
of total bank borrowings less cash and cash equivalents and time
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Management Discussion And Analysis
ERENwRE DT

deposits over three months then divided by total equity) of the
Group was 41.8% (31 December 2015: 32.6%).

As at 31 December 2016, the net current assets of the Group
were HK$480,048,000 (31 December 2015: HK$574,453,000),
which comprised of current assets of HK$1,345,713,000 (31
December 2015: HK$1,365,249,000) and current liabilities
of HK$865,665,000 (31 December 2015: HK$790,796,000),
representing a current ratio of 1.55 (31 December 2015: 1.73).

The Group’s financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars. However, most of the Group’s transactions were
conducted in Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United States dollars
and Japanese Yen. The Group is aware of the potential foreign
exchange currency risk that may arise from the fluctuation of
exchange rates between Hong Kong dollars, Renminbi, United
States dollars and Japanese Yen. In order to mitigate these risks,
the Group had entered into foreign currency forward contracts to
manage its foreign currency exposure.
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OUTLOOK AND PROSPECTS

The unprecedented political situation in 2016 has brought
numerous uncertainties to the business environment in 2017. The
Group believes that the unpredictable economic volatility may
persist in the near term and there will be several key challenges
ahead such as continuous sluggish demand due to weak
consumer sentiment and inactive business investment, intense
international competition resulting from currency fluctuations,
as well as potential trade wars amongst countries. To cope with
these uncertainties, the Group will work diligently and implement
the two-pronged approach - tightening cost control and
upholding its product quality and R&D capabhilities. Together with
the contribution from the newly acquired subsidiary in Taiwan,
the Group is confident that it will stand still in the market and be
resilient to manage the market changes.

In spite of the difficult macro-economic environment, the
global trend of new energy development is irresistible. The PRC
government has demonstrated its determination by boosting
its investment and solid supportive policies in the new energy
related businesses in the 13th 5-Year Plan. While the policies
are progressively in place across the nation, the Group has
its existing well-established and unique ESS product series
platform readily available to capture these enormous market
opportunities. The Group is cautiously optimistic that the ESS
product series will be its next sales growth driver in the very
near future.

EMPLOYMENT AND REMUNERATION POLICY
As at 31 December 2016, the Group had employed 62 staff in
Hong Kong (31 December 2015: 70) and employed a total work
force of 2,574 (31 December 2015: 2,720) inclusive of all its
staff in the PRC and overseas offices. The Group’s remuneration
policy is built on the principle of equitability with incentive-
based, motivating, performance oriented and market-competitive
remuneration packages for its employees. Remuneration
packages are reviewed on a regular basis. Apart from salary,
other staff benefits include provident fund contributions, medical
insurance coverage and performance-based bonuses.
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Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management
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EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Kee Chor Lin (Mrs Chan), aged 68, is the co-founder of the Group.
She was appointed as the Chairman and an Executive Director of
the Company in October 2008. Mrs Chan is the leader of the Group
for corporate development, overall planning, strategies and policies
making. She is at present a director of certain major operating
subsidiaries of the Group and also a member of the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee of the Company. Mrs
Chan is one of the well-known industrialists in Hong Kong and
possesses over 30 years of experience in the business of electronic
components. She is the mother of Mr Chan Yu Ching, Eugene, the
Managing Director and an Executive Director of the Company and
Ms Chan Lok Yan, Lorraine, a member of the senior management
of the Company.

Chan Yu Ching, Eugene, aged 41, joined the Group in 1998. He was
appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in December
2007 and the Managing Director of the Company in October 2008.
Mr Chan is responsible for overseeing the business development,
policies making and implementation of the Group. He is also a
director of certain major operating subsidiaries of the Group
and a member of the Nomination Committee of the Company.
Mr Chan holds a Bachelor’s degree in Applied Science (majored
in Electronic and Electrical Engineering) from the University of
British Columbia in Canada. He has over 19 years of experience in
the industry of electronic components and has been awarded the
Young Industrialist Awards of Hong Kong in 2008. Mr Chan is the
son of Mrs Chan, the Chairman and an Executive Director of the
Company and the brother of Ms Chan Lok Yan, Lorraine, a member
of the senior management of the Company.

Chan Tat Cheong, Alan, aged 56, joined the Group in May 2016
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
October 2016. He is also the Finance Director of the Group. Mr
Chan is primarily responsible for overseeing the Group’s business
development, finance and accounting, merger and acquisition,
and investor relations. He has over 30 years of experience in the
fields of accounting, auditing and financial management. Mr Chan
holds a Bachelor’s degree in accounting and financial analysis from
the University of Newcastle Upon Tyne, the United Kingdom. He
is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants, a member of the American Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and also a member of the Chartered Professional
Accountants of Canada. Prior to joining the Group, Mr Chan
was the executive director and chief financial officer of Ka Shui
International Holdings Limited.
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Wong Ching Ming, Stanley, aged 59, joined the Group in 2003
and was appointed as an Executive Director of the Company in
January 2011. Mr Wong is also the Business Development Director
of the Group. He is now primarily responsible for managing the
global sales, marketing strategies and operations. Mr Wong has
over 26 years of experience in sales and marketing fields and had
held a senior management position in an internationally well-known
information technology company. He holds a Master of Science
degree and a Bachelor of Science (Aeronautical Engineering)
degree from the University of London’s Imperial College of Science.
Mr Wong is also a director of certain subsidiaries of the Group.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr Li Sau Hung, Eddy, B.B.S., J.P, aged 62, is an Independent Non-
executive Director, the chairman of the Nomination Committee,
a member of the Audit Committee and the Remuneration
Committee of the Company. He has over 30 years of experience
in the manufacturing industry. Dr Li is @ member of the National
Committee of Chinese People’s Political Consultative Conference,
the president of Hong Kong Economic & Trade Association Ltd
and the president of The Chinese Manufactures’ Association of
Hong Kong. He holds a Ph.D. degree in Economics and a Master’s
degree in Business Administration. Dr Li was awarded The Ten
Outstanding Young Persons in 1991 and the Young Industrialists of
Hong Kong in 1993. He is currently an independent non-executive
director and a member of the audit committee of each of Oriental
Watch Holdings Limited (“Oriental Watch”) and Midas International
Holdings Limited (“Midas”). Dr Eddy Li is also a member of the
remuneration committee of Oriental Watch and a member of the
nomination committee of Midas.

Lo Kwok Kwei, David, aged 57, is an Independent Non-executive
Director, the chairman of the Remuneration Committee, a
member of the Audit Committee and the Nomination Committee
of the Company. Mr Lo holds the degrees of Bachelor of Laws and
Bachelor of Jurisprudence from the University of New South Wales,
Australia. He was admitted as a solicitor of the Supreme Court of
New South Wales, Australia in 1984. Mr Lo has been a member of
The Law Society of Hong Kong since 1987. He has been practising
as a solicitor in Hong Kong for over 28 years and is a partner in
a law firm in Hong Kong. Mr Lo is currently an independent non-
executive director of eSun Holdings Limited. He retired from the
office of an independent non-executive director of ENM Holdings
Limited in June 2016.
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Mar, Selwyn, aged 81, is an Independent Non-executive Director,
the chairman of the Audit Committee and a member of the
Nomination Committee of the Company. He graduated from
the London School of Economics, University of London. He is a
fellow member of the Institute of Chartered Accountants of the
United Kingdom and the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants. Mr Mar has been active in commercial and industrial
undertakings over the past 30 years. He is currently a partner of
Nexia Charles Mar Fan & Co. and a director of Nexia Charles Mar
Fan Limited. Mr Mar is an independent non-executive director,
the chairman of audit committee and a member of nomination
committee of each of China Everbright International Limited
(“China Everbright”), Minmetals Land Limited (“Minmetals Land”)
and PanAsialum Holdings Company Limited (“PanAsialum”). And
he is also a member of the remuneration committee of each of
China Everbright, Minmetals Land and PanAsialum, a member of
risk management committee of China Everbright and a member
of independent committee of PanAsialum. Mr Mar was formerly
an independent non-executive director and the chairman of
audit committee of China Kingstone Mining Holdings Limited
until December 2015. He was also an independent non-executive
director and the chairman of the audit committee of Standard
Bank Asia Limited. In respect of public services, Mr Mar was the
president of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(formerly known as the “Hong Kong Society of Accountants”) in
1991, a member of the Appeals Panel of the Securities and Futures
Commission and a member of Board of Governors of the Chinese
International School. He is at present an Honorary Fellow and
Honorary Court Member of the Lingnan University.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Chan Lok Yan, Lorraine, aged 39, is the Business Control
Director of the Group. Ms Chan joined the Group in 2001 and
is actively involving in the setting of the Group’s business
strategies, reengineering the Group’s business processes and
the establishment of business control systems. She has extensive
experience in marketing, business operations and information
systems management. Ms Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts degree
from the University of Toronto, Canada. She is the daughter of Mrs
Chan and the sister of Mr Chan Yu Ching, Eugene.
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Hsu Dau Shin, aged 61, is the General Manager of the Group’s
manufacturing facility in Dongguan. Mr Hsu joined the Group in
2014. He is responsible for the management and operation of
the manufacturing facility of the Group in Dongguan. Prior to
joining the Group, Mr Hsu was the chief executive officer of a well
known Taiwan electronic company and led it to be listed on the
Taiwan Stock Exchange. He holds a Bachelor’s degree in Business
Administration from the University of New Hampshire, United
States.

Lui Man Lung, Johnny, aged 46, is the Assistant Business
Development Director of the Group. Mr Lui joined the Group in
1996 and is mainly responsible for the development of the Group’s
business in the Greater China and Taiwan region. He has over 22
years of experience in the sales and marketing fields. He holds a
Bachelor’s degree in Business Administration from the Lingnan
University, Hong Kong.

Ng Sui Yin, aged 48, is the Company Secretary of the Company
and the Financial Controller of the Group. Mr Ng joined the Group
in 2015 and is responsible for managing the Company’s finance,
internal control and management, and regulatory compliance. Prior
to joining the Group, Mr Ng had held senior positions in different
companies in Hong Kong. He has over 20 years of experience in
the areas of finance, audit, tax, treasury management, business
development and bankruptcy. Mr Ng is currently an independent
non-executive director, the chairman of the audit committee, a
member of the remuneration committee and the risk management
committee of Q Technology (Group) Company Limited. He is a
member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
and the Taxation Institute of Hong Kong. Mr Ng holds honours
diploma in accounting from the Hong Kong Shue Yan University
(formerly known as Hong Kong Shue Yan College).

Pan Su Qing, aged 55, is the Vice Chief Engineer of the Group’s
Research & Development Department. Ms Pan joined the Group
in 1996. She is responsible for product development, product
design, technical support and product cost management of the
Group. Prior to joining the Group, Ms Pan had worked in the
research & development department of a well known state-
owned National 4321 Factory and engaged in the development
of new aluminum electrolytic capacitor products for commercial
customers and military uses. She graduated from the Nan Chang
Radio Technological School, majored in electronics component and
material in 1983.
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Peng Shu Hong, aged 42, is the General Manager of the Group’s
aluminum foil manufacturing facility. Mr Peng joined the Group in
1997 with the responsibility of managing the production, quality
control and research & development. He has over 17 years of
experience in operation management field.

Wai Ching Han, Doris, aged 57, is the Operation Director of
the Group. Ms Wai joined the Group in 2001. She is responsible
for the Group’s human resources strategy and administration
management. Ms Wai had worked in several global corporations
and has over 24 years of experience in human resources and
administration management fields. She holds a Bachelor’s degree
in Business Administration (Human Resources Management) from
the RMIT University of Australia. Ms Wai is a professional member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Human Resource Management.

Wan Wah, aged 46, is the Assistant Business Development Director
of the Group. Ms Wan rendered her services from 1994 to 2013
and re-joined the Group in 2015. She is mainly responsible for
the development of the Group’s business. Ms Wan has over 23
years of experience in the sales and marketing fields and has
successfully led sales teams in the development of new and
potential markets for the Group. She holds a Master’s degree in
Business Administration from the University of Sydney, Australia.
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present this Corporate
Governance Report for the year.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Group has complied with the applicable code provisions in the
Corporate Governance Code and Corporate Governance Report
as set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The Company
has adopted the code provisions as its own code of corporate
governance practices with the exception of the following deviation:

Pursuant to Code Provision A.4.1, non-executive directors and
independent non-executive directors should be appointed for
a specific term. Currently, all the Independent Non-executive
Directors of the Company are not appointed for a specific term but
are subject to retirement by rotation at the annual general meeting
under Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws.

Save as disclosed above, the Company considers that sufficient
measures had been taken to ensure that corporate governance
practices of the Company were in line with the code provisions
for the Year.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE

The Group has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules to govern securities transactions by the
Directors of the Company. After having made specific enquiry by
the Company, all Directors confirmed that they had fully complied
with the Model Code throughout the Year.

THE BOARD

The Board currently comprises four Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. The number of independent
non-executive director represents more than one-third of the
Board which comply with the requirement under Rule 3.10A of
the Listing Rules. Their names are identified in various corporate
communications and in all announcements. The biographical
details and the relationship among the members of the Board are
disclosed under the section “Biographical Details of Directors and
Senior Management” on pages 14 to 18 of this Annual Report. Also,
the Board established three Board committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee.
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Board Composition

The Directors believe that the current composition of the Board
reflects the necessary balance of skills and experience appropriate
for the requirements of the business of the Group and the effective
leadership. The Independent Non-executive Directors of the
Company are experts in various business sectors. Under Rule 3.10
of the Listing Rules, at least one of the independent non-executive
directors has appropriate professional qualifications or accounting
or related financial management expertise. The Directors are of
the opinion that the present structure of the independent non-
executive directors of the Company complies with Rule 3.10 of
the Listing Rules and can ensure independence and objectivity
and provide checks and balances to safeguard the interests of the
shareholders and the Company.

Chairman and Managing Director

The Board believes that clear division of responsibilities between
the Chairman and the Managing Director is crucial to the effective
running of the Board and the development of the Group. Ms Kee
Chor Lin (“Mrs Chan”) and Mr Chan Yu Ching, Eugene are the
Chairman and the Managing Director of the Company respectively.
Their roles and duties are separate and distinct. Mrs Chan, as the
Chairman, takes up the challenging role of leading the Board to
develop and formulate strategic business development plans whilst
Mr Chan Yu Ching, Eugene, as the Managing Director, implements
the policies and is answerable to the Board for the operations and
management of the Group. Mrs Chan is the mother of Mr Chan Yu
Ching, Eugene.

Proceedings of Meetings

The Chairman is responsible for drawing up and approving the
agenda for each Board meeting in consultation with all Directors
and the Company Secretary.

Notice of at least 14 days is given of all regular Board meetings
and all Directors are invited to include matters in the agenda.
The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for each Board meeting. The agenda and accompanying
board papers are then sent in full to all Directors at least 3 days
in advance or within reasonable time prior to the relevant Board
meetings.
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The minutes of the Board meetings recorded in sufficient detail
the matters considered by the Board. The minutes of all Board
meetings and all other committee meetings are kept by the
Company Secretary and are available upon prior appointment for
inspection by any Directors, auditors or any relevant eligible parties
who are entitled to have access to such information.

Directors should declare any conflicts of interest at the Board
meetings and to abstain from voting and be excluded from counting
as quorum in that meeting whenever there have potential or actual
interests in the matters to be discussed and approved at that
meeting and the Board has determined to be material.

Induction and Training for Directors

Every newly appointed Director of the Company will receive a
comprehensive, formal and tailored induction on appointment
to ensure that he has a proper understanding of the Company’s
operations and business and is fully aware of his responsibilities
under statue and common law. The Company Secretary also
provides the latest development and changes in the Listing Rules
and other relevant legal and regulatory requirements to the Board
from time to time.

Besides, all Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their knowledge
and skills on the roles, functions and duties of a listed company
director. A specific in-house training seminar was organised
for Directors in March 2016 to update the Board the latest
development and knowledge on risk management. They also took
part in corporate visits and attended seminars organized by other
listed companies and professional organizations on relevant topics
to further enhance their capabilities to carry out director’s duties.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of
Directors

Appointment of Directors

Pursuant to Bye-law 86(1) of the Bye-laws of the Company, the
Directors shall be elected or appointed in the first place at
the statutory meeting of the members and thereafter at the
annual general meeting. However, the Board shall have the power
from time to time and at any time to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy on the Board or, subject to
authorisation by the members in general meeting, as an addition
to the existing Board subject to Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s
Bye-laws.
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Re-election of Directors

Bye-law 86(2) of the Company’s Bye-laws provides that any Director
so appointed by the Board shall hold office only until the next
following annual general meeting of the Company and shall then
be eligible for re-election at that meeting. Pursuant to Bye-law
87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, one-third of the Directors for the
time being shall retire from office by rotation, provided that every
Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years
at the annual general meeting.

Removal of Directors

Under Bye-law 86(4) of the Company’s Bye-laws, the members may,
at any general meeting and by an ordinary resolution, remove a
Director at any time before the expiration of his period of office
provided that the notice of any such meeting convened for the
purpose of removing a Director shall contain a statement of the
intention so to do and be served on such Director not less than 14
days before the meeting and at such meeting, such Director shall
be entitled to be heard on the motion for his removal.

BOARD DIVERSITY

The Group adopted the Board Diversity Policy on 1 August 2013.
A summary of this policy, together with the implementation are
disclosed as below.

Summary of Board Diversity Policy

The Board Diversity Policy aims to set out the approach to achieve
diversity on the Board of the Company. To achieve a sustainable
and balanced development, the Company encourages increasing
diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting
the attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable
development. In designing an appropriate composition of the
Board, the diversity of the Board has been considered from a
number of perspectives, including but not limited to gender, age,
educational background, professional experience, skills, knowledge
and length of service. All Board appointments will be based on
meritocracy and candidates will be considered against objective
criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the
Board.
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Implementation of Board Diversity Policy
The Nomination Committee reviews the composition of the Board

from diversified angles and summarised as follows: AN :
Number of Directors Board Dive£sity
EFAH EEES M
8
e B B . T Ent ] =
Female Hong Kong ntrepreneur
Independent N =
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5 | kT = = S -
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Designation Gender Age group Education Professional Length of
BT {31l Fie a7 background experience service
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—+ \ N ==
RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS EEZBE

The Directors are collectively responsible for promoting the success
of the Company by directing and supervising the Company’s affairs.

The Chairman is responsible for providing leadership to and the
management of the Board. Executive Directors take an active
interest in the affairs of the Company with a good understanding
of the business, and play important roles in the day-to-day
management of business of the Company, whilst Independent
Non-executive Directors participate in the Board meetings and
bring their independent views and judgments on various issues.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors has been
appointed with a formal letter of appointment setting out the
terms and conditions of their respective appointment. Prior to
their respective appointment, each of them has submitted a
written confirmation to the Company and the Stock Exchange
confirming their independence and has undertaken to inform the
Company and the Stock Exchange as soon as practicable if there
is any subsequent change of circumstances which may affect their
independence.
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Independent Non-executive Directors provide the Group with a wide
range of skills, expertise and varied backgrounds and qualifications
through their regular attendance at various committee meetings
and to provide operations on the affairs of the Company. They bring
independent opinion and judgment on the strategy and policies
to ensure that the interests of all shareholders are taken into
account. The Company reviews annually and obtains confirmation
of independence from each of them during their respective terms
of appointment. During the Year, the Company received written
confirmation from each of the Independent Non-executive Directors
his independence with reference to Rule 3.13 of the regarding
Listing Rules. Based on the confirmations, the Company considers
that all of them are independent, in compliance with the Listing
Rules requirements.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

As mentioned above, the Company has made specific enquiry to all
Directors and all of them confirmed that they had fully complied
with the required standard as set out in the Model Code during
the Year.

Directors and Officers’ Indemnity

The Company continues to subscribe for an insurance policy to
indemnify the Directors and other officers from any losses, claims,
damages, liabilities and expenses, including without limitation, any
proceedings brought against them, arising from the performance of
his duty pursuant to his appointment under his respective service
agreement entered into with the Company. The current policy has
been renewed and shall be under regular review.

Corporate Governance Functions
The Board is responsible for performing the following corporate
governance duties:

1. develop and review the Company’s policies and practices
on corporate governance and to make appropriate

recommendations to the Board;

2. review and monitor the training and continuous professional
development of Directors and senior management;

3. review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on
compliance with legal and regulatory requirements;
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4. develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and
compliance manual (if any) applicable to employees and

Directors; and

5. review the Company’s compliance with the Model Code and
disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.

DELEGATION BY THE BOARD

While at all times the Board retains full responsibility for guiding
and monitoring the operations of the Group, the Board delegated
certain responsibilities to the senior management team of the
Company, including the day-to-day operations of the Group. Such
senior management team is accounted for their performance to
the Board.

During the Year, the Executive Directors frequently met and
discussed with the senior management team in order to maintain
an effective feedback system and enable the Group to react to
changes or problems effectively and efficiently. The Board reviews
its arrangement on delegation of responsibilities and authority
regularly to ensure that such delegations are appropriate in view
of the Company’s prevailing circumstances and that appropriate
reporting system is in place. Each Director is free to seek advice
from and has access to the Company’s senior management team
independently.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board currently has three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. All the committees are empowered by the Board
under their own terms of reference which have been posted on the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company and are available
for inspection by the shareholders of the Company upon request
made to the Company Secretary.

Audit Committee
The Audit Committee comprises three members. All of them are
Independent Non-executive Directors, namely:

Mr Mar, Selwyn (Chairman)
Dr Li Sau Hung, Eddy
Mr Lo Kwok Kwei, David
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The Board considers that each Audit Committee member has
extensive commercial experience and the Audit Committee has
a suitable mix of expertise in various businesses, financial and
legal sectors and that the composition and establishment of the
Committee complies with the requirements under Rule 3.21 of the
Listing Rules.

The Audit Committee is primarily responsible to assist the Board
in providing an independent view of the effectiveness of the
financial process and internal control system of the Group. It has
the responsibilities and powers set forth in the terms of reference.
The committee members shall meet at least twice every year to
consider the interim and final results prepared by the Board.

During the Year, the Audit Committee met five times, including
a meeting with external auditor for special audit planning. The
attendance records of Directors attending the Audit Committee
meetings are set out on pages 29 and 27 of this Annual Report.

The following is a summary of work performed by the Audit
Committee during the Year:

1. reviewed the financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2015 and for the interim period ended 30 June 2016

before submission to the Board for approval;

2. reviewed and made recommendations to the Board the
appointment of KPMG as the external auditor of the Company;

3. reviewed the external auditor’'s engagement letter and fee;
4. reviewed and made recommendations to the Board the
appointment of internal control consultant (“Internal Auditor”)

to perform internal audit and risk assessment for the Group;

5. reviewed the effectiveness of internal control and risk
management systems of the Group; and

6. reviewed the annual audit plan for 2017.
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The Audit Committee held an additional meeting with external
auditor for the special purpose of audit planning, which meeting
also welcomed the attendance of any Director who had either
expertise, or special interest, in accounting, financial and auditing
matters. The attendance records of Directors are as follows (other
than those shown separately, under the Attendance at Board
Meetings, Board Committee Meetings and Annual General Meeting):

ENRESCERAREREETHEREIMNEZH
AR TTRINE & ZARGHEANMBLESE -
B R AZBE BT RSB R AN Bl R
BB sEEHE - ARESZHFECE (RE
Feen EFRECCRMBRREBEFAE
hF RSB HINERIN) 0T

Audit Committee meeting
for 2017 audit planning
EREES

LEAE iE —E-LERBREEE
Executive Director HTES

Chan Tat Cheong, Alan PRizES v
Independent Non-executive Directors BYFHITES

Dr Li Sau Hung, Eddy EFEHL v
Lo Kwok Kwei, David #EHE v
Mar, Selwyn BiAE v

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee comprises three members, including
one Executive Director and two Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely:

Mr Lo Kwok Kwei, David (Chairman)
Ms Kee Chor Lin
Dr Li Sau Hung, Eddy

The Remuneration Committee is responsible for (i) determining
the specific remuneration packages of all Executive Directors
and senior management, including benefits in kind, pension
rights and compensation payments (including any compensation
payable for loss or termination of their office or appointment);
(il) making recommendations to the Board of the remuneration
of non-executive directors; and (iii) establishing a transparent
procedure for developing policy on such remuneration. The
Board consults the chairman of the Remuneration Committee and
provides sufficient resources to enable it to discharge its duties.
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During the Year, the Remuneration Committee met twice and
the attendance records of Directors attending the Remuneration
Committee meetings are set out on page 29 of this Annual
Report. The following is a summary of work performed by the
Remuneration Committee during the Year:

1. reviewed and approved the remuneration packages of the
Directors and senior management; and

2. recommended the Board the director’s fee for the newly
appointed Executive Director.

The following table lists out in bands the remuneration of Executive
Directors and senior management whose names appear in the
section “Biographical Details of Directors and Senior Management”
for the Year:

RAFEEAN  FHEZESERTRMASE
ESHETHNZEEER 2 BHNAFR
FH - UTHFMEEERAFEAZT
TR

1. HHLBEEENSREREABZHBE
MoK

2. BRI RTES ESHRERNESTER
iz o

TRINH EZRSREEABREE] —f#2
HITEZRSNEEAERAFE 2 H A
Bl -

HK$ Number of persons
i v AR
4,000,001 - 5,000,000 2
1,000,001 - 2,000,000 2
1-1,000,000 8
Total 422 12

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee comprises five members, including
two Executive Directors and three Independent Non-executive
Directors, namely:

Dr Li Sau Hung, Eddy (Chairman)
Ms Kee Chor Lin

Mr Chan Yu Ching, Eugene

Mr Mar, Selwyn

Mr Lo Kwok Kwei, David

The Nomination Committee is responsible for (i) assisting the
Board to run effectively and the Company can go through a formal,
fair and transparent process of reviewing the structure, size and
composition of the Board and the balance and effectiveness of the
Board in the light of the Board Diversity Policy, identifying the skills
needed and appointing those who can provide them to the Board;
(ii) leading the process for the appointment of Directors; and (iii)
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identifying and nominating suitable candidates for appointment to
the Board. The Nomination Committee is provided with sufficient
resources enabling it to discharge its duties.

During the Year, the Nomination Committee met twice and
the attendance records of Directors attending the Nomination
Committee meetings are set out on page 29 of this Annual Report.
The following is a summary of work performed by the Nomination
Committee during the Year:

1. reviewed the structure, size and composition of the Board;
reviewed the succession planning for the Board; and

lead a formal and transparent procedure for the appointment
of new Executive Director by assessing his skills and experience
and made recommendations to the Board for his appointment.

Attendance Records of Directors Attending
Board meetings, Board Committee Meetings
and Annual General Meeting

The attendance records of Directors during the Year are as follows:
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Number of Meetings attended/held

HE/BTEERY

Audit Remuneration  Nomination Annual

Committee Committee  Committee General

Board Meetings Meetings Meetings Meeting

Meetings EBLZEE HMZEEE REZEE RREF

Directors E= Exeed L g3 L S|

Executive Directors: HITEE

Ms Kee Chor Lin! pRELL 4/4 4/5 2/2 212 11

Mr Chan Yu Ching, Eugene! BRF B! 4/4 4/5 - 2/2 11

Mr Chan Tat Cheong, Alan? RiES L AE? /1 11 - - -

Mr Wong Ching Ming, Stanley FERLEE 4/4 - - _ 11

Mr Yeung Yuk Lun? BEBLE 1/1 2/2 - - -
Independent Non-executive Directors: BV H#H/TEE .

Dr Li Sau Hung, Eddy FAEEL 4/4 5/5 202 2/2 11

Mr Lo Kwok Kwei, David EEELE 4/4 5/5 202 212 il

Mr Mar, Selwyn SRRELE 414 5/5 - 2/2 11
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Notes:

1. Ms Kee Chor Lin, Mr Chan Yu Ching, Eugene attended the Audit Committee
meetings as management representatives as requested by the Audit
Committee.

2. Mr Chan Tat Cheong, Alan was appointed as Executive Director with effect
from 3 October 2016 and he attended the Audit Committee meeting as the
Finance Director as requested by the Audit Committee.

3. Mr Yeung Yuk Lun resigned on 12 April 2016.

ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

Directors’ responsibilities in financial
reporting

The Board is committed to providing a balanced, clear and
comprehensible assessment of the financial performance, position
and prospects of the Group. The Board, assisted by the Audit
Committee, oversees the financial reporting process of the Group.
The Audit Committee monitors the integrity of the financial
statements and annual and interim reports and accounts of the
Group.

All Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for the preparation
of the financial statements of the Group, which shall give a true
and fair view of the financial status of the Group. During the Year,
the Directors were not aware of any material uncertainties relating
to event or condition that might cast significant doubt upon the
Group’s ahility to continue as a going concern. Accordingly, the
Directors prepared the financial statements of the Company on a
going concern basis.

The Company is committed to announce its interim and annual
results as soon as reasonably practicable after the end of the
relevant period and the financial year respectively as required by
the Listing Rules and discloses all such information as would enable
the shareholders of the Company to assess the performance,
financial position and prospects of the Group.

Auditor’s responsibilities

The responsibilities of external auditor of the Company with respect
to financial reporting are set out in the section “Independent
Auditor’s Report” on pages 56 to 64 of this Annual Report.
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TEERRE
Auditor’s remuneration ZE TN £
The Audit Committee reflected their views to the Board that the BEZZECEMEBEZLXR R~ ERAEHXK

remuneration payable to the Company’s external auditor was
reasonable and fair in all circumstances and there had been
no major disagreement between the external auditor and the
management of the Company during the Year.

The remuneration paid/payable to the Company’s external auditor,
KPMG, during the Year is set out as follows:

NSIEINE oY A el = NS = ]
AEREANIEZBMERRRERELES
RER DI o

Ef/ENARBSINEZBEEFHEAEE
BIIRAFEE 2 &5InT

Fees paid/payable

Services rendered Frigfi 2 fR % S/ EMASEME
HK$’000

FET

Audit services =R TS 1,500
Non-audit services! FEAZ AR ! 430
Total st 1,930

Note:

1 The fee paid for non-audit services including review of interim financial
information, work performed on the preliminary announcement of results
of the Group and tax compliance services.

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Board recognizes internal audit in assisting the Company to
protect its assets. The task of internal audit of the Company during
the Year has been performed by the Internal Auditor. The Internal
Auditor is neither affiliated with the employees nor external auditor
of the Company in order to enhance objectivity, creditability and
independence and it reports to the Audit Committee directly.

The scope of the internal audit during the Year includes:

1. scoping and planning audit locations agreed with the Audit
Committee and the Board;

2. review of the design of internal control structure by identifying
the key controls in place and determining significant gaps

within the design of the controls;

3. testing of the operating effectiveness of the key controls; and

Mzt -

1 BEREBRBXNZEReRENTMMBER
RSBV S EE DT 2 TIERIRE A R IR -

A B %

EZQRA ANEZEDARRRERLSE
E o ARANAFEERZABERTIETA
AR Z BB ETT - AE R BE R ARRE T
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FUENBYE  BEHERAEZZE WS -

AEEANMEZ BRI
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4. reporting to and making recommendations to the Audit
Committee on the design weakness in order to enhance
the effectiveness of the operation procedures, systems and
controls.

The Internal Auditor submitted an assessment report to the Audit
Committee and was of the view that the key areas of the Company’s
internal control and risk management systems had been reasonably
implemented and considered sound and effective by the Board for
the Year.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board acknowledges its overall responsibility for evaluating
and determining the nature and extent of the risks it is willing to
take in achieving the Group’s strategic objectives, and ensuring
the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
remain sound and effective. The Audit Committee assisted the
Board in fulfilling its responsibility. The tasks of risk management
and internal control of the Company during the Year has been
performed by the Internal Auditor. The Internal Auditor is
neither affiliated with the employees nor our external auditor
of the Company in order to enhance objectivity, creditability and
independence. The management provided a confirmation to the
Board that the risk management and internal control systems of
the Company remains sound and effective throughout the Year.

Risk management philosophy

The Board recognizes that risk taking is unavoidable as it is part
of the Company’s business. With appropriate risk management and
continuous risk monitoring policies in place, risk taking may bring
value to the Company. The Board believes that risks are acceptable
after prudent assessment of their impact and likelihood. Risks can
neither be absolutely eliminated nor controlled. The Company can
protect its assets and shareholders’ interests and create value
simultaneously through appropriate risks management and control
measures. The Board also acknowledges that risk management
and internal control systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business objectives, and
can only provide reasonable and not absolute assurance against
material misstatement or loss.
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Main features of the risk management and
internal control systems

The Board has the responsibility to oversee, evaluate and determine
the nature and extent of the risks facing the Group and reviewing
and monitoring the Group’s approach to addressing these risks at
least annually. In addition, the Board oversees management in the
design, implementation and monitoring of the risk management
and internal control systems.

The Audit Committee assists the Board in fulfilling its role in
reviewing the Group’s financial, operational and compliance
reviewing the adequacy of resources, staff
qualifications and experience, training programmes and budget
of the Group’s accounting, internal audit and financial reporting

controls and

functions.

The management assists the Board in the implementation of
the Group’s policies, procedures and limits within the Board’s
approved risk appetite by identifying and assessing the risks faced
and monitoring the design and operation of the relevant internal
control measures to mitigate and control these risks.

Risk assessment process

Risk assessment approach

A risk management program was carried out during the Year to
ensure all material risks to which the Group exposed are properly
identified, assessed, managed, monitored and reported to the Audit
Committee and the Board.

Risk identification

Risks identification is based on questionnaire with senior
management from different departments. Risk are preliminary
identified by senior management from the risk universe which is
a collection of risks built on environmental analysis and external
benchmarking that can impact the Group at the entity or specific
business process level. The risk universe covers both internal and
external risks in six major areas, namely external risks, strategic
risks, operational risks, financial risks, legal and compliance risks
and people risks. Key risk factors are then identified by integrating
the results of the questionnaire.
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Risk evaluation and Risk prioritization

Risk evaluation is the second step to assess the relative impact and
likelihood of the identified key risk factors. These identified key risk
factors are further assessed by a scale rating process assessed by
the senior management.

Risk prioritisation is a mapping exercise. A risk map is used to
prioritise the identified key risk factors according to their assessed
impact and likelihood.

Risk reporting, managing and monitoring

Risk reporting and risk monitoring are essential and integral parts
of risk management. A risk assessment report was submitted to
the Audit Committee and the Board. Senior management reviewed
and assessed the adequacy of existing controls in accordance with
the Board’s advice and suggestions; determined and implemented
treatment plans where risks mitigants are actionable and
continuously monitored the development of current risks and the
emergence of new risks throughout the Year.

The Internal Auditor conducted an annual review of the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control systems
for the Year. The scope of review was previously determined
and approved by the Audit Committee. The Internal Auditor
has reported major findings and areas for improvement to the
Audit Committee. All recommendations from the Internal Auditor
were adopted by the Group and were implemented within a
reasonable period of time. The Group therefore considered that
the risk management and internal control systems were effective
throughout the Year.

Handling and dissemination of inside
information

The handling and dissemination of inside information of the Group
is strictly controlled and measures adopted by the Group including
but not limited by the following ways:

1. restrict access to inside information to employees on a
need-to-know basis;

2. send reminder to employees who are in possession of inside

information to ensure that they are fully conversant with their
obligations to preserve confidentiality;
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3. ensure appropriate confidentiality agreements are in place
when the Group enters into significant negotiations or dealings
with third party; and

4. inside information is handled and communicated by designated
persons to outside third party.

The Board and the senior management review the safety measures
regularly to ensure inside information is properly handled and
disseminated.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES
FACING THE COMPANY

Foreign exchange risk

The Group’s reporting currency is Hong Kong dollar and most of
the business transactions are denominated in other currencies
including United States dollar, Renminbi and Japanese Yen. Hence,
exchange rate movements can affect the profit margin of the
Group. The Group enters forward currency contracts to hedge
against the currency risks arising from Group’s operations and
its funding sources, with reference to cash flow forecasts, capital
expenditure commitment and business budget. The Group does not
speculate on foreign currencies.

Credit risk

Credit risk arise from long credit period for customers and short
credit period provided by suppliers. Customers are unwilling or
unable to fulfill their payment obligations that leads the Group to
incur financial losses. The Group’s credit control function manages
the credit risks by assessing the credit limits and credit terms to
be granted to customers and setting up the internal control system
of credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to recover
overdue debts, if any. The Group also enters into credit insurance
contracts to mitigate the credit risks arising from the collection of
accounts receivables balances.

Competition risk

Competition risk arises from the emergence of a number of
competitors in the electronic components manufacturing industry.
Price cut from competitors intensifies the risk. The Group believes
that the provision of quality products and after sales service to
customers are the only way to gain customer confidence and
loyalty.

TEBERRE
3. MRAEREE=ZFETEAERNXIRS

S RTS8 & R

4. ABWBRBHEARETEETINGEAL -

EFg SR EBEABERRIZE2EH -
AHERARE B RS Z ERIE K3 -

AR EIFTE# E 2 E R
ESES

s N ANEREA

SNEEE L B

AEBUETLRZREY  MASHEBR
FUEMERE  BEEL ARKKA
B - Bt BRRH A YWAEEZ EFEE
HE - AEERERSRBEA - EAH
SEEREBEHE  FEBEEA AN

>¢$’§I%%&EEM%%‘?J?%EEZ@I\EEL
[ o NEBIEDEINE o

%gTVﬁ

FER ﬁAﬁg}E’TETﬁFETZf/HH&T%f
P HE FL SEHATR - BF TR T EE
TENREFRBHASBEEARFEXLX -
AEBEBZEEEEREABBIHBRER
BHZEEREMMEES  URRIHEME
B2 NEEEIE R R H A B 2R 32 DA UK [B1 81
HEE (ZZWE) EREERK - NEBINE
TEERBRA 4 - DARR UL B FE U BR 34 84
Fralsiz EERR -

“%H%
BMREBEFTHREZBERAERS
ﬁ? ° ﬁﬁ%%ﬁ?ﬁﬂ;v B angl o A& EHE
B RMEPEHEEER RERRBIIER
BEPEOLRBBE ZHE—EE -

35



Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited‘ BREREEARAR

Corporate Governance Report
rEERWME

Customers’ financial health risk

The majority of the Group’s customers are electronic products
manufacturers in China. Delay in payments for trade receivables
settlement is common, thus resulting in bad debts. Slow recovery
of trade receivables indicates higher likelihood of customers’
financial health risk. The senior management works with the
finance department closely to monitor customers’ financial health.
In addition, it is hedged by implementation of credit insurance
policies.

INVESTOR RELATIONS AND
COMMUNICATIONS

Recognising the importance of maintaining on-going communication
with shareholders, the Board establishes a shareholders’
communication policy and reviews it regularly to ensure its
effectiveness. To facilitate the timely, transparent and effective
communication with shareholders, the Board provides different
communication channels for shareholders and investors including
annual general meetings and other general meetings.

The annual general meeting provides a forum for the Company’s
shareholders to raise comments, offer suggestions, and exchange
views with the Board. The notice of annual general meeting is
distributed to all shareholders at least 20 clear business days
before the meeting. The Chairman of the Board, the Chairmen of
all Board Committees and external auditor shall attend each annual
general meeting or any general meeting to answer questions from
the shareholders on the performance of the Company so as to allow
them to fully understand the Company’s operations, management
and development.

During the Year, the Board held an annual general meeting on
12 May 2016. The voting results of annual general meeting were
published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company
and the results are available for inspection by the shareholders of
the Company upon request made to the Company Secretary. The
attendance records of Directors at the meeting are set out on page
29 of this Annual Report.

Furthermore, the official website of the Company contains timely
updated company news, corporate information, announcements,
interim and annual reports of the Group, all of which are available
for download with a view of making easy access to corporate
information for shareholders and potential investors. Circulars,
interim and annual reports are sent to shareholders in a timely
manner and they are also available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHT

Convening Special General Meeting and
Putting Forward Proposals at Shareholders’
Meeting

Shareholders holdings, at the date of deposit of the requisition, not
less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company carrying
the right of voting at general meetings of the Company shall at all
times have the right, by written requisition to the Board or the
Company Secretary, to require a special general meeting to be
called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified
under such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two
months. If the Directors do not within 21 days from the date of the
deposit of the requisition proceed duly to convene a meeting, the
requisitionists, or any of them representing more than one half of
the total voting rights of all of them, may themselves convene a
meeting, but any meeting so convened shall not be held after the
expiration of three months from the said date.

The requisition must state the purposes of the meeting, and must
be signed by the requisitionists and deposited at the registered
office of the Company, and may consist of several documents in
like form each signed by one or more requisitionists.

Any reasonable expenses incurred by the requisitionists by reason
of the failure of the Directors to duly convene a meeting shall
be repaid to the requisitionists by the Company, and any sum
so repaid shall be retained by the Company out of any sums due
or to become due from the Company by way of fees or other
remuneration in respect of their services to such Directors as were
in default.

During the Year, no special general meeting was convened, and no
relevant proposal was received by the Company.

Enquiries to the board

Enquiries can be put to the Board through the investor relations
department of the Company at 16/F., Yiko Industrial Building, 10
Ka Yip Street, Chai Wan, Hong Kong or email to ir@manyue.com.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is a full time employee of the Company
and has day-to-day knowledge of the Group’s affairs. The Company
Secretary reports to the Chairman and the Managing Director.
From time to time, the Company Secretary advises the Board on
governance matters and ensures the board procedures, applicable
law, rules and regulations are followed. The Company Secretary
has undertaken at least 15 hours of relevant professional training
during the Year.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

During the Year, there was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents.

ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

The Group is committed to protect the environment. The Group has
established an environmental management system that conforms
to global standards and was granted with 1IS014001 accreditation
in 2004. The quality control department monitors product quality
and the use of certain chemical substances.

Besides, the implementation of RoHS directives in August 2005
in European Union members’ states has impacted the electronic
industry. The Group installed new equipments and established a
comprehensive set of policies and procedures to ensure that the
Group’s products are fully compliant with the RoHS requirements
for the European Union and equivalent requirement for the rest of
the world. The Group had also made it mandatory for all vendors
and business partners to comply with the RoHS requirements.

During the Year, the Group has received the following awards:

1. I1SO/TS 16949:2009 accreditation;

2. Certificates of Excellence in Hong Kong Awards for

Environmental Excellence - “Wastewi$e” issued by the
Environmental Campaign Committee; and

3. Hong Kong Green Organization (HKGO) issued by Hong Kong
Productivity Council.
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The Directors are pleased to present this Directors’ Report ZBEZMAREARAINEKNBRRIRAKAE
together with the audited consolidated financial statements of [EZEBWME RLEBZEIRE P HB®E -
the Company and its subsidiaries for the Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES FEXK

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding and ARXARZEEBEBKAREER  MEKEA
the activities of its subsidiaries are set out in Note 22 to the A ZEKHNEE P BEHRERM T2 - KFE
consolidated financial statements. There were no significant AEBFEXEK 2 B WWEE XE

changes in the nature of the Group’s principal activities during

the Year.

An analysis of the Group’s performance for the Year by operating AEBRAFERZEE D IS D2 EEXRR
segment is set out in Note 5 to the consolidated financial D MTERLRE M IEHRERMIEES ©
statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW L AE)

A fair review of the business of the Group as required pursuant & A &l &l (BB LA G Fe2F) Bi Koz B
to Schedule 5 to the Companies Ordinance (Chapter 622 of the KR ANEEh S 7 275 0OEE  BRARD
Laws of Hong Kong), together with a description of the principal ~ RIPFTE ¥ F ZRK X THBEZ 2 il - 8

risks and uncertainties facing the Company, particulars of —ZE—NFERHMFERLERBRIE LW EH AEE
important events affecting the Group that have occurred since FEVERFHUREBEBRZAUENIRZ

the end of the financial year 2016 as well as indication of likely 2 & > D RIERANFRFE7H 2 [ FE W
future development in the business of the Group are set out in 2|+ ZBOFE1E ~ [ & & B ] & 35536
the sections “Chairman’s Statement” on pages 6 to 7, “Operations B 2 [ANAGIFTE S £ ER R K TEAREZE]
review” on pages 9 to 11, “Principal Risks and Uncertainties ™ o {F ARSI A RIBIZEL A DT ~ &
facing the Company” on pages 35 to 36 of this Annual Report SEERBHEREXBENFmIEEBETHAE
respectively. An analysis using financial key performance BEEEAFEMNMEBEELZIERBNBRAR
indicators, a discussion of the Group’s environmental policies EAF|ZEIEEENEEMENE M - D RIFH R
and performance, and its compliance with the relevant laws Z201E 27 [EFHMEHEE ] - 10521088 2
and regulations that have a significant impact on the Group as [ 2 Ef&#]  F50F558 27 [RIE - HERE
well as an account of the key relationships with its stakeholders  JAFRE |~ F38E Z [BRIFRE] A AEE R
are set out in the sections “Five Year Financial Summary” ‘SHE48EZ [TERFPRMER] AN - Lats
on page 201, “Segment Information” on pages 105 to 108, miBKAEEREN—IH o

“Environmental, Social and Governance Report” on pages 50 to

55, “Environmental Protection” on page 38 and “Major Customers

and Suppliers” of this Directors’ Report on page 48 respectively.

The above discussions form part of this Directors’ Report.

Al /== N
RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS FrE Mok
The results of the Group for the Year are set out in the AEBRAFEZEZEHNAFRFSHZ
consolidated income statement on page 65 of this Annual Report.  #r&Wzm=mERA o
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DIVIDEND
The Board did not recommend final dividend for the Year (2015:
nil).

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the results, assets and liabilities of the Group
for the past five financial years is set out in the section “Five
Year Financial Summary” on page 201 of this Annual Report.
This summary does not form part of the consolidated financial
statements.

FIXED ASSETS

Details of the movements in the fixed assets of the Group during
the Year are set out in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of the movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the Year are set out in Notes 34 and 35 to
the consolidated financial statements respectively.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company’s Bye-laws or the laws of Bermuda which would oblige
the Company to offer new shares on a pro rata basis to existing
shareholders.

RESERVES

Details of the movements in the reserves of the Group and that
of the Company during the Year are set out in Notes 42 and 43
to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2016, the Company’s reserves available for
distribution, calculated in accordance with the provisions of
the Companies Act 1981 of Bermuda (as amended), amounted
to HK$86,217,000 (2015: HK$101,667,000). In addition,
the Company’s share premium account, in the amount of
HK$165,458,000 (2015: HK$165,862,000), may be distributed in
the form of fully paid bonus shares.
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DIRECTORS

As at 31 December 2016 and up to the date of this Directors’
Report, the Board comprised Ms Kee Chor Lin, Mr Chan Yu Ching,
Eugene, Mr Chan Tat Cheong, Alan, Mr Wong Ching Ming, Stanley,
Dr Li Sau Hung, Eddy, Mr Lo Kwok Kwei, David and Mr Mar,
Selywn.

During the Year, the following changes to the Board composition
were effected:

1. Mr Yeung Yuk Lun resigned as Executive Director, Chief
Financial Officer and Company Secretary of the Company
with effect from 12 April 2016 to pursue other career
aspiration; and

2. Mr Chan Tat Cheong, Alan was appointed as Executive
Director of the Company with effect from 3 October 2016.

Mr Yeung Yuk Lun confirmed that he has no disagreement with
the Board and nothing relating to the affairs of the Company
needed to be brought to the attention of the shareholders of the
Company and the Stock Exchange.

Under the existing Bye-laws of the Company, one third of the
Directors shall retire from office by rotation provided that
every Director shall be subject to retirement at least once every
three years and re-election at each annual general meeting.
In accordance with Bye-law 87 of the Company’s Bye-laws, Mr
Chan Yu Ching, Eugene, Mr Chan Tat Cheong, Alan, Dr Li Sau
Hung, Eddy and Mr Mar, Selywn will retire from office by rotation
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the 2017
annual general meeting of the Company. None of the Directors
offering themselves for re-election has a service contract with
the Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than statutory
compensation.

The Company received annual confirmation from all Independent
Non-executive Directors of their independence pursuant to Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules and the Company considered all the
Independent Non-executive Directors as independent.

The biographical details of Directors of the Company and senior
management of the Group are set out in the section “Biographical
Details of Directors and Senior Management” on pages 14 to 18
of this Annual Report.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts, other than employment contracts, concerning the
management and administration of the whole of any substantial
part of the Company’s businesses were entered into or existed
during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No contracts of significance in relation to the Group’s business
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and
in which a director of the Company had a material interests,
whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the end of
the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

None of the Directors is or was interested in any business apart
from the Group’s business, that competes or competed or is
or was likely to compete, either directly or indirectly, with the
Group’s business at any time during the Year and up to the date
of this Directors’ Report.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISIONS

The Directors and other officers of the Company shall be
indemnified and secured harmless out of the assets and profits
of the Company from and against all losses or liabilities which
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of
office or otherwise in relation thereto pursuant to the Company’s
Bye-laws. The Group has arranged appropriate directors’ and
officers’ liahility insurance coverage for the Directors and officers
throughout the Year.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES

As at the date of this Director’s Report, the interests and short
positions of the Directors or chief executive in the shares,

RAEERERY  EFXRFTHRAER
AR EEFAREZEE (EERESFMIE
fRBIEXVER) 2Bty ~ MR MESFT B
AREARR RIRIRE 75 S BB 1R ) 3 35216 17
EZERMANRESEETIMARTTHNE
ARRIRBR ATz st FOXBINT

underlying shares and debentures of the Company or any of
its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the SFO), as recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise
notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the
Model Code, were as follows:

RARREBR L AERDZHE

Long positions in ordinary shares and underlying shares of the

Company:
Capacity, nature of interest and number of shares and
underlying shares held
B0 ERMERAEROREERGEE
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s
Interest Interestin  issued share capital
Directors Capacity Nature of interest inshares  share options EARATEET
= 54 BEmE R R BREER REzZBNEIHL
Kee Chor Lin' Interest of controlled  Corporate 209,689,667 - 44,09%
iE corporation NS
g UNGIL - 5
Kee Chor Lin Beneficial owner Personal 51,006,334 - 10.73%
it ESBEEA EA
260,696,001 - 54.82%
Chan Yu Ching, Eugene Beneficial owner Personal 4,716,666 - 0.99%
BRFE EREEA EA
Wong Ching Ming, Stanley Beneficial owner Personal - 500,000 0.11%
FHEH ExEEA fEA
Note: Mt

1 These shares are held by Man Yue Holdings Inc., a company wholly and
beneficially owned by Ms Kee Chor Lin, the Chairman of the Company.

1 #ZZRRHAMan Yue Holdings InciF A -

ARBEELRBELTE2EESEA -
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Save as disclosed above and as disclosed under the section
“Directors’ Rights to Acquire Shares or Debentures” as at the
date of this Directors’ Report, none of the Directors or chief
executive had registered an interest or short position in the
shares, underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any
of its associated corporations that was required to be recorded
pursuant to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’ AND

OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT
POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING
SHARES

As at the date of this Directors’ Report, the interests and short
positions of persons, other than Directors or chief executive of
the Company, being 5% or more in the interest in the issued

EftXFfrTBZ BEMG [EEBERODIUESFZ
A —EREEN  RAESEHREAH - #
E%%ﬂiagﬁﬂz)\?—ﬁé$@ﬂ§£ﬁ\{ﬂﬂ$ﬁ
BOREZ D - RN RESFTHEEER
1538 7 R BB GBI 335216 % "t SR IR IR XE<F
AIMZARTTAE AR E KPRy 2 # 2 30K

A

E o

NGRS E

I AN

E%%%&%@
mMORB

BAR (2 ez

\

/

RAEEREEH  REFSLPEKENE
XVEBE3I36IEMEMFTE 2 S E L Maosk
BAEARDNRE BT A% A E 2 RS MK

share capital of the Company as recorded in the register of B Z AT (BREZFHAR BN ZSZITHAEIN)
interests required to be kept under Section 336 of Part XV of the mr
SFO, are set out as below:
Long positions: HE
Approximate
percentage of
the Company’s issued
Number of share capital
Name Capacity and nature of interest  ordinary shares held AR QA T E BT
2% SO kERME FrisEEREE BRAEAZENE DL
Man Yue Holdings Inc. Personal/Beneficial owner 209,689,667 44.09%

BA/BE=EE A

Save as disclosed above, as at the date of this Directors’ Report,
no person, other than the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, whose interests are set out in the section “Directors’
and Chief Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares,
Underlying Shares and Debentures” above, had registered an
interest or short position in the shares or underlying shares
of the Company that was required to be recorded pursuant to
Section 336 of the SFO.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME fE ST 2l

The Company operates Share Option Scheme for the purpose AR FIREERETE  BEEMBAEEK
of providing incentives and rewards to eligible participants who ~ DIAE & E L E\EKZAQT%@@%TET%&ED&
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations. Further B3R o BEARMERT Bl 2 — P FIBRER A B 75
details of the Share Option Scheme are disclosed in Note 35 to ¥R MIFE35HEEE ©

the consolidated financial statements.

As at the date of this Directors’ Report, 2,080,000 (2015: MRAESZTHRELH BEBEREFTI A
2,530,000) share options remained outstanding under the Share  2,080,0001% (=& — # 4 : 2,530,00017) B

Option Scheme and the details of the movements of the said MR AKRITHE @ Ll RITFEERE 2 & F)
outstanding share options were as follows: FEIBWT -
As at As at
1 January 31 December  Date of Exercise
Name or category of 2016 Lapsed 2016  grant of share price of
participants RZZ-5RE  duringtheyear RZE—-RE  options Exercise period of share options* share options?
SaERERER -A-A WEEEXN TZA=t-B RUBERERS BRETES ERETRE
Director
2
Wong Ching Ming, Stanley 250,000 - 250,000 15.9.2010 15.9.2011 t0 14.9.2020 2.262
TEH ZE-TENATRER ZE—ENATRAZZZCEENATEA
250,000 - 250,000  15.9.2010 15.9.2012 t0 14.9.2020 2.262

“E-REAATRER CE-CHEAATRAECE-TEAATEA

500,000 - 500,000
Other employees
AftfEg
In aggregate 250,000 (250,000)° - 8.8.2006 8.8.2007 t0 25.5.2016 1.6
A “EENENANE ZERHENANBEZE-RERACTAHA
In aggregate 896,000 (100,000) 796,000  15.9.2010 15.9.2011 t0 14.9.2020 2.262
GRS ZE-TENATER ZE-—SNATRAEZZCTENATEA
In aggregate 884,000 (100,000) 784,000  15.9.2010 15.9.2012 t0 14.9.2020 2.262
GRS ZE-TENATRR ZE-CHENATRAEZZ-EENATEA
e 200000 W0000) L0000
2,530,000 (450,000) 2,080,000
Notes: BEt

1 The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant until 1 BREZSBEHDERE RHREEITEEREFLS
the commencement of the exercise period.

2 The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment in the 2 E%HxﬁéZﬁjEFiZﬁIﬁiﬁxiilﬂx?é‘ﬁ % /N]
case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the Company’s B 2 Bt BB By fy 1 AR 2 -
share capital.

al}

3 250,000 share options at an exercise price of HK$1.60 per share were 3 HRARAR-_ZTRNERA -+ NARBZER

expired on 25 May 2016 due to the expiry of the share option scheme T’gﬁi%ﬂ}i@/ﬁﬁ W 1T 1 {E1.607%8 TT 2 250,00017
which was adopted by the Company on 26 May 2006. BRER_E—A"FRAAZTHBALXK -

45



g. S

Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited\ ERRIRERARAT

Directors’ Report
BEWRE

DIRECTORS’ RIGHTS TO ACQUIRE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Save as disclosed under the sections “Directors’ and Chief
Executive’s Interests and Short Positions in Shares, Underlying
Shares and Debentures” and “Share Option Scheme” above, at
no time during the Year were rights to acquire benefits by means
of the acquisition of shares in or debentures of the Company
granted to any Directors or their respective spouses or minor
children, or were any such rights exercised by them; or was the
Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement
to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

PURCHASE, REDEMPTION OR SALE OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

The Company repurchased a total of 692,000 shares on the
Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of HK$473,560
from January 2016 up to the date of this Directors’ Report. All
the repurchased shares were cancelled subsequently pursuant
to Rule 10.06 of the Listing Rules. Particulars of the repurchases
are as follows:

SERERMIIEF ZEF

BREXTEZRZESTRABERKD - HE
Bein RfE 5 2 B as Kok R | Ko [ F8 B it & ]
METPTIREE SN RAFERNEMEE - #
EEAEEIWETAIRBIARKNFF L
ERABBARRR RN REFMERD 2
M WETREITEZSEN  AARHEE
AME ARG E2EEALH REESA
EREAEMEAEE 2 BREER -

BE  BOsGGLERRR LEHE
]

N
e
B1FR R473,560/8 7T c BB ER M HER
B MR RIZE10.06165T5H - BEIAESAT

7]
BE-_E—RNF—AREAEEHEH
N

Purchase price per share Aggregate
BRIBEERK consideration
Number of shares paid
Month/Year repurchased Highest Lowest [E5-Z0]
BB /F 5 BERGRE BS BIE RERE
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
(#BT) (Bx) (#Bx)

January 2016
—E-RF—HA 692,000 0.70 0.68 473,560

Total

5T 692,000 473,560

The number of issued shares of the Company as at the date of
this Directors’ Report is 475,547,534, The Directors believed that
the repurchases were for the benefit of the Company and the
shareholders as a whole with a view to enhance the net asset
value per share and to improve the earnings per share of the
Company.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor its subsidiaries
purchased, redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed
securities during the Year.
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DISCLOSEABLE AND CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

During the Year and up to the date of this Directors’ Report, the
Company conducted the following transactions which constituted
discloseable and/or connected transactions under the Listing
Rules:

On 7 June 2016, a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, High
Merit Group Limited, entered into a sale and purchase agreement
with Yageo Corporation to acquire 10,522,736 ordinary shares of
Luminous Town Electric Co., Ltd., an associate company of the
Company, at a consideration of TWD105,227,360 (approximately
HKD25,012,446). The purpose of the acquisition was to extend
the Company’s geographic market and synergies were expected
as the business of Luminous Town Electric Co., Ltd. was
complementary to the existing business of the Group’s capacitor
segment. Luminous Town became a non-wholly owned subsidiary
of the Company after the completion of acquisition on 21 June
2016.

On 29 September 2016, High Merit Group Limited entered into
sale and purchase agreements with China Development Industrial
Bank Corp. and CDIB Capital Management Corporation to further
acquire 9,221,749 and 1,442,883 ordinary shares of Luminous
Town Electric Co., Ltd. at a consideration of TWD92,217,490
(approximately HKD22,826,111) and TWD14,428,830
(approximately HKD3,571,492) respectively. Given that China
Development Industrial Bank Corp. is a substantial shareholder
of Luminous Town by virtue of controlling over 10% of the voting
power at the general meetings of Luminous Town prior to the
completion of the acquisition, China Development Industrial Bank
Corp. is a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary
level. Both China Development Industrial Bank Corp. and CDIB
Capital Management Corporation are fellow subsidiaries, and
CDIB Capital Management Corporation is an associate of China
Development Industrial Bank Corp. under the Listing Rules.
As China Development Industrial Bank Corp. is a connected
person of the Company at the subsidiary level and CDIB Capital
Management Corporation is an associate of China Development
Industrial Bank Corp., the acquisitions thus constituted connected
transactions. The purpose of the acquisitions were to gain further
control in Luminous Town Electric Co., Ltd. which would generate
a greater synergy effect with the Group.

N\
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the Year, less than 30% of the Group’s sales were
attributable to the Group’s five largest customers.

Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted
for approximately 38.0% (2015: 45.3%) of the total purchases
during the Year and purchases from the largest supplier included
therein amounted to approximately 14.5% (2015: 16.4%)).

None of the Directors or any of their associates or any
shareholders (which, to the best knowledge of the Directors,
own more than 5% of the Company’s issued share capital) had
any beneficial interest in the share capital of any of the first five
largest customers and suppliers of the Group.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT
Based on information publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of the Directors of the Company as at the
date of this Directors’ Report, the Company has maintained the
prescribed public float under the Listing Rules.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Annual Report for the Year has been reviewed by the
Audit Committee of the Company. Particulars of the Audit
Committee and its composition are set out in the section “Board
Committees” on pages 25 to 27 of this Annual Report.
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AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements of the Company for the
last three years ended 31 December 2013, 31 December 2014
and 31 December 2015 were audited by PricewaterhouseCoopers.
PricewaterhouseCoopers retired as auditor of the Company at the
2016 annual general meeting of the Company on 12 May 2016 and
would not offer itself for re-appointment. The Board has resolved,
with the recommendation of the Audit Committee, to propose the
appointment of KPMG as auditor of the Company to fill the casual
vacancy following the retirement of PricewaterhouseCoopers. The
consolidated financial statements for the financial year ended 31
December 2016 were audited by KPMG who will retire and, being
eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment at the 2017 annual
general meeting. A resolution for the re-appointment of KPMG as
auditor of the Company will be proposed at that meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Kee Chor Lin
Chairman
Hong Kong, 15 March 2017
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The Board of Directors is pleased to present this Environmental,
Social and Governance Report for the Year.

CORPORATE VISIONS ON ESG

The Group has obtained both the 1S014001, an environmental
management system, and 1S09001, a quality management
system, certifications. It also implements the EICC code of
conduct which focuses on the management system related to
labour, ethics, health and safety and the environment. All the
products of the Group comply with RoHS requirements. On the
other hand, the Group is not only committed to satisfying RoOHS
requirements for the European Community and equivalent
requirements worldwide, it is also a requirement for all business
partners which work with the Group.

Development on using new energy as well as energy saving is
continuing the important agenda for the international climate
summit as well as the PRC government. The Group will continue
to provide a complete solution for energy saving and storage
application.

ENGAGEMENT WITH STAKEHOLDERS

The Group values its stakeholders. Shareholders, customers,
suppliers, regulators and employers are main stakeholders. The
Group has on-going dialogues with shareholders, analysts and
investors. Annual general meeting is held every year and the
Group encourages shareholders to attend shareholders’ meetings
and vote at the meetings. Product brochures are prepared
to introduce new products to customers. Business visits and
supplier evaluation are conducted to ensure suppliers comply
with applicable labour laws. The Group is committed to ensure
compliance with all applicable laws, rules and regulations of
Hong Kong and worldwide. The Group collects employees’ opinion
regularly.
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ENVIRONMENTAL PROTECTION

Protecting the environment and conserving the resources
are important responsibilities for large-scale companies. The
Group strives to achieve environmental sustainability in every
production step. The Group aims to not only comply with
environmental laws and regulations but endeavours to prevent
pollution, save resources and reduce waste, as well as to enhance
environmental awareness.

CONTROL OF HAZARDOUS SUBSTANCES IN
PRODUCTS

Manufacturing of high technology electronic components is
one of the Group’s key businesses, the use of heavy metals
or chemical substances is unavoidable. Hence, control of
hazardous substances in products is a major concern of the
Group. ROHS compliance is a requirement for all suppliers and
business partners of the Group. Suppliers must submit national
or international-recognized testing reports and materials safety
data sheet to ensure that the materials they supply comply with
the relevant environmental rules or regulations which are free
from prohibited substances or the use of chemical substances at
a safety level.

ENERGY SAVING

Maximization of energy efficiency is one of the ways to protect
our planet. The Group has adopted green office practices to
reduce natural resource consumption and the impact on the
environment. Teleconference and video conference are widely
used to avoid unnecessary travel and hence reduce carbon
footprints, whilst maintaining the benefits of “face-to-face”
meetings. Recto-verso printing is encouraged with an aim to
attain a paperless office. In addition, the Group reviews eco-

friendly measures to enhance operational efficiency regularly.

ENERGY RECYCLING

Water is essential in daily operations. Throughout the production
process, the Group minimises water usage and arranges for a
qualified company to recycle waste water. Besides, the Group has
installed two water circulating vacuum pumps to recycle waste
water in the production plant in Dongguan. The water circulating
vacuum pumps operate 24 hours a day to continuously recycle
waste water.
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STRENGTHENING ENVIRONMENTAL
AWARENESS

IS014001, the Environmental Management System, has been
certified at the Group. The system encourages the Group to
continually improve environmental performance, identify
the significant environmental aspects in the operations and
establishes relevant measurements to eliminate or reduce it. The
Group has invested lots of resources to implement the system
and training programmes for the departmental representatives
are conducted regularly to ensure effective running of the
management system in the Group and enhance the environmental
awareness of the employees.

SOCIAL COMMITMENT

EMPLOYMENT AND LABOUR STANDARDS

Retention of employees is crucial for operating a prosperous
entity. The Group has established a “EICC human resources
procedure”. The Group has stringent and transparent
procedures for recruiting talents and has developed competitive
remuneration packages. The remuneration policy is based
on the principles of equitability and fairness. Remuneration
packages are reviewed on a regular basis by the Group. And it
also provides provident fund contribution and medical insurance
coverage.

Child labour and forced labour are one of the main
considerations of labour standards throughout the world. They
are closely linked together. The Group has established the “EICC
forced labour management procedure”. The Group does not
employ child or forced labour and ensures all applicants are over
the age for completing compulsory education or the minimum
age for employment and complies with the requirements of local
laws. Enslavement and labour trafficking are also prohibited.
Employees’ identity or immigration documents are not held
by the Company unless it is required by law. The Group has
established a channel for employees to report any suspected
cases by putting a message in the Employees’ suggestion box
and General Manager’s mail box.
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In addition to child labour and forced labour, the Group commits
to provide a workplace free of harassment and unlawful
discrimination. The Company has established the “EICC anti-
discrimination procedure” and employs talents regardless
of color, age, gender, sexual orientation, gender identity and
expression, race, pregnancy, political affiliation and religion.
The Group believes that everyone is unique and has their own
strength in different aspects and promotes the awareness of
anti-discrimination at the workplace. Investigation will be led by
senior management of the Group if suspected case is reported.

DEVELOPMENT AND TRAINING

The Group fully understands that career development for
employees is one of the critical elements for maintaining long-
term relationship between the employees and the Group.

The Group establishes training plan every year. Training courses
regarding management systems such as 1S09001, 1S04001 and
ISO/TS16949, job requirements, customer requirements, product
safety and statistical process control are organised to enhance
the knowledge and skills of employees to meet the challenges of
the future. The Group also provides training for its directors and
senior management to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in order to discharge their duties more efficiently.

OCCUPATIONAL HEALTH AND SAFETY

The Group pays attention to occupational health and safety.
Safety in the workplace and supply of protective equipments
are the key issues. Compliance with the relevant local laws is
the first step for the Group. The Group also controls the health
and safety risk from the root. Protective equipments such as
masks and goggles are provided to employees who have physical
contact with chemical substances to protect themselves. The
Group offers physical examination that focuses on the illness or
harm identified to our employees. The Group also offers physical
examination in three phases including pre-employment, during
employment period and also after resignation in order to protect
employees’ health.

Enhancing safety awareness of employees is also important. The
Group conducts health and safety training to new employees
based on their job duties. In addition, the Group provides
ongoing safety training in which the training comprises job
hazard, protective measure, job safety agenda, correct usage of
personal protective equipment and relevant health and safety
laws.
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Apart from the workplace, the Group also cares about sanitation,
food and housing of employees. The Group provides clear and
safe dormitories to employers with adequate living area to enjoy
their own privacy. The Group also provides sanitary food to
minimize the chance of food poisoning. All food is of a certain
nutritional quality.

PRODUCT RESPONSIBILITY AND SUPPLY
CHAIN MANAGEMENT

Product quality is a critical factor to staying competitive in the
market. The Group strives to provide satisfactory products and
services to customers and zero defect is our long term goal.
The Group values our customers. A product briefing regarding
product details, usage of products and relevant safety issues
will be given by our technical professionals to new customers.
Moreover, the Group’s customer service team is fully responsible
to take care of the customers including technical support,
complaints or any comments concerning our services and
products. To fully understand customers’ needs, customer
satisfaction survey will be conducted regularly. For the non-
conformed products, the Group has established a “Product
return procedure” to identify the cause of failure to improve
and meet customers’ standard and a specific timeframe was
set to respond to the customer. Within the reporting period, a
customer complaint case was raised which was related to product
labelling and the Company responded promptly and rectified the
issue within 24 hours. The Group treasures every customer and
appreciates the customers’ comments.

With the aim of reducing greenhouse gas emissions, local
suppliers are given purchasing priority if they fulfill the
Company’s requirements.

ZERO TOLERANCE POLICY ON CORRUPTION

Raw material is one of the important elements that affects
product quality. All business dealings between the Group and
suppliers are transparently performed to uphold business
integrity and honesty. The Group has a zero tolerance policy to
prohibit any and all forms of bribery, corruption, extortion and
embezzlement. Furthermore, the Company conducts supplier
evaluations regularly in three main areas: quality, environment
and production process to ensure the supplier’s performance is
satisfactory.
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Integrity and honesty of employees is important to the Group.
The Group has adopted the whistle-blowing policy in 2010 and
has established a communication process for employees to report
any suspected non-compliance cases in confidence without fear
of retaliation. The Board also reviews the effectiveness of such
reporting system regularly.

COMMUNITY ENGAGEMENT

The Group is committed to serve the community and recognises
positive contribution to the community is the responsibility of
a good corporate citizen. The Group contributes a funding to
local tax authority every year in Dongguan to support career
opportunities of disabled people. The Group will continue to
contribute to the community in the future.

AEBETHEREELEMAENME - K
SEER_Z-ZFRDEB/BR - YEY
—EBBRAE URREEEATHREN
BRTHERRTMNIHRITIAREAR -ES
S E R EREGNBERIE -

W

FL[E

AEEFINRRBLE  BRBERFHNEE
AREEEAHEFLERER - A5EE
FARZEMHBRBE  UFHERAL
REERBE AEERKBEERTERE
HER -

7 N

55

“ 3

1 4




Man Yue Technology Holdings Lim\'ted\ BREBREEERAR

Independent Auditor’s Report
BN AZ BB S

KPMG

To the members of Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited
(incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Man
Yue Technology Holdings Limited (“the Company”) and its
subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out on pages 65 to 200, which
comprise the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 December 2016,
the consolidated income statement, the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated cash flow statement for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements,
including a summary of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the
Group as at 31 December 2016 and of its consolidated financial
performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly
prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. OQur
responsibilities under those standards are further described
in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated
financial statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for
Professional Accountants (“the Code”) together with any ethical
requirements that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated
financial statements in Bermuda and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have
obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our
opinion.
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgement, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our

FASE T = TH

FARBFFTHEREBERFNERHE  RR
BHEMBAAHGAMBRREREEZS
He ZEERRERMETERE M KR
KEHEBRRETRE  MERMISEE
LERRHEBIER -

opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on

these matters.

Valuation of inventories

FEME

Refer to note 3(n) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 90.

BLHEAMBERRMEIN RFEOR 2GR °

The key audit matter
BREETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNESOAEEZEH

At the reporting date the Group held significant
quantities of inventories, which principally
comprised electronic capacitors, with different
products in different phases of their manufacturing
life cycles. The ability of the Group to sell these
inventories in the future may be adversely affected
by changes in competitors’ pricing strategies and
the introduction of new products and technology.

RBEBH - BRERBEAEFE XTEARE
Rex o EEBHERAR EmAAE- &F

BRKRLEZEFENENAEARFEETER
B N ¥ om R R I B AR E -

Management performs regular reviews of the
carrying amounts of inventories with reference to
the inventory ageing report, projections of expected
future sales of goods and management’s experience
and judgement. Based on this review, a write-down
of inventories will be made when the estimated net
realisable value of an item of inventory falls below
its carrying amount.

EREENGFERKR®RE  BHRKHEEELTE
BLAREREz &R MABEHEZEE ZRA
B REZEZ  FEANHEMGFAIZRERR
FREE R E LM -

Our audit procedures to assess the valuation of inventories

included the following:

BAEFEHEZEAEFRRATSA

assessing, on a sample basis, whether items in the
inventory ageing report were classified within the
appropriate ageing bracket by comparing individual items
in the report with underlying documentation, including
purchase invoices and goods received notes;
BREAEEF BB ERTRIE R EEEXY (B
RERBEZENEWEMRER) A EERERSRSETH
HEAREHBAEENRERR

assessing the Group’s inventory write-down and provision
policy with reference to the requirements of the
prevailing accounting standards;
RIBEREHZERTE - 5HE
BEEUR

evaluating the Group’s inventory write-down and

BEEB 2 FEME K

provision policy by comparing management’s forecast
markdowns for inventories with historical data or actual
sales subsequent to the reporting date for the current
and prior year;
FRERENRATFEERE 2 FEREKTIEA
HRERNNREELBEREREE  Fh E5EZ
TrE M E R BB R
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The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMNESTOAEEZSEE

The Group may sell aged inventories at a markdown
from the original price to avoid an accumulation of
slow-moving inventories. Accordingly, the actual
future selling prices of some items of slow-moving
inventories may fall below their cost.
EXENHBLHERERE N2 RBHHET
ﬁol%’%F%%ﬁﬁzﬁéﬁmﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁ
N

We identified the valuation of inventories as

%

a key audit matter because of the significant
judgement exercised by management in determining
appropriate inventory write-downs and provisions,
which involves estimating the duration of product
life cycles, predicting the amounts of inventories
which will be sold in the future and the markdowns
necessary to sell such inventories on a discounted
basis in future years all of which are inherently
uncertain.

BPEFEREINREARETFE  AREEE
EETEE N FEME B EKTRITEEARH
- mER P RAGTTERERBR 2 HERA -
BRARBEHENEEHELNAKRAFRELE
ZEFEMFELOTN - ZFAXHEFEER
THEE M o
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e assessing whether the inventory write-downs and

provisions at the reporting date were calculated on a
basis consistent with the Group’s inventory write-down
and provision policy by recalculating the inventory write-
downs and provisions based on expected selling prices;
FRRETEEENAEFEMERBE - FERER
TRz EEMERBEGRSIRE EEEFEME
MEBHBBER B EEHE

enquiring of management at operations level about any
expected changes in plans for markdowns or disposals of
inventories on hand and comparing their representations
with actual sales transactions subsequent to the
reporting date.
mEEEREARBATNEEEFFEFEIZE
MIEHEE  WHEREERAEERREBHRREER
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Assessing potential impairment of property, plant and equipment and prepaid land premium

AHEYE - BRERRBUR L HEEREARZEERE

Refer to note 3(e) to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies on page 80.

B2HERAMBERRME3 () MEBOAE Z EFTHR

The key audit matter
BRETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN EFT WM EEZEE

The electronic components market in Mainland
China is facing intense pricing pressures which
has negatively impacted the forecast sales of the
Group. On the basis of these factors, management
considered that indicators of potential impairment
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
prepaid land premium existed at 31 December 2016
and performed impairment assessments thereon.
PRAEEFTHMSEEGERTERS @ I
BEY BEEECHERBMELETNEE - ERXNZ
FRE BEERR RZE—RE+A=+
—RB BEEEYE BEARBARLHWEES
BNRZBEEREDRFE - WL ETRER
fly ©

Management performed impairment assessments
of the Group’s property, plant and equipment and
prepaid land premium using the value in use model
and compared the aggregate carrying values of the
property, plant and equipment and prepaid land
premium allocated to each cash-generating unit
(“CGU") with the net present values of the respective
discounted cash flow forecasts to determine the
amount of impairment which should be recognised
for the year, if any.
EREZRATEATEERRYE EEBYE B
P5 N a& s A K = 3t H B TR AN FOETTRE RS - I
IR ERReELSEN ([ReELEML]) 2
ME - BEMEKBEARTHWHAERMNFZEEE
BEEZEEMRAERERAZRNEFHE - UEE
RAFEERZHMESTE (E) °

Our audit procedures to assess potential impairment of
property, plant and equipment and prepaid land premium
included the following:

B EE - BERFREAR T HEEENR2E
BEZ B EFBREATRIA :

e evaluating management’s identification of CGUs and the
amounts of property, plant and equipment and prepaid
land premium allocated to each CGU;

s IMLEREBHREEABU L BRRIEESREE
EBRZME  BERZBUAR T HBEEENRZE
o

e evaluating the methodology adopted by management
in its impairment assessments with reference to the
requirements of the prevailing accounting standards;

e 2ZRITEH R EZ KA TR BN HEITRER G
R PTERAR 0%

e assessing and challenging the Group’s impairment
assessment models, which included assessing the
impairment indicators defined by the Group, evaluating
the discounted cash flow forecasts for each CGU and
considering whether these supported the carrying value
of the relevant assets;

o il BEEEZREMGEEARRELHES  BE
it EEERATZREDTR  AESHRELEENZ
MRBEREFARERZERZREE X HHBAEE
Z BRMEE
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The key audit matter
BREETEE

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BN EFSTOMEEFERETSE

We identified the assessment of potential
impairment of property, plant and equipment and
prepaid land premium as a key audit matter because
significant management judgement is involved
in determining whether there are indicators of
impairment and because estimating the recoverable
amounts and forecasting the future cash flows of
these assets involves inherent uncertainty and could
be subject to management bias.

BIEWE - BERREBEAR T EERNKZ
BEBEN G SARETSE AREERS
FERESFRELREREEEHE  UREZE
BEz2AREBERBARERRESREFER
BTN XERERILSAR -
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e critically examining the key assumptions, including

forecast revenue, future growth rates, future margins,
future cost growth rates and the discount rates, adopted
by management in its preparation of the discounted cash
flow forecasts by referring to industry and other available
third party information, the recent financial performance
of the Group’s trading and manufacturing operations and
management’s budgets and plans for the operations in
2017 and beyond;

HEREFERRE  BERATEA - REEREX - K
RAFEER - RRKNAIERERERE - B EREA
REEREARRFRMAZERE - WREITEREM
AEBZE=FE%  BEEEEFREEEB2A
HUBRAURERER T —tFR2BZEEE
2 FEE REtEl

evaluating the discount rates applied by management
in its discounted cash flow forecasts with reference to
available financial information of other companies in the
relevant industry and considering country and company
specific risk premiums;
K2ZRBOTENEMAR 2 I EFHBER - 7T
EEEREMRRERERANFEAZAMIAE  KFT
EAEE RS E R AR EREREE

performing a sensitivity analysis for the key variables
in the discounted cash flow forecasts, which included
assessing the effect of reasonably possible changes in
future revenue, future cost growth rates and the discount
rates to evaluate the impact on the conclusions reached
by management and to assess whether there were any
indicators of management bias.
HURFEREBA L FEZSETHRUEST - &
A ARRIBA - RRKARERELKBREREESE
BEHoE  UMEHEREBMERERZITE R
HESFEEEERRE ZEMIR -
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INFORMATION OTHER THAN THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
AND AUDITOR’S REPORT THEREON

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises all the information included in the
annual report, other than the consolidated financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there
is a material misstatement of this other information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and for
such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors are assisted by the Audit Committee in discharging
their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to
issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. This report is
made solely to you, as a body, in accordance with Section 90 of
the Bermuda Companies Act 1981, and for no other purpose. We
do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not a
guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgement and maintain professional scepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

e |dentify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations or the override of internal control.

e (Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used

and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

62

FLEEATAR B M IS R AR

BB RRHGAMBEHRRERES T7
£ B AR X 85 RR 1 B B 2 B K 5 RR BR AL ER
FRERRE  LHABERBMER 2ZEE
BE o RARBR(-AN—FAREQRZE)
FORERBBRRRE - Kb 2INRFE
PIEEMB D - R TERARE ZABRR
EEMALE FSEEEAEE -

BEFRBRBKFZFRE  BTEAEERR
(BREEN)ETZHEN &R —EXHE
AR R AL 7 A 5 AR BE 3% 3 - #8 RR PR AL T DA FR X
FFESEERROIE - RS EFAHEMEENKIE
MR A RER B AR A M SRR E M H IKBAR
B BHRAEL ZEFRE - RIBRER
R AT AR VEEE K

BPARBEEERSENETES ZTHEZ
— BEREZRHE  EEEBRBRETR
REXRERREE - HfI75 -

o BHINFHASFEMBHRRBNEFFHER
MEWz EXFERRARAR - FEZZR
RRET MAITEIERF - WRESERR
BEZENBRESEKMCERBHER -
MRS RERER  BE WEE
® o RGN SOR BN AR ESIZ £
DRItk 2K BE 35 3R f Lt 3 AK 2 B K88 BR PR AL
R RBEEIRMNIERMEB 2 B AR
PRt B =

o THRERFTABIATIES - ARRE
ZEFREF BAFEEY BERERD
EHZBRMEHERER -

o MEEEFMMEFBRZBEN  URA
tER 2 St EMMERKE 2 AR



Annual Report 12016 Fi3R

Independent Auditor’s Report
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e (Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

e (Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we
have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence and communicate with them all relationships and
other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence and, where applicable, related safeguards.
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in
extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this
independent auditor’s report is Sylvene Fong.

KPMG

Certified Public Accountants
8th Floor, Prince’s Building
10 Chater Road

Central, Hong Kong

15 March 2017
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Consolidated Income Statement
mreEWEKR

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—_T— N F1+ZA=1T—HIFE (LETIT)

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—A%F
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
gz F& T F#E T
Revenue LN 56 987,027 974,421
Cost of sales THE KA (823,475) (799,381)
Gross profit EX 163,552 175,040
Other income =N 6 13,928 6,818
Other gains, net H bl e F 58 6 29,630 1,493
Selling and distribution costs HEMDIHE A (51,108) (50,055)
Administrative expenses TEHEHA (143,723) (143,659)
Operating profit/(loss) KEER/(EE) 7 12,279 (10,363)
Changes in fair values of ) 2= 4 HR
interest rate swaps NREZE 9 2,198 (4,647)
Finance costs B 10 (29,897) (30,214)
Finance income B U A 11 4,750 8,580
Share of results of joint ventures  fE(h A LM 248 23 8,856 (1,296)
Share of results of an associate B —MEE R Rl ¥ E 24 (2,646) 544
Loss before tax MRBLBTEE (4,460) (37,396)
Income tax FTiS# 14 (8,642) (8,442)
Loss for the year KEEEIE (13,102) (45,838)
(Loss)/profit attributable to: FE(L (B18) /=7
— Equity holders of the Company — ANARIMRIEREE A (14,905) (45,095)
— Non-controlling interests — JEPE AR AR A = 1,803 (743)
(13,102) (45,838)
Loss per share for AARREZFEA
loss attributable to EhEEz2ERER
equity holders of the Company 15
— Basic — HAK (3.13) HK cents (9.43) HK cents &1l
— Diluted — e (3.13) HK cents (9.43) HK cents 781l

The notes on pages 72 to 200 form part of these consolidated MR E72E2F 2008 Z Ml Btk F4R 4 B 15 R
financial statements. T2 —EBMD ©
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Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Income
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expresse\d in Hong Kong dollars)
B2 —F—NNF+-HA=4—HIFE (LETIIT)

2016 2015
—E-RF —E-AF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
Hiat THT T
Loss for the year KFEEHE (13,102) (45,838)
Other comprehensive income: Hi 2wk : 14
Item that will not be reclassified ERTegEHmoEE
subsequently to profit or loss Bm 2 EH
— Assets revaluation surplus, — kIR EE
net of tax EHAE% (1,386) 9,599
— Remeasurement of net defined — MRHIBEER
benefit assets, net of tax AEATENEE 771 -
Items that may be reclassified EgnEH ESE
subsequently to profit or loss TE\J%—I%ZIE\E
— Changes in fair value of —AHEEREAR
available-for-sale investments B2 EE) 254 576
— Currency translation differences — [N =% (135,847) (129,427)
Other comprehensive loss for the REZHRRIER
_yearnetoftax AtozmgeE ... (36208) (119252)
Total comprehensive loss for the year A€ & HEIE4A%E (149,310) (165,090)
Total comprehensive loss L2 EEELRE
attributable to:
— Equity holders of the Company — NAEIRERE A (149,095) (164,081)
— Non-controlling interests — FEERR IR R i (215) (1,009)
(149,310) (165,090)

The notes on pages 72 to 200 form part of these consolidated BN FE72EFH2008 2 M it Bt F4R 6 B 53
financial statements. T2 —EbD °
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Consolidated Balance Sheet
mMAEBEERER

At 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZFE—NEFELZH=+—H (LETIT)

2016 2015
—E—RF —E-RE
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
ik FExT FEx
Non-current assets FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment W - BEN&E 17 625,220 711,069
Prepaid land premium T ETET K 18 65,699 71,728
Investment properties "B 19 150,396 141,530
Intangible assets EREE 21 2,401 1,113
Investments in joint ventures REBETEZIRE 23 96,461 95,916
Investment in an associate R—EBERE2RE 24 - 72,438
Prepayments on purchases WEWE BEEEZEZ
of property, plant and equipment BRI 17 56,570 66,060
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 20 14,462 12,701
Loans to a joint venture BLY—HeEtELER 23 100,077 -
Other prepayments HE i IEIFRI8 1,768 1,822
Deferred tax assets EETIRE = 32 16,400 13,396
Total non-current assets EMENEELE 1,129,454 1,187,773
Current assets REBERE
Inventories BE 25 456,560 463,518
Trade receivables BUE SRR 26 480,920 343,785
Prepayments, deposits JENFIE e R
and other receivables H {th e Uk K08 26 86,715 62,140
Loans to a joint venture BTY—HEeErELER 23 - 96,989
Due from joint ventures U A EPE KA 23 26,782 34,438
Due from an associate R —MEE AR 2B 24 - 3,651
Financial assets at fair value AREFAEGR L
through profit or loss TREE 27 45 51
Net defined benefit retirement REBARKFEIEE
assets 36 879 -
Tax recoverable B ey 2,921 944
Time deposits with banks SRITEETER 29 7,775 11,936
Cash and cash equivalents B kREHEY 29 283,116 347,797
Total current assets MEVEEEE 1,345,713 1,365,249
Current liabilities REAE
Trade and bills payables R ESEREER 30 183,419 191,786
Other payables and accrued HEMENFIEREFTAE
liabilities 93,429 64,045
Due to joint ventures EREEME KA 23 19,751 19,780
Derivative financial instruments TE€mI A 28 3,875 5,040
Tax payable FESTRE IR 5,333 4,625
Bank loans |ITER 31 559,815 505,477
Dividends payable e B 43 43
Total current liabilities mEAEAE 865,665 790,796
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At 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
RZFE—NEFELZH=+—H (LETST)

2016 2015
—E—RF —E—AF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
/ THETT FHETT
Non-current liabilities ERBAEE
Bank loans RITER 31 249,933 308,098
Derivative financial instruments PTESMIA 28 4,119 10,724
Provision for long service payments R EIRIE S B E 188 554
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIERE 3 32,084 34,955
Deferred income PRI A 33 10,603 11,635
_Total non-current liabilities =~ ¥ABAMAE 296,927 365966
NET ASSETS EEBE 1,312,575 1,396,260
EQUITY s
Share capital fi& s 34 47,555 47,624
Reserves Ee 42 1,194,855 1,344,354
Equity attributable to equity AATREZFEAEGESR
holders of the Company 1,242,410 1,391,978
Non-controlling interests FFIER R RS 70,165 4,282
TOTAL EQUITY ERsE 1,312,575 1,396,260

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on R-ZE—+F=A+HAKLESSH ERE

15 March 2017. R o
Kee Chor Lin Chan Tat Cheong, Alan
L FRIES
Director Director
EE EE

The notes on pages 72 to 200 form part of these consolidated BN E72E F 2008 2 M sT Atk H43 4 B 15
financial statements. T2 —&BMD ©
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
R-FE—ANF+_A=+—H (LEBETIIT)

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

RARRERE AELE
Non-
Share controlling Total
capital Reserves Total interests equity
R

BA  @E s BREE  musE
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Wi TR TER  FER TR TR

Balance at 1 January 2015 “E-RE-f-AzER 47,924 1515930 1,563,854 5,291 1,569,145
Loss for the year TEEHE - (45,095) (45,095) (743) (45,838)
Other comprehensive loss: EtrEEE:
Item that will not be reclassified LT eg nER
subsequently to profit or loss s8R
— hssefs revaluation surplus, net of tax ~ — HBRHEREEEERE Y - 9,599 9,599 - 9,599
Items that may be reclassified EEAeEHNNEE
subsequently to profit or loss B#2BE
— Changes in fair value of an - REERENR
available-for-sale investment 29 Iy - 576 576 - 576
— Currency translation differences -ERER ) - (129,161) (129,161) (266) (129,427)
Total comprehensive loss for BE-T-R4+-A=T-AL
the year ended 31 December 2015 ER/EABRLE - (164,081) (164,081) (1,009) (165,090)
Employee share option scheme EEBRETS
— Share options forfeited - BEBkE - (407) (407) - (407)
Shares repurchased EEERH 34 (300) (2,296) (2,596) - (2,596)
14 final dividend “Z-MEXHRE @ - (4,792) (4,792) - (4,792)
_______________________________________________________________________ N s A 1 R UL B
Balance at 31 December 2015 “E-RE+-A=+-AuEt 47,624 1,344,354 1,391,978 4,82 1,396,260
Balance at 1 January 2016 ZE-RE-f-RAzis 47,624 1,304,354 1,391,978 4,282 1,396,260
(Loss)/profit for the year AEE (B#B) /aH| - (14,905)  (14,905) 1,803 (13,102)
Other comprehensive loss: AHEESE :
Item that will not be reclassified LgregEnniz
subsequently to profit or loss BECER
— Assefs revaluation surplus, net oftax ~ —~ MIRBERAEERRSE @ - (1,386) (1,386) - (1,386)
— Remeasurement of net defined benefit  — BT AKEMHERTE
assets, net of tax RHEE @ - m m - m
Items that may be reclassified ERTRENIES
subsequently to profit or loss 28R =
— Changes in fair value of - HERADAE
an available-for-sale investment LB ® - 254 254 - 254
— Currency translation differences -ERER Iy, - (133,829)  (133,829) (2,018)  (135,847)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ended HE-E— X E+-A=1—HIt
31 December 2016 FE/EABERE = (149,095)  (149,095) (15)  (149,310)
Acquisition of a subsidiary KE—-ENEAR 4 - - = 66,098 66,098
Shares repurchased BEEERSR 34 (69) (404) (47m3) - (4713)
) (4oa) 4r3) 66098 65,625
Balance at 31 December 2016 “E-RETZACt-AzER 47,555 1,194,855 1,242,410 70,165 1,312,575

The notes on pages 72 to 200 form part of these consolidated S E72E 2008 Z T At FH4R S B 15 R

financial statements. R o
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Consolidated Cash Flow Statement
mEHRERER

For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)

B E—NFF A=+ —HILFE (LETHIR)

2016 2015
ZE—RE “E-EF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
fii FE7 FEn
Cash flows from operating activities RELEBERE
Loss before tax B E A ER (4,460) (37,396)
Adjustments for: ISR
Finance costs B 10 29,897 30,214
Fair value (gain)/loss on BEWMEZARE
investment properties (M=) /B8 6 (10,756) 525
Write-off of other payables A FE 5 FRIE I 8 6 (6,594) (2,491)
Share of results of joint ventures EREEEEE (8,856) 1,296
Share of results of an associate JER—FEEE DR 2 EE 2,646 (544)
Finance income B TSI 11 (4,750) (8,580)
(Loss)/gain on disposal of property, HEWE  WENERE
plant and equipment (B8) /M= 7 (6,212) 46
Depreciation of property, ¥ - BENMREBITE
plant and equipment 7 73,499 88,704
Amortisation of prepaid land T FH E BT R £
premium 7 1,547 1,643
Amortisation of intangible assets B EESHE 7 885 777
Share options forfeited BWE B 8 - (407)
Deferred income recognised BRI ATER BB
as income 7 (307) (327)
Impairment loss on AHEREL
an available-for-sale investment BEER 6 - 1,667
Write-down of inventories FEMR 7 2,440 1,177
Reversal of write-down of inventories &M EE 7 (3,644) (2,794)
Impairment of trade receivables U E 2R FURE 7 9,979 1,563
Fair value loss on UAREFAEBRZZ
financial assets at CREEZARE
fair value through profit or loss &8 7 6 8
Unrealised fair value gain on PESRTEY REE
derivative financial instruments AR EWRR (7,770) (1,074)
67,550 74,007
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FERL/(38Em) 5,514 (41,593)
Increase in trade receivables JEULE 5 BR8N (75,492) (44,256)
Decrease in prepayments, TBNFIE - me
deposits and other receivables =y e D A 6,532 14,198
Increase in net defined benefit ARERBHMERKETE
retirement assets BELM 29 -
Decrease in amounts due from e & & b E IR D
joint ventures 8,236 4,149
Decrease in amounts due from JEU —FEEBtE N E 2
an associate FRIER D 3,651 34,780
Decrease in amounts due to EREECERERD
joint ventures (29) (559)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and JERE SRR REE
bills payables CRLD) /8 (38,660) 30,234
Increase in other payables HipEMNFIERESERE
and accrued liabilities pe:b)l 5,978 4,287
Decrease in provision for RERE S BE
long service payments B (405) (486)
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For the year ended 31 December 2016 (Expressed in Hong Kong dollars)
BE—_T— N F1+ZA=1T—HIFE (LETIT)

2016 2015
—E—XE —E-ffF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
gz FTET FET
Cash (used in)/generated from & (A I8 E
operations (17,096) 74,761
Hong Kong profits tax paid, net BERNEBNEHFE (2,552) (3,518)
The PRC and overseas taxes paid, net BT AR B R AN TR R RR (8,676) (1,369)
Net cash (outflow)/inflow from REER RS
operating activities () IRARE (28,324) 69,874
Cash flows from investing activities RETEZEHERE
Prepayments on purchases of BEME BEX
property, plant and equipment R BNFE (1,001) (977)
Purchases of property, plant and BEDE BEX
equipment B (9,642) (24,705)
Acquisition of a subsidiary, net of cash WE—fHHE AR
N%IRE 44 58,118 -
Cash used in acquisition of WA HEERE
an available-for-sale investment FrRIE S (1,579) -
Interest received S UF B 4,750 8,580
Proceeds from disposal of HEWE  HEX
property, plant and equipment SEEIE 10,869 549
(Increase)/decrease in advances to BYREMEIBR
joint ventures () /Ed (7,733) 1,514
Decrease in time deposits $R1TE BfF BURL A
with banks 4,161 740
Net cash inflow/(outflow) from RETEHZHS
investing activities RAICRE) B8 57,943 (14,299)
Cash flows from financing activities REZH2EHERE
Proceeds from new bank loans LR ITE RS RUE 481,529 395,551
Repayment of bank loans BERITER (507,070) (439,711)
Re-purchase of shares EAmlEy) (473) (2,596)
Interest paid ERFE (29,897) (30,214)
Dividends paid BATRE = (4,790)
Net cash outflow from BMETBEERHFE
financing activities (55,911) (81,760)
Net decrease in cash and BeRBEEEN2RHDFE
cash equivalents (26,292) (26,185)
Effect of foreign exchange SEERSE CHEFE
rate changes, net (38,389) (26,857)
Cash and cash equivalents at FAzREeRBEEESEY
beginning of year 29 347,797 400,839
Cash and cash equivalents at ERZBEERBELEEY
end of year 29 283,116 347,797

HNRENREF200B ZMERFEHEE M H
RZ—EMD ©

The notes on pages 72 to 200 form part of these consolidated
financial statements.
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(Expressed in Hong Kong dollars unless otherwise indicated)

(B5 B HI) - HLETIT)

1

72

GENERAL INFORMATION

The principal activities of the Company and the Group are
the manufacturing and the trading of electronic components
and raw materials.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in
Bermuda. The address of its registered office is Clarendon
House, 2 Church Street, Hamilton HM11, Bermuda.

The Company has its primary listing on the Stock Exchange.

These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Hong Kong dollars, unless otherwise stated. These
consolidated financial statements have been approved for
issue by the Board on 15 March 2017.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong Financial Reporting
Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASS”)
and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA"). They have
been prepared under the historical cost convention, except
for land and buildings, investment properties, derivative
financial instruments, net defined benefit retirement assets,
financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss and available-for-sale investments, which have
been measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity
with HKFRS requires the use of certain critical accounting
estimates. It also requires management to exercise its
judgement in the process of applying the Group’s accounting
policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement
or complexity, or areas where assumptions and estimates
are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in Note 4.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

(@) The following new or amended standards are also
mandatory for the first time for the financial year
beginning on or after 1 January 2016 but either have no
significant impact to the Group’s results and financial
position or are not currently relevant to the Group:

e Amendments to HKFRS 11 — Accounting for
acquisitions of interests in joint operations;

e Amendments to HKAS 16 and HKAS 38 — Clarification
of acceptable methods of depreciation and
amortisation;

e Annual improvements to HKFRSs 2012-2014 cycle; and

e Amendments to HKAS 1 — Disclosure initiative.

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

(a)Subsidiaries

(i) Consolidation

A subsidiary is an entity (including a structured
entity) over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or
has rights to, variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect
those returns through its power over the entity.
Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which control is transferred to the Group. They are
deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

AR A BT R T
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)Subsidiaries (Continued)

74

(i) Consolidation (Continued)

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method
to account for business combinations. The
consideration transferred for the acquisition
of a subsidiary is the fair values of the assets
transferred, the liabilities incurred to the
former owners of the acquiree and the equity
interests issued by the Group. The consideration
transferred includes the fair value of any
asset or liability resulting from a contingent
consideration arrangement. Identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities and contingent
liabilities assumed in a business combination
are measured initially at their fair values at
the acquisition date. The Group recognises
any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at
fair value or at the non-controlling interest’s
proportionate share of the recognised amounts
of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets.

Acquisition-related costs are expensed as
incurred.

If the business combination is achieved in
stages, the acquisition date carrying value of
the acquirer’s previously held equity interest
in the acquiree is remeasured to fair value at
the acquisition date; any gains or losses arising
from such remeasurement are recognised in
profit or loss.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i) Consolidation (Continued)

(@)

Business combinations (Continued)

Any contingent consideration to be transferred
by the Group is recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Subsequent changes to the fair
value of the contingent consideration that is
deemed to be an asset or liability is recognised
in accordance with HKAS 39 either in profit or
loss or as a change to other comprehensive
income. Contingent consideration that is
classified as equity is not remeasured, and its
subsequent settlement is accounted for within
equity.

The excess of the consideration transferred,
the amount of any non-controlling interest in
the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair value
of any previous equity interest in the acquiree
over the fair value of the identifiable net assets
acquired is recorded as goodwill. If the total
of consideration transferred, non-controlling
interest recognised and previously held interest
measured is less than the fair value of the net
assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case of
a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised
directly in the consolidated income statement.

Changes in ownership interests in
subsidiaries without change of contro
Transactions with non-controlling interests
that do not result in loss of control are
accounted for as equity transactions - that
is, as transactions with the owners of the
subsidiary in their capacity as owners of the
subsidiary. The difference between fair value of
any consideration paid and the relevant share
acquired of the carrying amount of net assets
of the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or
losses on disposals to non-controlling interests
are also recorded in equity.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(a)Subsidiaries (Continued)

(i) Consolidation (Continued)

76

(c) Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any
retained interest in the entity is re-measured
to its fair value at the date when control is
lost, with the change in carrying amount
recognised in profit or loss. The fair value is
the initial carrying amount for the purposes
of subsequently accounting for the retained
interest as an associate, joint venture or
financial asset. In addition, any amounts
previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in respect of that entity are accounted
for as if the Group had directly disposed of
the related assets or liabilities. This may mean
that amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.

(ii) Company’s balance sheet

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost
less impairment. Cost includes direct attributable
costs of investment. The results of subsidiaries
are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in
subsidiaries is required when there is any indication
that the investment is impaired or upon receiving
dividends from these investments if the dividend
exceeds the total comprehensive income of the
subsidiary in the period the dividend is declared
or if the carrying amount of the investment in the
separate financial statements exceeds the carrying
amount in the consolidated financial statements of
the investee’s net assets including goodwill.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FE@:tHEHME ()

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)Joint ventures (h) &

A joint venture is an arrangement whereby the Group
or Company and other parties contractually agree to
share control of the arrangement, and have rights to
the net assets of the arrangement. Investment in joint
ventures are accounted for in the consolidated financial
statements using the equity method.

Under the equity method of accounting, interests in joint
ventures are initially recognised at cost and adjusted
thereafter to recognise the Group’s share of the post-
acquisition profits or losses and movements in other
comprehensive income. When the Group’s share of
losses in a joint venture equals or exceeds its interests
in the joint ventures (which includes any long-term
interests that, in substance, form part of the Group’s
net investment in the joint ventures), the Group does
not recognise further losses, unless it has incurred
obligations or made payments on behalf of the joint
ventures.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised
gains on transactions between group companies are
eliminated. Unrealised losses are also eliminated.
When necessary, amounts reported by subsidiaries have
been adjusted to conform with the Group’s accounting
policies.

Unrealised gains on transactions between the Group
and its joint ventures are eliminated to the extent of the
Group’s interest in the joint ventures. Unrealised losses
are also eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred.
Accounting policies of the joint ventures have been
changed where necessary to ensure consistency with the
policies adopted by the Group.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Associate

78

An associate is an entity over which the Group
has significant influence but not control, generally
accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and
50% of the voting rights. Investment in an associate is
accounted for using the equity method of accounting.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased
or decreased to recognise the investor’'s share of the
profit or loss of the investee after the date of acquisition.
The Group’s investment in an associate includes goodwill
identified on acquisition.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but
significant influence is retained, only a proportionate
share of the amounts previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss
where appropriate.

The Group’s share of post-acquisition profit or loss
is recognised in the consolidated income statement,
and its share of post-acquisition movements in
other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment
to the carrying amount of the investment. When the
Group’s share of losses in an associate equals or
exceeds its interest in the associate, including any
other unsecured receivables, the Group does not
recognise further losses, unless it has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.

The Group determines at each reporting date whether
there is any objective evidence that the investment in
the associate is impaired. If this is the case, the Group
calculates the amount of impairment as the difference
between the recoverable amount of the associate and
its carrying value and recognises the amount adjacent
0 “’share of results of an associate” in the consolidated
income statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Associate (Continued)

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and
downstream transactions between the Group and
its associate are recognised in the Group’s financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor’s
interests in the associates. Unrealised losses are
eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the asset transferred. Accounting
policies of associate have been changed where necessary
to ensure consistency with the policies adopted by the
Group.

Gains or losses on dilution of equity interest in an
associate are recognised in the consolidated income
statement.

(d)Goodwill

Goodwill arises on the acquisition of subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associate represents the excess of the
consideration transferred, the amount of any non-
controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-
date fair value of any previous equity interest in the
acquiree over the fair value of the identified net assets
acquired.

For the purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired
in a business combination is allocated to each of the
cash-generating units (“CGUs”), or groups of CGUSs,
that is expected to benefit from the synergies of the
combination. Each unit or group of units to which the
goodwill is allocated represents the lowest level within
the entity at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes. Goodwill is monitored at the
operating segment level.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(d)Goodwill (Continued)

Goodwill impairment reviews are undertaken annually or
more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate a potential impairment. The carrying value of
goodwill is compared to the recoverable amount, which
is the higher of value in use and the fair value less costs
of disposal. Any impairment is recognised immediately
as an expense and is not subsequently reversed.

(e) Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that have an indefinite useful life are not
subject to amortisation and are tested annually for
impairment. Assets that are subject to amortisation are
reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not
be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and
value in use. For the purposes of assessing impairment,
assets are grouped at the lowest levels for which there
are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that
suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible
reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.

(f) Non-current assets held-for-sale

80

Non-current assets are classified as held-for-sale when
their carrying amount is to be recovered principally
through a sale transaction and a sale is considered
highly probable. The non-current assets are stated
at the lower of carrying amount and fair value less
costs of disposal. Deferred tax assets, assets arising
from employee benefits, financial assets (other than
investments in subsidiaries and associates) and
investment properties, even if held-for-sale, would
continue to be measured in accordance with the policies
set out elsewhere in Note 3.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FTE@:HEME (8)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g)Property, plant and equipment %  BMEKRZE

Leasehold land classified as finance lease and buildings,
comprise mainly factories and offices, are stated at
revalued amount. Valuations are performed frequently
enough to ensure that the fair value of a revalued asset
does not differ materially from its carrying amount.
Changes in the values of property, plant and equipment
are dealt with as movements in the asset revaluation
reserve. If the total of this reserve is insufficient to cover
a deficit, on an individual asset basis, the excess of the
deficit is charged to the consolidated income statement.
Any subsequent revaluation surplus is credited to the
consolidated income statement to the extent of the
deficit previously charged. On disposal of a revalued
asset, the relevant portion of the asset revaluation
reserve realised in respect of previous valuations
is transferred to retained profits as a movement in
reserves.

All other property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, is stated at historical cost less
depreciation. Historical cost includes expenditure that is
directly attributable to the acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying
amount or recognised as a separate asset, as
appropriate, only when it is probable that future
economic benefits associated with the item will flow to
the Group and the cost of the item can be measured
reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced part is
derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to the consolidated income statement during
the financial period in which they are incurred.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(g) Property, plant and equipment

82

(Continued)

Leasehold land classified as finance lease commences
amortisation from the time when the land interest
becomes available for its intended use. Amortisation
of leasehold land classified as finance lease and
depreciation of other assets is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost or revalued
amounts to their residual values, where appropriate,
using their estimated depreciation rates, as follows:

- Leasehold land classified as finance Over the

lease lease terms
- Buildings 2%
- Machinery and equipment 9% — 20%

- Furniture and fixtures 18% — 20%
18% — 20%

9% — 20%

- Motor vehicles
- Leasehold improvements

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed,
and adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting
period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately
to its recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount
is greater than its estimated recoverable amount. Gains
and losses on disposals are determined by comparing
the proceeds with the carrying amount and are
recognised in the consolidated income statement.

Construction in progress represents factory buildings,
office premises and workers’ dormitories and related
infrastructure projects under construction, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and
is not depreciated. Cost comprises the direct costs
of construction during the period of construction.
Construction in progress is reclassified to the
appropriate category of property, plant and equipment
when completed and ready for use.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FTE@:HEME (8)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(hEREM=

(h)Investment properties

Investment properties, principally comprising leasehold
land and buildings, are held for long-term rental yields
or for capital appreciation or both, and that are not
occupied by the Group. They also include properties
that are being constructed or developed for future use
as investment properties. Investment properties are
initially measured at cost, including related transaction
costs and where applicable borrowing costs. After initial
recognition, investment properties are carried at fair
value, representing open market value determined at
each reporting date by external valuers. Fair value is
based on active market prices, adjusted, if necessary,
for any difference in the nature, location or condition
of the specific asset. If the information is not available,
the Group uses alternative valuation methods such as
recent prices on less active markets or discounted cash
flow projections. Changes in fair values are recorded in
the consolidated income statement as part of a valuation
gain or loss in “other gains - net”.

If an item of properties, plant and equipment becomes
an investment property because its use has changed,
any difference resulting between the carrying amount
and the fair value of this item at the date of transfer
is recognised in equity as a revaluation of properties,
plant and equipment under HKAS 16. If a fair value
gain reverses a previous impairment loss, the gain is
recognised in the income statement. Any balance of the
decrease is recognised as an expense in the consolidated
income statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(i) Intangible assets

Research and development costs, and
computer software

Costs associated with research activities and maintaining
computer software programmes are recognised as an
expense as incurred. Development costs that are directly
attributable to the design and testing of identifiable
assets controlled by the Group are recognised as
intangible assets when the following criteria are met:

(a) it is technically feasible to complete the product so
that it will be available for use;

(b) management intends to complete the product and
use or sell it;

(c) there is an ability to use or sell the product;

(d) it can be demonstrated how the product will
generate probable future economic benefits;

(e) adequate technical, financial and other resources
to complete the development and to use or sell the
product are available; and

(f) the expenditure attributable to the product during
its development can be reliably measured.

Directly attributable costs that are capitalised as part of
the product include the product development employee
costs and an appropriate portion of relevant overheads.
Other development expenditures that do not meet
these criteria are recognised as an expense as incurred.
Development costs previously recognised as an expense
are not recognised as an asset in a subsequent period.

Product development costs recognised as assets are

amortised over their estimated useful lives, which does
not exceed four years.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(j) Leases

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are
classified as operating leases. Payments made under
operating leases (net of any incentives received from
the lessor) are charged to the consolidated income
statement on a straight-line basis over the period of the
lease.

(k) Financial assets

The Group classifies its financial assets in the following
categories: available-for-sale, loans and receivables, and
at fair value through profit or loss. The classification
depends on the purpose for which the financial
assets were acquired. Management determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition.

(i) Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets are non-derivative
financial assets that are either designated as
available for sale or are not classified in any of
the other categories. They are included in non-
current assets unless the investment matures or
management intends to dispose of it within 12
months of the end of the reporting period.

(ii) Loans and receivables

Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are
not quoted in an active market. They are included
in current assets, except for the amounts that are
settled or expected to be settled more than 12
months after the end of the reporting period, which
are classified as non-current assets.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

86

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(k) Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
are financial assets held for trading. Financial assets
are classified as held for trading if they are acquired
principally for the purpose of selling in short term.
Derivatives are also classified as held for trading
unless they are designated as hedges. Assets in this
category are classified as current assets if expected
to be settled within 12 months; otherwise, that are
classified as non-current.

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets
are recognised on the trade-date — the date on
which the Group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Investments are initially recognised at fair
value plus transaction costs for all financial assets
not carried at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial assets carried at fair value through profit
or loss are initially recognised at fair value, and
transaction costs are expensed in the consolidated
income statement. Financial assets are derecognised
when the rights to receive cash flows from the
investments have expired or have been transferred
and the Group has transferred substantially all
risks and rewards of ownership. Available-for-sale
financial assets and financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss are subsequently carried at
fair value. Loans and receivables are subsequently
carried at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value
of the ‘financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss’ category are presented in the consolidated
income statement in the period in which they
arise. Dividend income from financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated income statement as part of other
income when the Group’s right to receive payments
is established.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FE@:tHEME ()

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(K EmMEE (&)

(i) AR A EFABRZEHE

(k) Financial assets (Continued)

(i) Financial assets at fair value through

profit or loss (Continued)

When securities classified as available-for-sale
are sold or impaired, the accumulated fair value
adjustments recognised in equity are included in the
consolidated income statement.

Interest on available-for-sale securities calculated
using the effective interest method is recognised
in the consolidated income statement as part of
other income. Dividends on available-for-sale equity
instruments are recognised in the consolidated
income statement as part of other income when the
Group’s right to receive payments is established.

() Impairment of financial assets

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or group of financial assets is
impaired. A financial asset or a group of financial
assets is impaired and impairment losses are
incurred only if there is objective evidence of
impairment as a result of one or more events that
occurred after the initial recognition of the asset (a
‘loss event’) and that loss event (or events) has an
impact on the estimated future cash flows of the
financial asset or group of financial assets that can
be reliably estimated.

Evidence of impairment may include indications that
the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing
significant financial difficulty, default or delinquency
in interest or principal payments, the probability
that they will enter bankruptcy or other financial
reorganisation, and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated
future cash flows, such as changes in arrears or
economic conditions that correlate with defaults.

Z= (%)
WOBRAIHEEZFEFREE
HERE IEREaRNERZ
R A A ERBFAGRERAR
A o

RABERMEEFEZAHLE
EHLZME - RERS Wt R R
REMBAZ — 8 - EAXAKE
WK IR 2 R M BESL B - AT i
ERATEZBENZES KSR
NiER/EMWAZ —HB1 °

() EMEERE

(i) SUBSERATEZEE

REBERN S REBEEREFTA
ERETFERER A% —H4
ERMEELEABRE - AEAE
BEBBRTIRNNIHERAEER
BE-—RIEREHFEREIRRA
E(EHERSEMN])  mMEREBES
HHZERZACREE 2G5
ARRRESMBEKA G EMT 2
g SREENEHBAMERE
EREREE -

BEZBRABRE A —HER
AEBREATBE S - RE%E
RMEHAE - KB A BEMEAR
ERETHMMEER ARk
RABRBBRRMARRRE
MERERD  MEZHERL
FEB SR BN ECF o

87



Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited‘ ERRRERARAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A BRI A

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

() Impairment of financial assets

88

(Continued)

(i) Assets carried at amortised cost

(Continued)

For loans and receivables category, the amount of
the loss is measured as the difference between the
asset’s carrying amount and the present value of
estimated future cash flows (excluding future credit
losses that have not been incurred) discounted at
the financial asset’s original effective interest rate.
The carrying amount of the asset is reduced and the
amount of the loss is recognised in the consolidated
income statement. If a loan or held-to-maturity
investment has a variable interest rate, the discount
rate for measuring any impairment loss is the
current effective interest rate determined under the
contract. As a practical expedient, the Group may
measure impairment on the basis of an instrument’s
fair value using an observable market price.

If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the
impairment loss decreases and the decrease can
be related objectively to an event occurring after
the impairment was recognised, the reversal of the
previously recognised impairment loss is recognised
in the consolidated income statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FTE@:HEME (8)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(I) Impairment of financial assets () eRmEERE ()
(Continued)

(ii) Available-for-sale financial assets (iAHEEEmERE

The Group assesses at the end of each reporting
period whether there is objective evidence that
a financial asset or a group of financial assets
is impaired. For debt securities, the Group uses
the criteria referred to in (i) above. In the case of
equity investments classified as available-for-sale, a
significant or prolonged decline in the fair value of
the security below its cost is also evidence that the
assets are impaired. If any such evidence exists for
available-for-sale financial assets, the cumulative
loss — measured as the difference between the
acquisition cost and the current fair value, less any
impairment loss on that financial asset previously
recognised in profit or loss —is removed from
equity and recognised in profit or loss. Impairment
losses recognised in the consolidated income
statement on equity instruments are not reversed
through the consolidated income statement. If,
in a subsequent period, the fair value of a debt
instrument classified as available for sale increases
and the increase can be objectively related to an
event occurring after the impairment loss was
recognised in profit or loss, the impairment loss
is reversed through the consolidated income
statement.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

90

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(m) Derivative financial instruments

The Group uses derivative financial instruments such
as forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps
to manage its risks associated with interest rate and
foreign currency fluctuations. Such derivative financial
instruments are initially recognised at fair value on
the date a derivative contract is entered into and are
subsequently remeasured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as assets when the fair value is positive and as
liabilities when the fair value is negative.

Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value on
derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are
taken directly to the consolidated income statement.

(n)Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress and
finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct labour
and related production overheads. Net realisable value
is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less applicable variable selling expenses.

(o)Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for
merchandise sold in the ordinary course of business. If
collection of trade and other receivables is expected in
one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer), they are classified as current assets.
If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade and other receivables are recognised initially at
fair value and subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the effective interest method, less provision for
impairment.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FE@:tHEHME ()
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

P RERBEZHEY

(p)Cash and cash equivalents

In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash
and cash equivalents include cash in hand, deposits
held at call with banks, other short-term highly liquid
investments with original maturity of three months or
less, and bank overdrafts. In consolidated and company
balance sheet, bank overdrafts are shown within
borrowings in current liabilities.

(q)Trade and bills payables and other

payables

Trade and bills payables are obligations to pay for
goods that have been acquired in the ordinary course
of business from suppliers. Payables are classified as
current liabilities if payment is due within one year or
less (or in the normal operating cycle of the business
if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current
liabilities.

Payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the
effective interest method.

(r) Provision

Provision is recognised when the Group has a present
obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of a past
event; it is probable that a future outflow of resources
will be required to settle the obligation; and the amount
has been reliably estimated.

(s) Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental
costs directly attributable to the issue of new shares or
options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of tax,
from the proceeds.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t) Income tax

92

The tax expense for the Year comprises current and
deferred tax. Tax is recognised in the consolidated
income statement, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or
directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised
in other comprehensive income or directly in equity,
respectively.

(i) Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on
the basis of the tax laws enacted or substantively
enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associate operate and generate taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken
in tax returns with respect to situations in which
applicable tax regulation is subject to interpretation.
It establishes provisions where appropriate on the
basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

(ii) Deferred income tax

(a) Inside basis differences

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the
liability method, on temporary differences
arising between the tax bases of assets and
liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However,
deferred income tax is not accounted for if it
arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction
affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or
loss. Deferred income tax is determined using
tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date
and are expected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the
deferred income tax liability is settled.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(t) Income tax (Continued)
(ii) Deferred income tax (Continued)

(a) Inside basis differences (Continued)
Deferred income tax assets are recognised only
to the extent that it is probable that future
taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.

(b) Outside basis differences

Deferred income tax is provided on temporary
differences arising from investments in
subsidiaries, joint ventures and an associate,
except for deferred income tax liability where
the timing of the reversal of the temporary
difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

(i) Offsetting

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right to offset
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and
when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities
relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention
to settle the balances on a net basis.

(u)Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. Where the grant relates to the prepaid
land premium, the fair value is included in non-current
liabilities as deferred income. Deferred income is
credited to the consolidated income statement on a
straight-line basis over the lease term of the associated
assets.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(v) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised when it is probable that the
economic benefits will flow to the Group and when the
revenue can be measured reliably.

Income from the sale of goods is recognised when
significant risks and rewards of ownership have been
transferred to the buyer, which generally coincides with
the time when the goods are delivered to customers and
title has passed.

Interest income is recognised on a time-proportion basis
using the effective interest method.

Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
payment is established.

Rental income from investment property is recognised
in the consolidated income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

(w)Employee benefits

94

(i) Share option scheme

The Group operates the Share Option Scheme for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success
of the Group’s operations. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payment transactions, whereby
employees render services as consideration for
equity instruments (“equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions with
employees is measured by reference to the fair
value at the date at which they are granted. The
fair value is determined by using a binomial model,
further details of which are given in Note 35 to the
financial statements. In valuing the granting of share
options, no account is taken of any performance
conditions, other than conditions linked to the price
of the shares of the Company (“market conditions”),
if applicable.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w)Employee benefits (Continued)

(i) Share option scheme (Continued)

(ii)

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/
or service conditions are fulfilled, ending on the
date on which the relevant employees become
fully entitled to the award (the “vesting date”). The
cumulative expense recognised for equity-settled
transactions at each balance sheet date until the
vesting date reflects the extent to which the vesting
period has expired and the Group’s best estimate of
the number of equity instruments that will ultimately
vest. The charge or credit to the consolidated
income statement for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as
at the beginning and end of that period.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution
Mandatory Provident Fund retirement benefit
scheme (the “MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory
Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for those
employees who are eligible to participate in the
MPF Scheme. Contributions are made based on a
percentage of the employees’ basic salaries and are
charged to the consolidated income statement as
they become payable in accordance with the rules
of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF Scheme
are held separately from those of the Group in
an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(w)Employee benefits (Continued)

96

(i) Pension schemes (Continued)

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in the PRC are required to participate in
a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are
required to contribute a certain percentage of
their payroll costs to the central pension scheme.
The contributions are charged to the consolidated
income statement as they become payable in
accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.

(iii) Defined benefit retirement plan

obligations

The Group’s net obligation in respect of defined
benefit retirement plans is calculated separately
for each plan by estimating the amount of future
benefit that employees have earned in return for
their service in the current and prior periods; that
benefit is discounted to determine the present value
and the fair value of any plan assets is deducted.
The calculation is performed by a qualified actuary
using the projected unit credit method. When the
calculation results in a benefit to the Group, the
recognised asset is limited to the present value
of economic benefits available in the form of any
future refunds from the plan or reductions in future
contributions to the plan.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE B RR AT

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FE@:tHEHME ()

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
wEEREA (&)

(iii) RERANBRAEFTEEE

(w)Employee benefits (Continued)

(iii) Defined benefit retirement plan

obligations (Continued)

Service cost and net interest expense (income)
on the net defined benefit liability (asset) are
recognised in profit or loss and allocated by function
as part of “cost of sales”, “selling and distribution
costs” or “administrative expenses”. Current service
cost is measured as the increase in the present
value of the defined benefit obligation resulting
from employee service in the current period. When
the benefits of a plan are changed, or when a plan
is curtailed, the portion of the changed benefit
related to past service by employees, or the gain
or loss on curtailment, is recognised as an expense
in profit or loss at the earlier of when the plan
amendment or curtailment occurs and when related
restructuring costs or termination benefits are
recognised. Net interest expense (income) for the
period is determined by applying the discount rate
used to measure the defined benefit obligation at
the beginning of the reporting period to the net
defined benefit liability (asset). The discount rate is
the yield at the end of the reporting period on high
quality corporate bonds that have maturity dates
approximating the terms of the group’s obligations.

Remeasurements arising from defined benefit
retirement plans are recognised in other
comprehensive income and reflected immediately
in retained earnings. Remeasurements comprise
actuarial gains and losses, the return on plan assets
(excluding amounts included in net interest on the
net defined benefit liability (asset)) and any change
in the effect of the asset ceiling (excluding amounts
included in net interest on the net defined benefit
liability (asset)).
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(x) Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of
transaction costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently
carried at amortised cost; any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption
value is recognised as borrowing costs over the period
of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the
Group has an unconditional right to defer settlement of
the liability for at least 12 months after the end of the
reporting period.

(y) Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period
of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The
capitalisation of such borrowing costs ceases when the
assets are substantially ready for their intended use
or sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation. All other
borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

(z) Dividends

98

Final dividends proposed by the Directors are classified
as a separate allocation of retained profits within the
equity section of the balance sheet, until they have been
approved by the shareholders in a general meeting.
When these dividends have been approved by the
shareholders and declared, they are recognised as a
[iability.

Interim dividends are recognised as a liability when they
have been approved by the shareholders in a general
meeting.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(aa)Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner
consistent with the internal reporting provided to
the chief operating decision-maker of the Group,
which is considered as the Group’s executive team,
comprising all executive directors and headed by the
managing director. The chief operating decision-maker
is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments based on the
entity-wide financial information.

(ab)Foreign currency translation

(i) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of
the Group’s entities are measured using the currency
of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented
in HKD, which is the Company’s functional and the
Group’s presentation currency.

(ii) Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into
the functional currency using the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuation where items are re-measured. Foreign
exchange gains and losses resulting from the
settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are recognised in the consolidated
income statement.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities
denominated in foreign currency classified as
available-for-sale are analysed between translation
differences resulting from changes in the amortised
cost of the security and other changes in the
carrying amount of the security. Translation
differences related to changes in amortised cost
are recognised in profit or loss, and other changes
in carrying amount are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

100

POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(ab)Foreign currency translation
(Continued)

(ii) Transactions and balances (Continued)

Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets and liabilities such as equities held at fair
value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss.
Translation differences on non-monetary financial
assets, such as equities classified as available for
sale, are included in other comprehensive income.

(iii) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group
entities (none of which has the currency of a
hyper-inflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency
are translated into the presentation currency as
follows:

(a) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet
presented are translated at the closing rate at
the date of that balance sheet;

(b) income and expenses for each income statement
are translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the rate on the
dates of the transactions); and

(c) all resulting currency translation differences are
recognised in other comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the
acquisition of a foreign entity are treated as assets
and liabilities of the foreign entity and translated
at the closing rate. Currency translation differences
arising are recognised in other comprehensive
income.
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fRE B RR AT

3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3 FTE@:HEME (8)

POLICIES (CONTINUED)
(ac) B TE AR

(ac) Financial guarantee

Financial guarantee contracts are contracts that require
the issuer to make specified payments to reimburse
the holder for a loss it incurs because a specified
debtor fails to make payments when due, in accordance
with the terms of a debt instrument. Such financial
guarantees are given to banks, financial institutions and
other bodies on behalf of subsidiaries to secure loans,
overdrafts and other banking facilities.

Financial guarantees are initially recognised in the
financial statements at fair value on the date the
guarantee was given. Subsequent to initial recognition,
the Company’s liabilities under such guarantees are
measured at the higher of the initial amount, less
amortisation of fees recognised in accordance with HKAS
18, and the best estimate of the amount required to
settle the guarantee. These estimates are determined
based on experience of similar transactions and history
of past losses, supplemented by the judgement of
management. The fee income earned is recognised on
a straight-line basis over the life of the guarantee. Any
increase in the liability relating to guarantees is reported
in the consolidated income statement.

(ad)Repurchase of shares

Where any group company purchases the Company’s
equity share capital, the considerations paid, including
any directly attributable incremental costs, is deducted
from equity attributable to the Company’s equity holders
until the shares are cancelled or reissued. Where such
shares are subsequently reissued, any consideration
received (net of any directly attributable incremental
transaction costs) is included in equity attributable to
the Company’s equity holders.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning

the future. As the future is inherently uncertain, actual

results may differ from these estimates. The estimates and

assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material

adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities

within the next financial year are addressed below.

(i) Fair values of properties

102

The fair values of investment properties, land and
buildings are determined at the end of each reporting
period by independent professional valuers. The fair
values of certain land and buildings in the PRC are
determined on a depreciated replacement cost basis.
This methodology is based on an estimate of the market
value for the existing use of the land, plus the current
cost of replacement of the existing structures less
deductions for physical deterioration and all relevant
forms of obsolescence and optimisation. The fair values
of the remaining land and buildings and investment
properties are determined on an open market value
basis by reference to comparable market transactions.

The fair values of investment properties and land
and buildings would change by approximately
HK$15,040,000 and HK$23,385,000, respectively, if the
market values of comparable properties differ by 10%
from the Group’s estimates.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND 4 BRI HETRHAE (8)

JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)
(iM% > BERREZ AEA

(ii)Useful lives and impairment of

property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated
useful lives, and related depreciation charges for its
property, plant and equipment. This estimate is based

FH R RIE
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BEEETEME BEM

REEAAERFHEABITESX
e IR ERBEHRUEE R

on the historical experience of the actual useful lives etz Wz BMEMEZEZERAFE
of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and FER 2 &BIED - WAl FEHBFEHD

functions. Management will increase the depreciation
charges where useful lives are less than previously
estimated and will dispose of technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned. Actual
economic lives may differ from estimated useful lives.
Periodic review could result in a change in depreciable
lives and therefore depreciation expense in future
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periods.
Impairment loss on property, plant and equipment is BREBEWAMF ZCEHE W
recognised as the amount by which the carrying amount ¥ BELERMEBZREBEZERS

exceeds its recoverable amount in accordance with the
accounting policy stated in Note 3(e). The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use, which are based on the best
information available to reflect the amount obtainable at
each reporting date, from the disposal of the asset in an
arm’s length transaction between knowledgeable, willing
parties, after deducting the costs of disposal.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(iii) Current and deferred taxation

The Group is subject to income taxes in several
jurisdictions. Significant judgement is required in
determining the provision for income taxes in each of
these jurisdictions. Where the final tax outcome of these
matters is different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, such differences will impact the current and
deferred tax assets and liabilities in the periods in which
such determination are made.

Deferred tax assets relating to certain temporary
differences and tax losses are recognised as
management considers it is probable that future taxable
profit will be available against which the temporary
differences or tax losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised,
based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such differences will impact the recognition of
deferred tax assets and taxation in the periods in which
such estimates have been changed.

(iv) Write-down on inventories

104

Inventories are written down to net realisable
value based on an assessment of the realisability of
inventories. Write-down on inventories is recorded
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be realised. The identification of
write-down requires the use of judgement and estimates.
Where the expectation is different from the original
estimate, such difference will impact the carrying value
of inventories and write-down of inventories in the
periods in which such estimate has been changed. In
accordance with the Group’s assessment, a reversal of
write-down of inventories of HK$1,204,000 was recorded
by the Group in the Year.
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4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND
JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

(v)

(vi)

Impairment of receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of
receivables based on an assessment of the recoverability
of the receivables. Provisions are applied to receivables
where events or changes in circumstances indicate that
the balances may not be collectible. The identification
of impairment of receivables requires the use of
judgement and estimates. Where the expectations are
different from the original estimates, such differences
will impact the carrying value of receivables and loss
for the impairment of receivable is recognised in the
years in which such estimates have been changed. Trade
receivables of HK$1,252,000 were written off and an
impairment provision of HK$9,979,000 was made by the
Group in the Year.

Impairment assessment of the
investments in joint ventures and
associate

The Group tests annually whether investments in joint
ventures and associate have suffered any impairment,
in accordance with the accounting policy stated in Notes
3(b) and (c). The recoverable amounts of investments
in joint ventures and associate have been determined
based on value-in-use calculations or market valuations.
These calculations require the use of judgement and
estimates, in particular of future revenue or cash flow.
Management believes that any reasonable possible
deviation from any of these assumptions would not cause
the aggregate carrying amounts of cash-generating units
to exceed their recoverable amounts.

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION

The Group’s executive team, comprising all executive
directors and headed by the managing director of the
Company, is considered as the Chief Operating Decision
Maker (“CODM”). The CODM reviews the performance of the
Group on a regular basis.
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5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

As substantial business operations of the Group relate to
the manufacturing, selling and distribution of electronic
components, the CODM makes decisions about resources
allocation and performance assessment based on the entity-

BT ¥R P RE

wide financial information. Accordingly, there is only one

single reportable segment for the Group. Set out below is a

5 DESEFR ()

HRARBABNDEGSEHERE %’
ERDHETF AR WAKETE

BERRAREBR ﬂZEﬂ%éﬁﬂf’EﬁﬁE?
BIRD B M RIRFHE ZREK
BRAE-—EE—FZ2

o At - AR
WoEL e FEZIER

P =
summary list of key performance indicators reviewed by the RAE BB 2 FERBERBEERI T
CODM on a regular basis: N
2016 2015
—E-RF ZE-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THET T T
Revenue WA 987,027 974,421
Gross profit S 163,552 175,040
Gross profit margin (%) FF R (%) 16.6% 18.0%
EBITDA® EBITDA® 101,368 83,942
EBITDA margin (%) EBITDALL % (%) 10.3% 8.6%
Operating expenses ‘@ et ==l 194,831 193,714
Operating expenses/Revenue (%) B B A EE A LLZ (%) 19.7% 19.9%
Loss for the year rEEFHE (13,102) (45,838)
Net loss margin (%) 40 B8 R (%) (1.3%) (4.7%)
Total assets BEMAE 2,475,167 2,553,022
Equity attributable to equity holders RATIRERBA
of the Company (the “Equity”) el (=) 1,242,410 1,391,978
Inventories (finished goods only) FE(EERKS) 164,258 187,514
Inventory turnover days (finished FEiREXE
goods only) (EIBEK M) 73 86
Trade receivables TENE SRR 480,920 343,785
Trade receivables turnover days A e HEE TN 178 129
Trade and bills payables ENESEREEE 183,419 191,786
Trade and bills payables turnover days B8 SRR N BB RERE 81 88
Total interest-bearing debt T EERERE 809,748 813,575
Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 283,116 347,797
Time deposits over 3 months to maturity IHIE BB =RA
when placed ZEHTFR 7,775 11,936
Net debt fEE 5 518,857 453,842
Net gearing ratio (%) FEEE (%) 41.8% 32.6%

106



5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 9
Notes:
(i) EBITDA represents the earnings before interest expense, tax, (i)

depreciation and amortisation.

(i) Operating expenses represent the expenditure that the Group
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

Haz:

EBITDATE RFHFI B i « FiIE - & R# AT
A e

incurs as a result of performing its normal business operations,
including selling and distribution costs and administrative

expenses.

The following table presents the revenue and non-
current assets of the Group by geographical locations.
The geographical location of customers is based on the
geographical location of the customers. The geographical
location of the specified non-current assets is based on the
physical location of the asset, in the case of property, plant
and equipment, the location of the operation to which they

are allocated, in the case of intangible assets and goodwill,
and the location of operations, in the case to investments in

an associate and joint ventures.

(i)

N
=

4= A

upvEs e

I =

ERAEAEEE S REBELE B

B BIERE  DHBRRIHER -

TRINBAE BRI E S S 2 WA K
ERBEE - BPZHEMNBREFAE
HME - ZREREFRDEE RN E
TIRERYE  BELRENS @ BEN
ERMES BT EEMEEMS @ 7
EDRHZ B LR — B2 R R &

TEZEREMS @ @BHWHME °

Year ended 31 December

BE+t-A=1T—BHLHFE

2016 2015
—E-XE C—B-EHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET

Revenue from external customers by RYINEFHENE

geographical locations EozWA

Hong Kong BB 122,278 122,325
The PRC H 543,649 505,267
Taiwan =y 204,456 177,248
Southeast Asia B 23,590 36,041
Korea EAEN 4,955 5,705
United States EE 36,149 37,940
Europe BOM 34,296 55,554
Other countries H B R 17,654 34,341
987,027 974,421
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RE B R R
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (CONTINUED) 5 DEER (58)
As at 31 December
R+=A=+—H
2016 2015
—E—RFE —_ZE—HEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TH T TH T
Non-current assets by physical locations BB EI S ZHERBEE
(deferred tax assets and financial (TEFBELHEE
instruments excluded) ERERIA)
Hong Kong BB 136,065 133,843
The PRC =8| 962,328 055,182
Other countries HA B xR 199 72,651
1,098,592 1,161,676
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6 REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND OTHER
GAINS, NET

Revenue, which is also the Group’s turnover, represents the
net invoiced value of goods sold, after allowances for trade
returns and discounts.

An analysis of revenue, other income and other gains, net is

AR A BT R T

6 YA - E A R E ik F

]

~

WA TAREBZEEER  JHEMEH
EmECHRERE RN BHEFE -

YT~ E it A e B At Wi 2 5 BR 0 AT 40

as follows: N
2016 2015
—E-RFE ZE-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHBT FET
Revenue WA
Manufacture and trading of electronic BEREE
components ES ey 986,498 965,495
Trading of raw materials BEERME 529 8,926
987,027 074,421
Other income Hapg A
Scrap sales RERLHE 340 109
Subsidies from the PRC government FH BT B 1,395 972
Rental income generated from investment WEYEELY
properties e WA 4,852 4,597
Gain/(loss) on disposal of property, plant HEYE - BE &
and equipment BB/ (E51E) 6,212 (46)
Others Hi 1,129 1,186
13,928 6,818
oOther gains, net Hib W2 R 5
Fair value gain on forward currency contracts ZEHIE¥ ANz AL EWE
(Note 28) (Htit28) - 585
Fair value gain/(loss) on investment KEYE S
properties Wz /(E18) 10,756 (525)
Foreign exchange differences, net E N ZRE 55 12,280 609
Write-off of other payable (Note) H b~ R IaMss (haE) 6,594 2,491
Impairment loss on an available-for-sale AR ERE 2RERE
investment (Note 20) (Baz20) = (1,667)
29,630 1,493

Note: ~ During the year ended 31 December 2016, other payable of
HK$6,594,000 (2015: HK$2,491,000) was fully written off as the
obligation specified in the contract has expired.

Bt - BE-_ZE—XR"E+-_A=1t—HILFE &
MRAKTR 2 EERE - HE M e~ KA
6,594,000/ JT (= & — F F : 2,491,000
7o) BB -
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fRE I ISR MR
7 OPERATING PROFIT/(LOSS) 7 &EEMN/(EE)
The Group’s operating profit/(loss) is arrived at after REE 2 &EuHM/(EE) EM&R/(GTA)
charging/(crediting) the following: T &IE :
2016 2015
ZE—RF —E—HHF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
iit3 FHET FET
Employee benefit expense EEEAFAX 8 225,001 223,072
Cost of inventories sold (including raw CDHEFEKRAK (81E2
materials and consumables used and FAZEME REFER
changes in inventories of finished UREKMMERDZ
goods and work in progress) EEE) 824,679 800,998
Auditor’s remuneration 1% SR BN B &
- Audit services - ZBURTS 1,500 1,525
- Non-audit services - IR E RS 430 427
Depreciation of property, plant ME  WRENMKRETE
and equipment 17 73,499 88,704
Amortisation of prepaid land premium T+ b AR EFE A R 8 18 1,547 1,643
Amortisation of intangible assets T B O 21 885 777
(Gain)/loss on disposal of property, HEWE - BENKE
plant and equipment (%) /B (6,212) 46
Lease payments under operating leases T NREBF I KETHE
for land and buildings e 21,139 21,243
Write-down of inventories T E MR 25 2,440 1,177
Reversal of write-down of TFE WU 3 o
inventories 25 (3,644) (2,794)
Impairment of trade receivables N E ZERFRE 26 9,979 1,563
Trade receivables written off MsE R E 5 BRI 26 1,252 525
Fair value loss on financial assets at fair AR AR B ABE 2
value through profit or loss ETREBEEALEEE 6 8
Deferred income recognised as income FEIEWATER AU A (307) (327)
Cost of inventories includes HK$216,252,000 (2015: FERABRIEHESRNAS - FTEKE
HK$227,660,000) relating to employee benefit expense, fﬁ%ﬁﬁ&ii@&@—eﬁz%&%ﬁfﬂﬁi
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depreciation and amortisation expenses and lease payments
under operating leases for land and buildings, which the
amount is also included in the respective total amounts
disclosed separately above or in note 8 for each of these
types of expenses.

B RE A 7 216,252,000 7T (T —

4 1 227,660,000/ 7T) LAL@%EJTEJU\
S MR8k B B S FB B 9B L # BE A9 AR
JEMAEEBN o
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=
iral

SRR T RE

2016 2015
—E-XF ZE-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F#ET
Wages and salaries T& N 207,324 206,057
Share options forfeited (Note 42) EREZ B (Mit42) - (407)
Contributions to defined contribution TEREHFORRETEI R
retirement plan 17,648 17,422
Expenses recognised in respect of defined R B TERAENR
benefit retirement plan (Note 36(a)(v)) HE 2R (BiE36(a) ) 29 -
Total employee benefit expense BEEME X258 225,001 223,072
9 CHANGES IN FAIR VALUES OF INTEREST 9 F|EIBHIN 1B 2 &
RATE SWAPS
2016 2015
—B-NE C—B-Ef
HK$’000 HK$’000
TFET FExT
Fair value gains/(losses) on interest MEEHZARE
rate swaps (Note 28) W/ (E518) (B/:t28) 2,198 (4,647)

At 31 December 2016, the Group held certain interest
rate swap contracts entered into in 2009 and 2010 for a BETHR_ZZE
contracted period of ten years each. These contracts were
entered into to stabilise the Group’s overall interest expense

for the periods covered by these contracts.

NER=E

RZEBE—RNEFE+_A=+—8 XxEEHE
—FFFUZ
MEEHEL  GHFHSAETF - %ZF
BRTNEBREAEENREG LA 2 ZEF
B HMmEIL »
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AR A BRI A

10 FINANCE COSTS

10 B 757

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—0FE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T TH T
Interest expense on bank loans RITERZF B H 26,506 25,647
Others Hb 3,691 4,567
30,197 30,214
Less: Interest expenses capitalised into B BN AERIRE Y
construction in progress FBEZ WM (300) -
29,897 30,214
11 FINANCE INCOME 11 U A
2016 2015
—E-RF CZ—ZE—-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F# T FHE T
Interest income from loan to a joint venture 47— BABLEZETRZ
(Note 39) BN (Ha£39) 3,556 4,546
Interest income from time deposits and TR RIRITESR
bank balances FEWA 1,194 4,034
4,750 8,580
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12 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ R ESNEETRAENE

EMOLUMENTS

(a)Directors’ and chief executive’s QESEKESTHRAEME
emoluments
Directors’ remuneration, including remuneration of chief B4R £ AR R BT 8% 110 R BB R AR
executives (Ms. Kee Chor Lin and Mr. Chan Yu Ching, BIEIBBWE BB AFEESH <
Eugene), for the Year, disclosed pursuant to Appendix 14 (BREEEITHRABLEELT KEF
to the Listing Rules and section 383(1) of the Hong Kong BREZE) I

Companies Ordinance, is as follows:

For the year ended 31 December 2016: BHE_T—R"F+TA=+—HL*HF
E

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:

REAREES (TRAFQARNEWELRAER)

BESHIERZME :
Employer’s
Estimated contribution
money toa
value of  retirement
Discretionary other henefit
Name Fees  Salary honuses henefits scheme Total

ERE  EEY

ZfEst RGN
e fie H& RERAL  E%EE FEMR #st
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn TEr  TEn TiEn TEn  TEx

Executive directors: HITEE -
Kee Chor Lin fRE - 45 . VE] 18 4,916
Chan Yu Ching, Eugene EFE - 3,900 . 204 18 4,122
Wong Ching Ming, Stanley TER - 1,080 - - 18 1,098
Yeung Yuk Lun B - 561 . . 6 567
Chan Tat Cheong, Alan 5eg= - 1,232 . . 12 1,244

Independent non-executive directors: ~ BT FHTTEE -

Mar, Selwyn SR 400 - - - - 400
Li Sau Hung, Eddy =%E 360 - - - - 360
Lo Kwok Kwei, David REE 360 o - - - 360

1,120 11,498 - 377 n 13,067
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12 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’ REFRESTBRAEMNS
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED) (&)
(a) Directors’ and chief executive’s (@) Eﬂ%&%%ﬁﬂ(ké@h‘iﬁ
emoluments (Continued) (#8)
For the year ended 31 December 2015: B2 T—AF+_A=+—HI#HF
=

Emoluments paid or receivable in respect of a person’s services as a director,
whether of the company or its subsidiary undertaking:

REARLES (FRAXLASHMELAEH)

BBCAAEN S
Employer’s
Estimated contribution
money toa
value of  retirement
Discretionary other henefit
Name Fees  Salary honuses henefits scheme Total

HpflE  ExH

M RAEN
## s HE BHERA EWEE  HEEX #st
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEn TEn TEn  TER  TExr  TER

Executive directors: HiTEE -
Kee Chor Lin e S AT - 189 18 4,932
Chan Yu Ching, Eugene EEE - 3,900 - 218 18 4,136
Wong Ching Ming, Stanley TEHR - 1,080 - - 18 1,098
Yeung Yuk Lun BEE - 2,100 - - 18 2,118

Independent non-executive directors: BV HHTEE -

Mar, Selwyn Sk 400 - - - - 400
Li Sau Hung, Eddy z%E 360 - - B B 360
Lo Kwok Kwei, David ZEE 360 - - B} B 360

1,120 11,805 - 407 72 13,404
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12 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
EMOLUMENTS (CONTINUED)

(b)Directors’ retirement benefits

No retirement benefits were paid to or receivable by any
directors in respect of their other services in connection
with the management of the affairs of the Company or
its subsidiaries undertaking (2015: Nil).

(c) Directors’ termination benefits

No payment was made to directors as compensation
for the early termination of the appointment during the
Year (2015: Nil).

(d)Consideration provided to third parties
for making available directors’ services

No payment was made to the former employer of
directors for making available the services of them as a
director of the Company (2015: Nil).

(e) Information about loans, quasi-
loans and other dealings in favour of
directors, controlled bodies corporate
by and connected entities with such
directors

There are no loans, quasi-loans and other dealings in
favour of directors, controlled bodies corporate by and
connected entities with such directors during the Year
(2015: Nil).

(f) Directors’ material interests in
transactions, arrangements or
contracts

No significant transactions, arrangements and contracts
in relation to the Company’s business to which the
Company was a party and in which a director of the
Company had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any time
during the Year (2015: Nil).

12 EFNEEITHRAE

AR A BT R T

N
iz

/N

&)
(D) ESEMNEF

BEENEEREREARRRENE
N B E 2 B AR B Sk U (]
BKEN (ZF—0F: #) -

() ERAIEEER

FAMBERNEEINEFMREER
RERIEZEZME (ZT—0%F:
®) o

(RBITESBBRFE =R
HzRE

MELBTARRNEZTREMAE
EZAEREXNEMRE (ZF—5
FE)

() BEALES » ZZEHEAE
EREEESEREREAS
mAZER - BERKREM
R ZER

FARBMEAES  IEWEAER
RZEEECHBERA/RTEAL
B EEREEMRS (ZF—F

FE) -

HEZENRS  RHFHSWF
ZE R

RAREREERITLARA AR
PR RARRESEHESHESR
BB AR TR G 4R T ] B R
MARAGBEZEARS BHIEH
—E—RHFE|E)o
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= ZE R =
13 FIVE HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS 13 hEE=sMES
The five highest paid individuals during the Year included AEENRAEEaTNEERERE (=
four (2015: four) directors, details of whose remuneration T—hF W) EZ BEAREFMN
are set out in Note 12 above. FIBEEN EXXHIFELRA -
Details of the remuneration of the remaining one (2015: one) FREHB—HB (ZFE—HF: —R) &=
individual with highest remuneration during the Year were as FNEE T < FFIBT -
follows:
2016 2015
—EB—REF —_E—FEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHh FHT
Salaries and allowances e BoEBL 878 737
Discretionary bonuses B TEAT - 57
Pension scheme contributions BRI 18 18
896 812
The remuneration of the remaining one highest paid HAp— 2o MESE e A T4
individual is within the following band: Al
2016 2015
—E-RE =—E-IF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FExT
Between HK$500,000 to HK$999,999 77F500,000 7L £ 999,999 7T 1 1
No remuneration has been paid by the Group to the five ANEB W E A R L& 5 BE B X EM
highest paid individuals as an inducement to join or upon FEERIMAREE SR IMARK B 2 82
joining the Group, or as compensation for loss of office. None SHIEREBBEE ~XFERN AR &
of the five individuals with highest remuneration waived or = B B % A BEE ok R B N EE (AT B M
agreed to waive any remuneration during the Year (2015: (ZE—RF:E)o
Nil).
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/ N/
14 INCOME TAX 14 FTi5H
Hong Kong profits tax has been provided at the rate of 16.5% BBNESHDIRAFERBE BRI 5T
(2015: 16.5%) on the estimated assessable profits arising JE SR T i M E T R16.5% (ZF— A F -
in Hong Kong during the Year. Taxes on assessable profits 16.5%) B - i@ BRI & F 28
elsewhere have been calculated at the rates of tax prevailing B ASEREMERNEER 2IRITH
in the jurisdictions in which the Group operates, based on o RBERITEAN  REXKESEFE -
existing legislation, interpretations and practices in respect
thereof.
2016 2015
—E-RF ZZZE-HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FHET
Charge for the year: KFEFZH -
Current tax: BIHATS 18 -
Hong Kong B 1,536 1,688
Outside Hong Kong EBLAIN 6,261 4,763
Under-provision in prior years BEFEEETZ 2,389 495
10,186 6,946
Deferred tax (Note 32) BERIR (A15E32) (1,544) 1,496
Total tax charge for the year REFRFFIAS 5 8,642 8,442
In accordance with the relevant tax rules and regulations in RIEFEABEHERAEER - ARRH
the PRC, certain of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC FRRFPBEZHEB AR ZREEHER -
enjoy tax exemptions. All subsidiaries in the PRC are subject ELHTB R A AR T20%E25% 2 3 A
to income taxes at applicable rates ranging from 20% to TR NPTISTR o
25%.
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2Ny =]

14 INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

118

A reconciliation of the tax expense applicable to profit before
tax using the statutory rates for the countries/jurisdictions
in which the Company and the majority of its subsidiaries are
domiciled to the tax expense at the effective tax rates is as
follows:

14 FTig#t (48)

EAARRE REAKEDHERF

K

FtE

BIR/ALEER OREN R E 2 BRBA

WAl EATIERY  BRERTEGTE
ZTARSCEERIAT
2016 2015
—E—RF —E-1F
HK$’000 % HK$'000 %

FER Bt FER B

ventures”

of HK$439,000) is included in

consolidated income statement.

“Share of results of joint
and “Share of results of an associate”

in the

Loss before tax BrFi AT E 18 (4,460) (37,396)
Tax calculated at domestic tax %7 AP E R B R
rates applicable to profits in SR 27 R
the respective countries HEZRIE (1,092) (8,894)
Lower tax rate for specific local EHiEEHEZTE 2
authority BRIEB R (572) (1,011)
Income not subject to tax AR A (4,241) (1,972)
Expenses not deductible for tax ~ AJYERSIBK X H 2,448 3,825
Under-provision in prior years BREFERETRE 2,389 495
Recognition of tax losses RS EE = (566)
Utilisation of tax losses not A A R RIS
previously recognised B8 (527) (323)
Reversal of tax losses previously @ LA Z R
recognised HISEE = 1,808
Tax losses not recognised RIERIRIFEE 10,237 15,080
Tax charge at the Group’s RAREEERMERAE
effective rate mIES 8,642 (193.8) 8,442 (22.6)
The share of income tax attributable to joint ventures and EheEERBERAMEHE R
an associate amounting to HK$2,795,000 (2015: tax credit 2,795,000 L (ZE—HF: HEERR

439,000/ 7C) Bt ABRA WSR2 [FEh
AM{E%Z% 8] M TG —EEBZE AR
ZEE] -
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14 INCOME TAX (CONTINUED)

The tax charge relating to components of other HEMEEK SR I HEE 2 HRIBE B
comprehensive income is as follows: ™~
2016 2015
“E-5~F “E-1f
Before tax Tax  Aftertax Before tax Tax  After tax
BRBEAT FE BB % BRBEAT BE %
Note HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
i3 TER TEx TER TER TEx TET
Fair value (losses)/gains: ARE (BR) M
— Land and buildings - T RET i (2,099) M (1,380) 12,93 (3330 959
— An available-for-sale investment -—EUELERE 2 254 - 254 576 - 576
Remeasurement of net defined benefit  EHHERTRNEE 366
assets 929 (158) m -
Currency translation differences ERES (135,847) - (135,847)  (129,427) - (129,427)
Other comprehensive income Hib2EkE (136,763) 555  (136,208)  (115,915) (3337 (119,252)
Deferred tax (Note 32) ERHIE (H7t32) 555 (3.337)
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15 LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of basic loss per share is based on the
loss for the Year attributable to equity holders of the
Company of HK$14,905,000 (2015: loss of HK$45,095,000),
and the weighted average number of 475,557,000 (2015:

15 &% E1E

Jﬂﬁ%ﬂiﬁéﬂémﬁfw\ﬂﬁﬂéﬁﬁjxﬁ
16 7K 4F [ E53814,905,0008 7T (—Z & —

F : [E51845,095,0007% 7T ) &$¢FWE
AT E @ AR 2 N A ¥ 5 20475,557,0008%

478,280,000) ordinary shares in issue during the Year. —ZF—FRF : 478,280,000%) 5T E -
(i) Weighted average number of ordinary shares () LTBIRZINEFIRER
2016 2015
—E—RE —E-8F
'000 '000
T B T B
Issued ordinary shares at 1 January \—H—B2ZBRTEER 476,239 479,239
Effect of shares repurchased (note 34) BN 22 (Hit34) (682) (959)
Weighted average number of ordinary RT+_A=+—B2Z2E@ik
shares at 31 December 2 INAEF IR EL 475,557 478,280

Diluted loss per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted
average number of ordinary shares outstanding to assume
conversion of all dilutive potential ordinary shares. Diluted
loss per share for the Year and the year ended 31 December
2015 were the same as the basic loss per share as the
Company’s share options outstanding during the Year and
the year ended 31 December 2015 did not have dilutive
potential ordinary shares.

16 DIVIDENDS

The Board of Directors did not recommend any dividend for
the Year (2015: Nil).
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AR A BT R T

ALy T A
17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 % ~ W= MG
Machinery  Furniture
and and Motor  Leasehold Construction
Land  Buildings equipment fixtures vehicles improvements in progress Total
e i g
tih BT &Y k%E BE  NEEE RRIE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR TEn ThET TR TEn TET TR
At 1 January 2016 i
-A-H
Cost or valuation RABLEE 3971 223,489 1,190,645 34,522 15,896 133,300 3,649 1,635,472
Accumulated depreciation ZithE = - (800,576)  (28373)  (13,772) (81,682 - (924,403)
Net carrying amount i) 3,971 223,489 390,069 6,149 2,124 51,618 3,640 711,069
Opening net carrying amount FORRFE 33,971 223,489 390,069 6,149 2,124 51,618 3,649 711,069
Additions NE - - 6,588 2,531 1,108 1,852 4,596 16,675
Transfer to investment ERERENE
properties (Note 19) (frii9) (1,100) (900) - - - - - (2,000)
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 44) Ui —EIHE AT
(Hrit44) - 39 20,230 - 358 - - 20,627
Disposals e - - (4,400) (25) (89) (143) - (4,657)
Surplus/(deficit) on revaluation  EfFRH/(Ei)
(Note 14) (Hi#14) 1,849 (3,948) - - - - - (2,099)
Depreciation provided during FRERE
the year (999) (5,230  (53,209) (1,391) (646)  (12,018) - (73,499)
Transfers B - - - ()] 7 - - -
Exchange realignment ERAE - (3316)  (24,075) (307) % (2,821 (402)  (40,896)
(losing net carrying amount EREEFE 33,721 200,128 335,203 6,950 2,887 38,488 7,843 625,220
At 31 December 2016: RIE-—RE
tZA=t-8:
Cost or valuation RAESEE 3,721 200,128 1,185,161 34,614 14,563 127,828 7,843 1,603,858
Accumulated depreciation Z2IE - - (849,958)  (27,664)  (11,676)  (89,340) - (978,638)
Closing net carrying amount EREmZE 33,721 200,128 335,203 6,950 2,887 38,488 7,843 625,220
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 %~ WENKE (8B)
(CONTINUED)

Machinery  Furniture

and and Motor  Leasehold Construction
Land  Buildings equipment fixtures vehicles improvements in progress Total
Ha B e

T B8 Rk®k  R%E EH NERE O RRIE s
HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
Tén  TEx  FTEx TR Tz Tén TEn  TEn

At 1 January 2015 R-Z-1F-F-H
Cost or valuation RAEREE 42,651 28151 1225341 35,690 18,124 136,936 3645 1,690,538
Accumulated depreciation ZitE - - (782,979) (28,911) (14,705) (70,804) - (897,399)
Net carrying amount BRTE 12,651 28150 442,362 6,779 3419 66,132 3645 793139
Opening net carrying amount IS F & 42,651 28151 442,362 6,779 3419 66,132 3645 793,139
Additions e - 97 38,833 955 17 2,955 W] 43,184
Transfer to investment EREREE

properties (Note 19) (Hiiti9) (5,590) (950) - - - - - (6,540)
Disposals e - - (229) (14) (352) - - (595)
Surplus on revaluation EfRER

(Note 14) (Hi4) (1,871) 14,807 - - - - - 12,936
Depreciation provided during AT ERE

the year (1,219) (5,402)  (65,944) (1,229) (840) (14,070) - (88,704)
Transfers B - - 107 - - - (107) -
Exchange realignment [ % - (13,214) (25,060) (342) (120) (3399) (216) (42,351)
Closing net carrying amount ~ ERBEFE 397 23489 390,069 6,149 2124 51,618 3,649 711,069
At 31 December 2015; R-Z-FF

t-R=t-8:

Cost or valuation RAEREE BOTL 23489 1,190,645 3452 15,89 133,300 3649 1,635,472
Accumulated depreciation Zitie - - (800576 (28373) (13.772) (81,682) - (924,403)
Closing net carrying amount £ RERE F5 3BOTL 23489 390,069 6,149 2124 51,618 3,649 711,069
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

(CONTINUED)

During the Year, the Group transferred an owner-occupied
property located in Hong Kong to an investment property
and rented it out (Note 19).

The Group’s remaining land and buildings were revalued
individually on 31 December 2016 by Memfus Wong
Surveyors Limited, an independent professionally qualified
valuer, at an aggregate value of HK$233,849,000 (2015:
HK$257,460,000). A revaluation loss totalling HK$2,099,000
(2015: gain of HK$12,936,000), resulting from the above
valuations, has been debited to the relevant asset
revaluation reserve. Had these land and buildings been
carried at historical cost less accumulated depreciation and
impairment losses, their carrying values would have been
approximately HK$142,590,000 (2015: HK$159,457,000).

The Group management have discussion with the surveyors
on the valuation assumptions and valuation results when the
valuation is performed at each interim and annual reporting
date.

For land and buildings located in Hong Kong, the best
evidence of the open market value is the current prices in
an open market for similar properties with adjustments, if
any. For those located in the PRC, if there are no readily
identifiable market comparables, they are valued on the
basis of their depreciated replacement costs using the
depreciated replacement cost approach. At the end of each
reporting period, the directors update the assessment of
the open market value of each land and buildings, taking
into account the most recent valuations performed by
independent professionally qualified valuers.

The following table presents the fair value of the Group’s
properties measured at the balance sheet date on a recurring
basis, categorised into the three-level fair value hierarchy as
defined in HKFRS 13, Fair value measurement. The level into
which a fair value measurement is classified is determined
with reference to the observability and significance of the
inputs used in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only Level
1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active markets
for identical assets or liabilities at the measurement
date
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 M5 BB Rt ()

(CONTINUED)
Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level - FEME: FTRFE_ERASE
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet EZRAAE BITFEE—EZE
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable inputs. R ABEBREREFAERATITER
Unobservable inputs are inputs for which market data B ASIE - TR BRI ASIRIEEZE
are not available SIS E R i A 2R
Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using significant - FoEME: FRERTATHEZEA
unobservable inputs B EZ A ARE

Fair value hierarchy NRERER

Fair value measurements using

NRTHISEETZARENE

Unadjusted
quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observahle unohbservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
EEEER Hitr EX
EEMSEZ BEATUER AABE
REARRE BARE BAHE
(£—18) (=) (=)
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TER TET TET
Recurring fair value measurements KEERNREFE
Land and buildings THRETF
31 December 2016 —E-"E+-A=t+-H - - 233,849
31 December 2015 “E-RF+-ZA=+—H - - 257,460
The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and transfers AEBZHRARNTRERAREER 2
out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date of the event RER s EHIRRERER  BRER
or change in circumstances that caused the transfer. iz o
There were no transfers among level 1, 2 and 3 during the REEAN BB - F_ERFE=EZM
Year. WiEER o
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 17 W% BENEZE (8)
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements using significant MAER T A BRREARIR (5
unobservable inputs (Level 3) =) 2R REFE

Land and buildings

T RET
Hong Kong PRC Total
BH a2 CEy
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET TET
At 1 January 2016 RZZE—R"F—H—H 41,300 216,160 257,460
Additions NE
surplus/(deficit) on revaluation EfAR/(FA) 2,215 (4,314) (2,099)
Depreciation provided during the year FRITERE (1,215) (5,020) (6,235)
Transfer to investment properties EEEREYE
(Note 19) (Writ19) (2,000) - (2,000)
Acquisition of a subsidiary WEE—ENE AT = 39 39
Exchange realignment RIS - (13,316) (13,316)
At 31 December 2016 RZZE—RF
+-A=+—H 40,300 193,549 233,849
Total revaluation gain/(deficit) for STA/HEB) ELFEE
the Year credited/(debited) to ZFENE[KER/
the revaluation reserve (E54t) a8 2,215 (4,314) (2,099)
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

Fair value measurements using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) (Continued)

17 9% - BB Mi&kfE (58)

MAE KA &= AR (5
=) 22 REFE (8)

Land and buildings

T RET
Hong Kong PRC Total
& FE gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET FET
At 1 January 2015 RN-_ZE—RF—HA—H 50,500 220,302 270,802
Additions NE - 97 97
Surplus on revaluation ESRyas (1,217) 14,153 12,936
Depreciation provided during the year — FRITEREE (1,443) (5,178) (6,621)
Transfer to investment properties EBERENENE
(Note 19) (B1et19) (6,540) - (6,540)
Exchange realignment [E 0 - (13,214) (13,214)
At 31 December 2015 NZE—HF
+-A=+—-8 41,300 216,160 257,460
Total revaluation (deficit)/gain for (8) FFAERREZ
the year (debited)/credited to the FRERN (B4 /
revaluation reserve W B (1,217) 14,153 12,936

Level 3 fair values of land and buildings located in Hong
Kong have been derived using the direct comparison
approach, which basically uses the comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant market to derive the
fair value of the properties.

Level 3 fair values of land and buildings located in the PRC
have been derived using the depreciated replacement cost
approach, which is based on an estimate of the market value
for the existing use of the land, plus the current cost of
replacement of the existing structures less deductions for
physical deterioration and all relevant forms of obsolescence
and optimisation.
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17 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(CONTINUED)

AR SRR MG

17 % - W= NK&RiE (8)

Information about Level 3 fair value EHEE=EBAAEFEZ2ER
measurements
Valuation techniques Unobservable Inputs and range
& B B i TABERAZE R EE
Land and buildings held for own use in Direct comparison Discount on quality of the buildings
Hong Kong approach ranged from -20% to -8%.
BB EERZ I EEF BEEEE BFEEIMN F-20%%E-8% ©
Land and buildings held for own use in Depreciated replacement  Discount on quality of the buildings
the PRC approach ranged from -45% to -11%.
FEBEERA L RETF WESEEX BFEENNNT-45%Z-11% °

Prepayment of property, plant and equipment
The amount of prepayment of property, plant and equipment
expected to be transferred to property, plant and equipment
after more than one year is HK$56,570,000 (2015:
HK$66,060,000).

18 PREPAID LAND PREMIUM

Y% - MERZBEENRIE
JEHEREE —F U LYE  BEERREZ
Y - BE K TE 5B A56,570,000
BIL (ZZ—HF : 66,060,000/87T) °

18 L B FANRT K

The movements in prepaid land premium during the Year FRNIHEERNR2EHWOT -
were as follows:

2016 2015
—EB—REF —E—FEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FH T TH T
Carrying amount at 1 January RN—A—HZEA®E 71,728 77,851
Amortisation during the year F R (1,547) (1,643)
Exchange realignment b 5 (4,482) (4,480)
Carrying amount at 31 December Rt+t-A=+—BzEKE+H8 65,699 71,728
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INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 19 wEW =
2016 2015
—E-XE =B-Ef
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At fair value BARE

At 1 January n—A—H8 141,530 138,872

Transfer from owner-occupied property EEAETORYHE
(Note 17) (B1&£17) 2,000 6,540
Gain/(loss) on fair value adjustment NARERAERE/(EE) 10,756 (525)
Exchange realignment PE W 8% (3,890) (3,357)
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 150,396 141,530

(a) Amounts recognised in profit and loss

@ RIREMENIBHERER Z

for investment properties G-

2016 2015
—E-AE —B-I&
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Rental income e WA 4,852 4,597

Direct operating expenses from property  EAMHESWAZYE S
that generated rental income BEEEERY (519) (745)
4,333 3,852

(b)Valuation basis () HEEE

The Group obtains independent valuations for its

investment properties at least annually. In the Year, the

valuations are performed by Memfus Wong Surveyors
Limited and Roma Appraisals Limited. At the end of each

reporting period, the directors update their assessment
of the fair value of each property, taking into account

the most recent independent valuations. The directors

determine a property’s value within a range of

reasonable fair value estimates.

AREEZDBF R EREYEN
BEUGEE RAFEAR - HEHR
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)

(b)Valuation basis (Continued)

The Group management has discussion with the
surveyors on the valuation assumptions and valuation
results when the valuation is performed at each interim
and annual reporting date.

For the completed investment properties, their fair
values are generally derived using the direct comparison
approach, which basically uses the comparable sales
transactions as available in the relevant market to derive
the fair value of the properties.

For the under development investment property, its
fair value is derived using the residual approach. This
valuation method is essentially a means of valuing
the land by reference to its development potential by
deducting development costs, land premium, together
with developer’s profit and risk from the estimated
capital value of the proposed development assuming
completed as at the date of valuation.

The revaluation gain/(loss) is included in “Other gains,
net” in the consolidated income statement (Note 6).

AR A BT R T
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RETIREMENS HARER
FHRERLBEER - BERIEBOX
ERXENAHEET S LAEHZAE
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
(b)Vvaluation basis (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s properties measured at the balance sheet
date on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs

il

19 IREME (&)
() EEEE (&)

NAERBR
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£—EfhE A
BEAEZANE " BRTER
HHARBEERREEERT S
AEFHBRE

F_BEE: ERE_B@AHK
B8z oArE > BITHE%E —
EZRIBEB ABBAREER
BEATAIBRE AHIE - T A #
R A\BBEELINEHHER
2B ABUE

FZBEE: ERERTAHE
BABUBTEZAAE

Fair value measurements
at 31 December 2016 using
RZB-AF+t=A=+—-RAA
TH&EEETZAAETE

Unadjusted
quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observahle unobservable
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEER Hitr EX
EEMHEZ BEATHR AAEE
AERRERE BAHE BAHE
(B—E) (B=F) (B=E)
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
T TR T
Recurring fair value measurements KEMAAETE
Investment properties REME
— Completed residential -BRIFENE
properties — PRC - - - 1,946
— Completed commercial -BRIBENE
properties — HK - B8 - - 89,200
— Under development -~ BETHENE
commercial property — PRC — = = 59,250
- - 150,396
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19 EM=E ()
() EEEE (1)
DNAERBR (H)

19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED)
(b)Valuation basis (Continued)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

Fair value measurements

at 31 December 2015 using
R-B-EF+=A=+-HAA
THRBETZANETE

Unadjusted
quoted prices
in active Significant
markets for other Significant
identical observable unohservahle
assets inputs inputs
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)
HEEER Hity BX
EEMSEZ BEATUHER AABE
AERRGE BAHE BAHE
(B—E) (B=fE) (B=E)
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
TET TEx TET
Recurring fair value measurements REMDAAETE
Investment properties RENF
— Completed residential -BRIFENE
properties — PRC — - - 1,671
— Completed commercial -DRIBENE
properties — HK -8k - - 87,340
— Under development -~ BETEHENE
commercial property — PRC — - - 52,519
- - 141,530

AEEZEEARUBERA L EE
Bz RINE 2 EHRKREDE A
RAMHARME, -

The Group’s policy is to recognise transfers into and
transfers out of fair value hierarchy levels as of the date
of the event or change in circumstances that caused the
transfer.

There were no transfer among level 1, 2 and 3 during the AKEER F—E F_ERFE=
Year. 2 [ M eE i o
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 19 &EWZ (&)

(b)Valuation basis (Continued) () HEEE ()
Investment properties
REMZE
Hong Kong PRC Total
B HEl st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET
At 1 January 2016 RZE—RF—H—H 87,340 54,190 141,530
Transfer from owner-occupied BXTEAMEEE
property (Note 17) (Hiat17) 2,000 - 2,000
(Loss)/gain from fair value NAERE (BE)/
adjustment Wz (140) 10,896 10,756
Exchange realignment B 3 R - (3,890) (3,890)
At 31 December 2016 RZT—RF
+=-A=+—H 89,200 61,196 150,396
Total valuation (loss)/gain for the MNFEREERZ
year included in profit or loss for BETAER
assets held at the end of the year, [Et 58] 2
under “Other gains, net” FRHE (BE)/
W sE (140) 10,896 10,756
Change in unrealised (loss)/gain for HRERFEZ
the year included in profit or loss BETABRZ
for assets held at the end of FRRER (BE)/
the year Y B 8 (140) 10,896 10,756
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 19 iKE&EW% (£)

(b)Valuation basis (Continued) () HEEE ()
Investment properties
REMZE
Hong Kong PRC Total
58 B wEt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TR TET TET
At 1 January 2015 R-ZE-—hF—HA—H 81,400 57,472 138,872
Transfer from owner-occupied BETEAMEER
property (Note 17) (Hizt17) 6,540 - 6,540
(Loss)/gain from fair value NAERAE (BE)/
adjustment Wz (600) 75 (525)
Exchange realignment fE 5, % - (3,357) (3,357)
At 31 December 2015 RZZE—AF
+=-A=+—8~ 87,340 54,190 141,530
Total valuation (loss)/gain for the MNFEREERZ
year included in profit or loss for BETAER
assets held at the end of the year, [ E b U5 /58 |
under “Other gains, net” ZEARHE (BE)/
W 5 (600) 75 (525)
Change in unrealised (loss)/gain for HRERFEZ
the year included in profit or loss BEFNERZ
for assets held at the end of FRRER (BE)/
the year sy (600) 75 (525)
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 19 & &M% (&)

134

(c) Information about Level 3 fair value COBEHBEE=ZFBAREFEZE
measurements !
Valuation techniques Unobservable Inputs and range
fEE R FaBRGABEREE
Investment properties in Hong Kong Direct comparison (Discount)/premium on quality of the
approach buildings ranged from -6% to 2%.
BB EWE BEELEE BFEE (P a2EBN T-6%Z2% °
For the investment property which is pending for MEEERREWEMS - HETIFAFEH
redevelopment, the valuation was derived using the residual BEE A THEKRDNAEBRE AZBE
approach based on the Group’s latest development plan BRRASEBSHNEETEER -

using the following significant unobservable inputs.

Gross development value

TRAE

Costs to complete

S LAAN

Land premium

THHES

The valuation primarily relied on the direct comparison approach,
based on the sale prices of comparable properties with adjustment
factors. The higher the gross development value, the higher the
resulting fair value, and vice versa.

HMEFEXBEZLEE  ERFEXBMEEERABREZET -
ERABEYS  FISAREBEMES  RZIA -

These are generally consistent with the internal budget prepared by
the Group’s finance department, based on management’s experience
and knowledge of local market conditions. The higher the estimated
costs, the lower the fair value, and vice versa.
ZEARBTERAEEVBIPFIENERELSR K E TR AER
B NEBE - - EAES  AREME  RZ2TRA -

Land premium is assessed based on the difference in land values
arising from the change in land use, which is subject to concessions
according to the prevailing local government policies. The higher the
land premium, the lower the fair value, and vice versa.

THHES AR LIRS E S 2 T EEZEEETIE
RBRARBITHMABRNBER RS - THHESES - ’Aﬁﬁtﬂiﬁ '
)
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19 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (CONTINUED) 19 IREME ()

(c) Information about Level 3 fair value QFEBFE=ZEBAAREBEFEZE
measurements (Continued) B (48)

Developer’s profit Represents the developer’s expectation on the risk and return of the

BERER N underlying redevelopment project. The margin is derived based on
valuer’s experiences with reference to the margin of similar projects
in similar cities. The higher the profit margin, the lower the fair value,
and vice versa.
BERAMAMERER 2 AR REHRHE - FEXRDERMEE
RSB 2RO m 2 BUIEE FIBRER - FIEEYS - 2R
EBE - RZTFA -

Completion dates The underlying redevelopment scheme requires approval or permits

ST HE from relevant government authorities at various stages of the
development process, including initial design, proposed land use,
commissioning, and compliance with environmental regulations. Based
on management’s experience on similar developments, all relevant
permits and approvals are expected to be obtained. However, the
expected completion date of the development may vary depending on,
among other factors, the timeliness of obtaining approvals and any
remedial action required by the Group. The later the completion dates,
the lower the fair value, and vice versa.
MR B A T 8178 70 55 R A AR 5 1 ER JE AR R BT M A B /EE s R P
FEOARET - BRI AR - M RETIRRER ° ﬁE%foaﬁfT
MUERIER 2&R  HHRBEGSMEMEBT RIE - Am - %
BRIEEBATIASGET (AP eEEMAR) REEFIAER
REBMER 2 EAFMRIERME - T LR RSB - AaEsE -
[ 2 TR »

There were no changes to the valuation techniques during FN - HERMMEETAEES) -
the Year.
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20 AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE INVESTMENTS 20 A (HHEIRE
2016 2015
—RE Z—E—EHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
F&T FET
Available-for-sale financial assets — AIEEESmEE
unlisted equity securities — I ETRRAEH 1,177 880
Available-for-sale financial assets — AL EemEE
insurance policy investments —RERIEE 13,285 11,821
14,462 12,701
2016 2015
—E-XRFE ZZE-EF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January R—H—H 12,701 13,881
Additions INE 1,579 -
Change in fair value transferred SR
to equity N EE 254 575
Exchange realignment VE i, 3 2 (72) (88)
Impairment loss recognised in Wira Wk ER 2 REEBE
consolidated income statement (H1it6)
(Note 6) = (1,667)
At 31 December Rt—HA=1t—~H 14,462 12,701
The fair values above are within level 3 of the fair value NERREBEREBAARBEERE=E (KT
hierarchy (Note 41). 41) ©
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21 INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21 B EE
Computer Brand
software Name  Goodwill Total
BTt mEERE mE Bt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FER FEx FTER FER

At 1 January 2016,

R-T—R"E—HA—H"

net of accumulated B 25Tk 5

amortisation 1,113 - - 1,113
Acquisition of a subsidiary WiE — kT B A A - 2,165 3 2,168
Amortisation provided N IH S

during the year (777) (108) - (885)
Exchange realignment PE H FEE = 5 - 5
At 31 December 2016, RZZT—NF

net of accumulated +—A=+—H

amortisation HOBR 2FTEEH 336 2,062 3 2,401
Cost RANME 3,885 2,170 3 6,058
Accumulated amortisation RETEE Y (3,549) (108) - (3,657)
Net carrying amount SR RE 336 2,062 3 2,401
At 1 January 2015, R-ZE—FRF—H—H

net of accumulated HBR Rty

amortisation 1,890 - - 1,890
Amortisation provided FREERE

during the year (777) - - (777)
At 31 December 2015, RZE—RF

net of accumulated +—A=+—8"

amortisation k% Sty 1,113 - - 1,113
Cost PR AE 3,885 - - 3,885
Accumulated amortisation 2ty (2,772) - - (2,772)
Net carrying amount R 1,113 - - 1,113

Amortisation of HK$885,000 (2015: HK$777,000) is included
in the “administrative expenses” of the consolidated income
statement.

#: §5885,0008 L (ZZF—HR%F : 777,00087T)
FAGZERER[TTHRER] -
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22 SUBSIDIARIES

138

Particulars of the principal subsidiaries are as follows:

22 B~ A

TEZMBLARERMT

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Percentage of equity
registration and paid-up/registered attributable to
Name Note  operations capital the Company Principal activities
AL /R R ERTRARRA KRREERE
£78 fi  EEm HE/ERER BAlt TEER
2016 2015
—E-NE Z“E-IE
Accord Advance Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$10 100 100 Investment holding
TEBR AR RBRIES LakoEr RERHR
Dongguan Manixon New Materials 1 The PRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and sale of
and Components Company Limited* HE 599,590,000 electronic components
RRENEIMRTGERAR A 49,590,000% T BERHES Tk
Foshan Rifeng Electronic Co., Ltd. 1 The PRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and sale of
BLUEEETHERAR HE 15$1,000,000 electronic components
A A1,000,000% 7T RERHEESTLN
High Merit Group Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holding
EBRUHE LBRIET RARR
Luminous Town Electric Co., Ltd. Taiwan Registered 58.90 43.16  Investment holding
EREFROBRAA A TW$668,308,610 RERR
HRER
668,308,61037 & %
Dongguan Luminous Town Electric Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered 58.90 4316 Manufacture and sale of
REERETERAR f HK$11,550,000 electronic components
HMER BEREES TN
11,550,000/ 7T
Kunshan Hongzheng Electric Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered 58.90 4316 Manufacture, process
RIEFETHERAR HE 545,300,000 and sale of electronic
HER components
5,300,000 B MIRBET Tl
Jiangxi Telexon Electronics Company i The PRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and sale of
Limited* HE RMB40,000,000 electronic components
IREEEETERAR FHER RERFEESTLN
AR #40,000,0007C
Johnstone International Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$1 100 100 Investment holding
NHEBERER LT EBRUHS LBRIET REER
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22 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

22 B A ] (¢

At

)

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Percentage of equity
registration and paid-up/registered attributahle to
Name operations capital the Company Principal activities
AL R R ERTRAZRA KRREERA
£ BEW HE/ERER BAlt TEER
2016 2015
—E-NE —E-1%
Long Trade (Macao Commercial Offshore) Macau Registered 100 100 Trading of raw materials
Limited o MOP100,000 BERIH
R¥85 (EMEREERE) BRAR A A100,0002P97
Man Fat International Trading The PRC Registered 100 100 Trading of electronic
(Shanghai) Company Limited* HE 15$200,000 components
ERERZS (L8) BRAA & 7200,000% 7T BEETH
Man Jin Electronics (Shenzhen) Company The PRC Registered 100 100 Trading of electronic
Limited * HE HK$3,500,000 components
BEET (R BRAT & 73,500,000/ 7T BEETLH
Man Yue (China) Investment Limited* The PRC Registered 100 100 Investment holding
B (1B) REFRAA e IS$120,000,000 RERR
HtER
120,000,000 7T
Man Yue Electronics Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2, 100 100 Trading of electronic
ERETERAA BE Non-voting deferred components
HK$3,000,000 EES Tl
LERET
BREZRELR
3,000,000 7
Man Yue Holdings (BVI) Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
RERAES S$10,000 REER
ZiBIR10,0005% T
Man Yue Technology (China) Ltd* The PRC Registered 100 100 Investment holding
EnRs (hE) BRAA HE S$48,000,000 REBR
HMER
48,000,000%7C
Man Yue Technology Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary US$10 100 100 Investment holding
ERRHEBRLT Hong Kong ERERI0ET RERR
RERAHE/ER
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22 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

140

Bt

il

2B AR ()

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Percentage of equity
registration and paid-up/registered attributahle to
Name Note  operations capital the Company Principal activities
MR/ R ERTRMERE ARREERE
£#78 M EEE HE/ERER ARl TEER
2016 2015
—E-NE ZB-1E
MMS Electronics Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Trading of electronic
BEETERLA Bk EERIAET components
BEB T
MMS Logistics Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Trading of electronic
Bk HK$10,000 components
EiBAk10,000% T BEETLH
Rifeng Qingyuan Electronic Co., Ltd. The PRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and sale of
RY (B&) ETERAT e HK$80,000,000 raw materials
HER BUERHERMH
80,000,000/ 7T
Rihong (Yaan) Electronics Co., Ltd.* 1 The PRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and sale of
BA (BR) EFERAR HE 15$23,000,000 electronic components
&R BERHET Tk
23,000,000% 7
Samxon Electronic Components Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Trading of electronic
—EETEHERAA E5 LRERET components
EES Tl
Samxon Electronics (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.* 1 The PRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and sale of
BH=fFET (RX) BRAH HE 15$96,775,000 electronic components
HRER BERBEES TN
96,775,000 T
Searange Investment Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Trading of equity
BEREERLA E Lo investments
EERIRE
Splendid Skill Holdings Limited British Virgin Islands Ordinary US$10 100 100 Investment holding
RERES LaR0ET REER
Stand New Enterprise Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Investment holding
UHRERRAA BB LaRET RAER
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22 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Bt

il

2B AR ()

Place of Nominal value
incorporation/ of issued and Percentage of equity
registration and paid-up/registered attributahle to
Name Note  operations capital the Company Principal activities
MR/ R ERTRMERE ARREERE
£#78 M EEE HE/ERER ARl TEER
2016 2015
—E-NE ZB-1E
Starzeon Electronics Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Trading of electronic
BERETARAT Bk EERIAET components
BEB T
Starzeon Electronics (Dongguan) Co., Ltd.* The PRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and sale of
BEXET (R%) BRAA HE 15$15,000,000 electronic components
AR HERBEES TN
15,000,000 T
TradeUNIT Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100 100 Trading of raw materials
FEEERAT Hong Kong HK$9,500,000 BERME
EBRREE/ER E38A%9,500,0007 T
Wuxi Man Yue Electronics Company I The PRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and sale of
Limited* e 15$30,000,000 electronic components
BHENETERAT HtER BERHES Tl
30,000,000% 7T
X-CON Electronics Limited British Virgin Islands/ Ordinary 100 100 Trading of electronic
X-CONETBRAR Hong Kong Us$1 components
RBRAER/ER LEkiEr Egs Tl
Xinjiang Join Yue Electronics 1 The PRC Registered 100 100 Manufacture and sale of
New Materials Company Ltd.* H /598,000,000 raw materials
HETHETMRERAT FHHE 8,000,000 T BUERHERMH
Yuk Wah Electronics Company Limited Hong Kong Ordinary 100 100 Investment holding
FEETERAA & HK$80,000 REAR
EiBA%80,000% T
SRR HARA I ThePRC Registered 75 75 Manufacture and
HE RMB10,000,000 sale of chemical material
HER SUERHEENH
AR#10,000,0007C
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22 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

1 The subsidiaries are registered as wholly-foreign-owned enterprises
under the PRC law.

2 Shares held directly by the Company.

*  The company name in English is a direct translation of the
registered Chinese name for the purpose of identification.

#  The company name in Chinese is a direct translation of the
registered English name for the purpose of identification.

All the subsidiaries of the Company are limited liability
companies.

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which,
in the opinion of the directors, principally affected the
results for the Year or formed a substantial portion of the
net assets of the Group.

The following table lists out the information relating to
Luminous Town Electric Co., Ltd. (“Luminous Town”), the only
subsidiary of the Group which has a material non-controlling
interest (NCI). The summarised financial information presented
below represents the amounts before any inter-company

1 WENBRARNIREBERBEETIMAIINTEE
(=F )

2 ARFEEFBAZBD

* fiﬁj%ffﬁéi%ﬁ?ﬂﬁﬂfﬂﬁ%ﬁza%ﬁ%% '
8

# WXAREMAEMAEXEEzEEZEE &
PR o

>

ARAFEHBATIS BEREALT

ERFAINRZARBINB AR NEERAS
IBREANFEREAIBRAREEER
BEEZEHN 2HERR

T%%K@Jﬁf§$%l ME—AEERNEE
R EERE GEERRREEZ) 2HBA
ﬂ)ﬁiﬁiaﬁ?—ﬂxfﬁﬁﬁﬁ a) ([ ]) Zﬁ
e THRM 2 MK E R s ERI A

M HAI 2 &8 ©

elimination.

2016

—E—xF

HK$’000

FaET

NCI percentage SEEERR AR R R B AL 41.1%
Current assets MENVEE 207,673
Non-current assets EmBEE 23,317
Current liabilities mENAE 67,506
Non-current liabilities SEmEAE 1,566
Net assets BEFE 161,918
Carrying amount of NCI FEIE IR AR R AR R 66,548
Revenue WA 92,575
Profit for the year REZ & 5,387
Total comprehensive income ’i\ﬁﬂﬁlﬁﬁ%@%ﬁi (4,293)
Profit allocated to NCI DT IR IR R R 2k 2,214
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22 SUBSIDIARIES (CONTINUED) 2B RFE (58)
2016
—E-REF
HK$’000
FHET
Cash flows from operating activities e HERE 22,228
Cash flows from investing activities REFHZRERE (1,111)
Cash flows from financing activities MEEH RERE (20,831)
\ Y AN A >
23 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES REELEZEE
2016 2015
—E—REF —E-h%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FEx FExT
Share of net assets B EESE 96,461 95,916
Loans to a joint venture LY HEEREIER 100,077 96,989
Due from joint ventures WG & 2 FIE 26,782 34,438
Due to joint ventures & &atEZHIB (19,751) (19,780)
The loans to a joint venture, amounts due from and due to LT HeEPECEN  BRKEMNE

joint ventures are unsecured, interest-free and repayable
on demand or per trading credit terms except for loans
amounting to HK$71,257,000 (2015: HK$68,169,000) which
are interest-bearing at a rate of 4.90% (2015: 6.15%) per
annum and expected to be recovered after one year.

Included in amounts due to joint ventures are trade payables
to joint ventures amounting to HK$19,751,000 (2015:
HK$19,780,000). An ageing analysis of the trade payables
to joint ventures as at the balance sheet date, based on the
invoice date, is as follows:

EhEZFIEDNERR £ BAKREX
FIERFEEHEE - H AE71,257,000
BT (ZZE—HF : 68,169,00087T) &
FIRERNR490E (ZZE—FF : 6.15/F)
B - BFEHIBNBE—FKE -

BRNEGECEIHREBEFRERENGERE
2 FERE 5 BRFK19,751,0008 7 (—ZE—H
£ :19,780,00087T) - REE R  IREZR

N =
BHEIECENEEtREFRIERD
AT

2016 2015
—E—XE —E-h%F
HK$’000 % HK$’000 %
FET A7k FET Aot
Trade payables: BB SRR
1 - 3 months —Z=@A 19,751 100 19,780 100
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23 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES BREERELRE (B)
(CONTINUED)
Particulars of the joint ventures, all of which are held ERMNEBATHEFEEZEELEERN
indirectly through subsidiaries, are as follows: ™
Place of Percentage of
Particulars of incorporation/ TH&EZB AL
issued shares/ registrationand  Owner-ship Voting Profit  Principal
Name registered capital operations interest power sharing activities
SRTRG/ e/
=8 afMER 2 FHE AR SLwd MEEEE REE BeEN IEXK
Ever Reliance Industrial Issued capital of Hong Kong 43 50 48 Investment
Investments Limited 100 shares of holding
(“Ever Reliance”) HK$1 each
REIZREARRA 100 BREE 0 REER
(T&ED BT EBIRA
Nan Tong Xin Cheng Registered The PRC 49 33 49 Manufacture
Electronics Company Ltd. HK$6,080,000 and sale of
raw materials
HBNAETARAA & 46,080,000 HE BERHE
RA#

144



Annual Report /2016 Fi3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

23 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 23
(CONTINUED)

The following table sets out the summarised financial
information of the Group’s joint ventures:

X
o
=

E

4= A

V

I =

\

N/

Ho R M et

i

&)

TR AKERECX M B EN

= -

2016 2015
—EB—REF —E—FEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Share of the joint ventures’ assets EEEECEZEENREE
and liabilities:
Non-current assets IEREEE 157,143 159,894
Current assets mENEE 26,878 23,595
Current liabilities mEAaE (70,999) (72,705)
Non-current liabilities ERBEE (16,561) (14,868)
Net assets BEFE 96,461 95,916
Share of the joint ventures’ results: JE(EE &R 2E
Total income FEUL N 79,237 57,777
Total expenses el (70,381) (59,073)
Profit/(loss) for the year REEHRN/(EE) 8,856 (1,296)
Other comprehensive loss E2mEE (8,311) (7,794)
Total comprehensive income 2HE SRR 545 (9,090)
Share of net assets B{IEEEFE
2016 2015
—E-RE —FT—0F
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
At 1 January n—H—H 95,916 105,006
Profit/(loss) for the year REE @A/ (EE) 8,856 (1,296)
Other comprehensive loss Hib 2 EEE (8,311) (7,794)
At 31 December RT-_A=+—H 96,461 95,916
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23 INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 3MNELEIRE ()

(CONTINUED)

Set out below are the summarised financial information

TXHINREZHHENHRE - REFH

of Ever Reliance, which is accounted for using the equity BEHEAE  UWHERALREBE 2 FELE
method and is considered as a material joint venture of the -
Group.
2016 2015
—E-RE =—E-IF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
Summarised balance sheet MEEERER
Non-current assets EREEE 294,143 289,818
Current assets (excluding cash and ﬁijjﬁ? (T"BHEBEEE
cash equivalents) NEeEEM) 935 -
Cash and cash equivalents B2 kIReSED 12,823 7,882
Current financial liabilities (excluding Vil ==t
trade and other payables and (TBEERNEZEREI R
provisions) HEM BRI REE) (71,257) (68,169)
Other current liabilities (including trade B nsalE
and other payables and provisions) (PIEENE SRR K
Hfth FEATIB R B AR ) (29,030) (32,789)
Non-current financial liabilities ERFLAarE (30,600) (30,600)
Other non-current liabilities HiEmshaE (34,502) (30,973)
Net assets BEFE 142,512 135,169
summarised statement of HEEEE/(EE) &
comprehensive income/(loss)
Revenue A 37,819 14,912
Depreciation JTE (408) (434)
Interest income FE YA 122 36
Interest expense FEZH (3,558) (4,016)
Income tax FriSit (5,731) -
Profit for the year REZHF] 20,653 1,368
Other comprehensive loss HirmEs (13,309) (12,144)
Total comprehensive income/(l0ss) eEW=/(EE) 2 7,344 (10,776)
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in HEAEBERRE 2 ER
Ever Reliance
Gross amounts of Ever Reliance’s REEEFELRE
net assets 142,512 135,169
Group’s effective interest NER 7 ERERS 48% 48%
Group’s share of Ever Reliance’s net AEERLERECEEFER
assets and carrying amount in RERE KR 2 RAE
the consolidated financial statements 68,406 64,881
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The following table sets out the summarised financial
information of the Group’s shared portion of joint ventures

excluding Ever Reliance:
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P
op

\

):

SEhEIWRE (4

TR AKEREREEE (TEER
5) BPZHBERR

2016 2015

—E-RE ZE-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHExT FHE T

Loss for the year KEZEE (1,057) (1,953)

Other comprehensive loss HEi2mEER (1,923) (1,964)

Total comprehensive loss T HEIBLRRE (2,980) (3,917)
24 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE 0 N— Rl 2 RBI 2 E

2016 2015

—E-RFE ZZE-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T T THxT

Share of net assets E(REEFAE - 72,438

Due from an associate JE I — T BGe & 2 R R IE - 3,651

During the Year, the Group acquired the 15.74% equity
interest of the associate and the associate became a
subsidiary of the Group.

The amount due from an associate in 2015 was trade in
nature, unsecured, interest-free and had no fixed terms of
repayment.

RAFE - NEBEWEE SR 515.74%%
¥z o M2 R AR SN EE 2K B
NCI

—T-hF - BR-HEBERRZEEE

ZUHE  BEH 2S5 AYEETEER
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24 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

(CONTINUED)

24 TR —EIHE A

Particulars of the associate, which is held indirectly through ZR—FENBARHERECBMERRE
a subsidiary, are as follows: AT
Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable
to the Group
AEBEMGFIERE
BRI
2016 2015
Luminous Town Electric 28,845,302 Republic of China - 43.16%  Trading of
Co., Ltd. (“Luminous Town") ordinary shares HERE electronic
BRETRHAERD of TWD10 each components
((BRET]) 28,845,302 BEEFlf
SHEE
1057 5 ¥ 2 HiEhk
The Group’s share of the results of its associate, which is NEBFEREIE FTBA AT v EERE
unlisted, and its aggregated assets (including goodwill) and wRE (BFERE) e/
liabilities, are as follows:
2016 2015
—EB—RE —E—FEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FE T
Assets BE - 125,472
Liabilities A& - (53,034)
Revenue WA - 97,248
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (FBB) a5 (2,646) 544
Other comprehensive loss Hith 2 mEEE (381) (4,777)
Total comprehensive loss ZHEIBREE (3,027) (4,233)
Share of net assets FE{h & =R E
2016 2015
—E-XF —E-AF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FExT
At 1 January Kn—H—H 72,438 76,671
Consideration in acquisition of a subsidiary U —RIMB AR Z B
(note 44) (Btitaq) (69,411) -
(Loss)/profit for the year REE (FE) /e (2,646) 544
Other comprehensive loss Hih 2 mEE (381) (4,777)
At 31 December R+-—A=+—8H - 72,438
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24 INVESTMENT IN AN ASSOCIATE

(CONTINUED)

Share of net assets (Continued)

AR A BT R T

24N —FAEE RNAI 2 KE (8)

BEEERE (B)

2016 2015
—E—RE —ZE—AHEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FET
Reconciled to the Group’s interest in BARE B IENE TR
Luminous Town HER
Gross amounts of associate’s net assets B NREEFRE AT - 167,836
Group’s effective interest AEE BB #ER - 43.16%
Group’s share of Luminous Town’s REMIERRAMAAEE
net assets and carrying amount FERIEME v EEFE
in the consolidated financial statements PEIETIE - 72,438
25 INVENTORIES 25178
2016 2015
BN —E-fHE
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FExT
Raw materials R E 153,687 192,364
Work in progress THEE 138,615 83,640
Finished goods Ik 164,258 187,514
456,560 463,518

The analysis of the amount of inventories recognised as an

R RFAX Bt ABa 2 FEHEN T4

expense and included in profit or loss is as follows: o
2016 2015
—EB—RE —E—FEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FHE T FHETT
Cost of inventories sold BHEFERA 824,679 800,998
Write-down of inventories FEMOR 2,440 1,177
Reversal of write-down of inventories 5 &R # B (3,644) (2,794)
Cost of sales THE R 823,475 799,381

The reversal of write-down of inventories made in prior years

arose due to disposal of these inventories.

BEFEHELFEMRBEL BN EZ

EEEMH -
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26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26 & H i FE U IR
2016 2015
—B-XE C—B-®fE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T FE T
Trade receivables EUE ZERFK 504,047 352,923
Provision for impairment of trade FEUE 5 BR R (B B i
receivables (23,127) (9,138)
480,920 343,785
Prepayments, deposits and JENFIE e R
other receivables Hfh e U 8 86,715 62,140
567,635 405,925

150

All of trade and other receivables are expected to be
recovered within one year.

The Group’s trading terms with its customers are mainly
on credit, except for new customers, where payment in
advance is normally required. The credit period is generally
90 days, extending up to 150 days for major customers.
Each customer has a maximum credit limit. The Group seeks
to maintain strict control over its outstanding receivables
and has a credit control department to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by senior
management. In view of the aforementioned and the fact
that the Group’s trade receivables relate to a large number
of diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. Trade receivables are non-interest-bearing.
Credit risk was hedged mainly through credit insurance
policies.

PR FEUE 5 ARk I L At R M R TR TR B S
R—FRHKE -

REBHERFP I RGEREEREE
N EMRPFP—RAEELNR - EEH
—MRAROKR  FERFAEREHRZI50
X - BREFHUXERSEER - A5H
?517]%ﬁﬁﬂiﬂﬁlE’XZJ@H&mlﬁ%ﬁﬂﬁ_ﬂ%E
# - WERBEEEHBEEERBRRER
K- -=afRERABTEHRT A& - B
RERRARAEE EREZERKE
RETRERE - I&ti#ﬂiiﬂé%ﬁ%ﬂwﬂ
%o BRNEBE SRR BRE - EERRE
BBREERRE A -
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26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

(CONTINUED)

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the balance
sheet date, based on the payment due date and net of
provision for impairment, is as follows:

~

26 J%H%%%E%?ﬁ&ﬁ@ﬁ%%fﬁﬁ

REER  BAFEABFEZREES
Rk (BB ) REkDTT

2016 2015

—E-RE —E-0fF
HK$'000 %  HK$'000 %
FTHET Bok FTHET Batk
Current and within payment terms  BJE3 R AR 5% BARE (A 352,154 74 240,797 70
1 - 3 months past due BEE3EA 102,278 21 82,967 24
4 - 6 months past due B4z 6E A 11,144 2 2,908 1
7 - 12 months past due mE7E12(8 A 3,496 1 773 -
Over 1 year past due g i) e 11,848 2 16,340 5
480,920 100 343,785 100

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the balance
sheet date, based on the invoice date and net of provision

for impairment, is as follows:

REER  REZARGAEZRKRE SR
R (HBRRERRE) 2Rk DT

2016 2015

—E-REF —E-IF
HK$’000 %  HK$'000 %
TET BA TET BA
1 - 3 months 12318 A 364,201 76 229,662 67
4 - 6 months VEYXIEDS! 92,176 19 86,136 25
7 - 12 months 721218 A 9,220 2 4,780 1
Over 1 year BimlF 15,323 23,207 7
480,920 100 343,785 100
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26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 26

152

(CONTINUED)

Eﬁ

IR —

/N

E

%% 2 B S Eo A R MR TR

The movements in provision for impairment of trade JEWE ZRF ZBEREZ ST -
receivables are as follows:

2016 2015
—EB—RE —E—FEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FExT
At 1 January m—HA—8 9,138 8,217
Acquisition of a subsidiary U B8 — FE P /B 2 ) 6,018 -
Impairment losses recognised EER 7 BEEE 10,473 5,056
Amount written off as uncollectible N R] Y [B] 2R TE i AR (1,252) (525)
Impairment losses reversed BR[O 2 R EEE (494) (3,493)
Exchange realignment PE e (756) (117)
At 31 December Rt+—_A=+—H 23,127 9,138
As of 31 December 2016, trade receivables of HK$26,264,000 RZE—-—R"RE+ZAHA=+—8"

(2015: HK$13,548,000) were impaired, for which, provision
of HK$23,127,000 (2015: HK$9,138,000) has been made. The
individually impaired trade receivables relate to customers

that management expected only a portion of the receivables

is recoverable.

The ageing analysis of the trade receivables that are neither

26,264,000/ 70 (Z T —HF :

13,548,000

BIL) ZEWE ZERERCRE S MAEE
2Rt sHIR 523,127,000 (ZE—H

F 9,138,000;‘%ﬁ)
BEREWKE SRR -
1 FEYRFRIE -

BRE P HE B
EIRERHR

LU @ &R

SR (85 71 & K R AR AR E < R E 5

individually nor collectively considered to be impaired is as BRAERESHTT ¢
follows:

2016 2015
—E—REF —E-hHF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FiEx FExT
Current and within payment terms BHER K A SR HARR A 352,154 240,797
1 - 3 months past due EENZE3{E A 99,969 82,967
4 - 6 months past due wHRAZE 6 & A 10,316 2,908
7 - 12 months past due BH7E 1218 A 3,496 731
Over 1 year past due B HARRE L 11,848 11,972
477,783 339,375
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26 TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
(CONTINUED)

Receivables that were current and within payment terms
relate to a large number of diversified customers for whom
there was no recent history of default.

Receivables that were past due but not impaired relate
to a number of independent customers that have a good
track record with the Group. Based on past experience, the
management believes that no provision for impairment is
necessary in respect of these balances as there has not been
a significant change in credit quality and the balances are
still considered fully recoverable.

27 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

AR SRR MG

%@%% 5 BR 7k N Eo b e L 5k I8

BIER R i SRR A 2 FE W R IR TS 0 B
MHIER R LR KETREF °

A H B A R WK IR T BN B AN SR ]
EE&B&%EEﬁ“Z%:Fﬁ BF - 1REBE
R EEERRBANZFAERIEL
ﬁéfﬁﬁéﬁ AEEERYEEREE - M
BERDRR AR 28 E -

27 AAR Bt A B e mEE

/

2016 2015
—E-—XE —E-HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F#ET
Hong Kong listed equity investments, E8LETRAKE - IHHE
at market value 45 51

The above equity investments were classified as held for
trading at 31 December 2015 and 2016.

28 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

PR ARENR —E—RFER T —RF
+-—BA=+—HBHREABEESE -

R=
28 TSI A
2016 2015
—EB—REF —_E—FF
Assets Liabilities Assets Liabilities

aE &f& aE &f&
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEx  T#Ex T TERT

Analysed into: DT

— Interest rate swap — M Rim H - 7,994 - 15,764
= 7,994 - 15,764

Portion classified as current S A REN D - (3,875) - (5,040)

Non-current portion IERENZLD - 4,119 - 10,724
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28

DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
(CONTINUED)

At 31 December 2016, the Group held two (2015: two) interest
rate swap agreements in place with a notional amount
of HK$200,000,000 (2015: HK$200,000,000) to manage
certain exposure to changes in interest rate in relation to
bank loans.

The fair value of the Group’s investments in the interest rate
swap agreements at 31 December 2016 has been determined
on the basis of valuation carried out by an independent
qualified valuer, Ravia Global Appraisal Advisory Limited
(2015: Grant Sherman Appraisal Limited), through the
application of the estimated price for the transfer of an asset
or liability between identified knowledgeable and willing
parties that reflects the respective interests of those parties
(2015: the Black’s Model).

The net changes in the fair value of interest rate swap
contracts and forward currency contracts which did not meet
the criteria for hedge accounting for accounting purposes
amounting to HK$2,198,000 and HK$Nil respectively were
credited (2015: net changes in the fair value of forward
currency contracts and interest rate swap amounting to gain
of HK$585,000 were credited and loss of HK$4,647,000
were debited respectively) to the consolidated income
statement during the Year.

28 0TI A (58)

R—TE—RNE+-_RA=+—H  &x&
EEAEMH (ZE—HFE: MH) B
/200,000,000 (= T — A F:
200,000,000 70) 2 FXIFEEH) - DAE
BETHRITEFAR 2 IR EeRM -

R_TE—RE+-_A=+—H AEBER®
FEEHEOREZ AABERBILA
&L {ERTRavia Global Appraisal Advisory
Limited (ZZE—RAF: FBFHER A
q) ERERNBEREEEEE H ARK
BAZERHEEEENBEETHETN
BE(ZE—AHF : MORER) BTG
BEEEBF -

HEHEMNME  AEBERGERER
PR EE RS EERIRE 2 5K 8 5
BHNREHEERGARAFEANZARE
) FE D R A2,198,0008 T K EETT
AT RSB ASHRFEIEE
BRI AR EZEFEED R A585000%8
TR M 2= 5T A K 4,647,000 JT B9 &5 18 40
BR) o

29 TIME DEPOSIT WITH BANKS, CASH AND 20RITEHFR - HakBeF
CASH EQUIVALENTS B

2016 2015

—E—REF —E-—FEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

T FExT

Cash and bank balances IRe NIRTT455 229,446 233,791
Time deposits within 3 months to REARIESHAE=EA

maturity when placed VAR 2 5 BRTF 3R 53,670 114,006

Cash and cash equivalents B RBSEEY 283,116 347,797

Time deposits over 3 months to maturity A FE AR BB
when placed @A ZEHEFER 7,775 11,936
290,891 359,733
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29 TIME DEPOSIT WITH BANKS, CASH AND

CASH EQUIVALENTS (CONTINUED)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating bank deposit rates.
Short term time deposits range from one day to three
months depending on the immediate cash requirements
of the Group, and earn interest at the respective short
term time deposit rates. The cash and bank balances are
deposited with creditworthy banks with no recent history of
default.

As at the balance sheet date, the amount of time deposit,
cash and cash equivalents denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”)
was HK$109,360,000 (2015: HK$119,685,000). The RMB
is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under the PRC’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign
Exchange Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange
the RMB for other currencies through banks authorised to
conduct foreign exchange business.

30 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the
balance sheet date, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

29

30

AR A BT R T

RITERFR B LIEEF

B (&)

RITIR S EFBRITE AR EREF2S -
RHTHERRIAEEZARREH
Ko gUNFIREIEA 2 BHEEL - I
1R IR 2 58 HA E HATF SR A R BRERCRLS, © 3R
RRITERTFRIOAEENCHEEEE

R ZIRTT
REEH UARBEJTARK] &
BExERER ReERREFEY

#$109,360,000% T (= T — A F:
119,685,000 7T) - AR A B R H %
AEMER - B2 BEPRZINEESE
B & 45HE - EERMNETERE A%
E S BRI TIMNE 15 2 R1TH
AR S MABHMER o

N E SERARER

EFHE  mEZAHFECRNBE SR
TQ’( FEK JJTJ?ZZDT-

%

2016 2015
—E—REF —E—hF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FET FHET

Trade payables: FERNE SR -
—1-3 months — 1231 A 141,491 98,048
— 4 - 6 months — 4% 6{E A 21,968 35,176
— 7 - 12 months —7&21218 H 3,381 1,239
— Over 1 year — BB 10,438 8,197
177,278 142,660
Bills payables FETZ2% 6,141 49,126
183,419 191,786
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A M ERERMEE
AH 4= 1S £,
31 BANK LOANS 31 IRITE K
2016 2015
—E—RE —5a13
HK$’'000 HK$’'000
FET FExT
Analysed into: ST :
Bank loans, unsecured, repayable: RUAT B EE 2 SR
EE'(TT%W\
— Within one year, with reference ——FR - 2RBRERERRK
to the repayment schedule 544,815 505,477
— Within one vyear, related to borrowings — —ER @ B ERTH
with breached covenants lE=a=t 15,000
— In the second year E-FR 224,218 262,970
— In the third to fifth years, inclusive —E=Z2ERF (HEME
BIEEA) 25,715 45,128
809,748 813,575
Portion classified as current liabilities SSREAMEAERN (559,815) (505,477)
Non-current portion SERB D 249,933 308,098
As at 31 December 2016, unsecured bank loans of the Group RZE—ARF+-_A=+—H ' ~5&H
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denominated in HKD, USD and other currencies amounted to
HK$677,166,000 (2015: HK$680,795,000), HK$126,800,000
(2015: HK$132,780,000) and HK$5,782,000 (2015: Nil)
respectively. The weighted average interest rate of the
unsecured bank loans was 3.29% (2015: 2.59%) per annum.
All bank loans bear floating interest rates and are repayable
by instalments up to 2020. The carrying amounts of the
Group’s bank loans approximate their fair values.

As at 31 December 2016, bank loans with current portion
and non-current portion amounted to HK$559,815,000
and HK$249,933,000 (2015: HK$505,477,000 and
HK$308,098,000), respectively. Man Yue Technology
Holdings Limited is required, to comply with certain
restrictive financial covenants, including, inter alia, interest
coverage ratios, net debt to EBITDA ratios and finance
charge to EBITDA ratios.

As at 31 December 2016, the Group breached the covenant
requirements of certain banking facilities. HK$809,748,000
(2015: HK$813,575,000) of such banking facilities has been
utilised as at 31 December 2016, of which HK$15,000,000
(2015: Nil) has been reclassified from non-current liabilities
to current liabilities as a result of the breach. The Group
has obtained one-off waivers from strict compliance with
the covenant requirements in relation to all the outstanding
bank borrowings classified as non-current liabilities at the
year end.

LA TT %E&Eﬁﬂfﬁ%ﬂﬁz,ﬂﬂﬂfﬁﬁ
RITERD B B677,166,0008 T (Z=
4 :680,795,000% JT) * 126,800,000
BT (ZZT— R F : 132,780,000 7T) K&
5,782,000 T (ZZE—RHF: &) - ZFH
ERIRITE R 2 INHEFHF R E A3.29
E(ZZ—RF :259%) - FARITER
i’ﬂmﬁbﬂ%%ﬁ%\ CWER T ZTFLA
"Hﬁgiﬁ AEFERTERZEEDESE
A ERE

)\5/\\:7 /\i"f‘ A= ‘f’ = If\E /TJ\
2 BNERER - 82 3E BN HAER 5 Bl A&559,815, 1000
7 7T 249,933,000 T (Z T — A F
505,477,000/ 7T 308,098,000/ Jr) °
& “ﬂ%&‘z‘i@ﬁﬁﬁ //\L#%%EBE%IJ
IEEM“ CBE(H EF'@?%) A B 7
K 5$T§%¥TEB|TDAtt$LA&Eﬁ“FﬁEZ;T
EBITDALL X o

RZZE—XRF+-_A=+—8 ' &x5E
ERETRITHEZEEHATET NF
—RNFt+-_A=+—"HE®8HZERT
& §809748ooo/%75(_ T — f F:
813,575,000/ JT) * H 15,000,000/ 7T
(ZE2E—1F: 8B AERTZHEHTMA

FRBEEEFOBLSRDAE - AKH

RERCIUABEDBRIERBRELIARE

@fETT1ﬁEHX?%%@ET%L—r LHERTE L
RIEFR R o
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A M ERERMEE
32 DEFERRED TAX 32 IRIETR A

The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during FAZEEHBEERAEBEEEHNOT
the year were as follows:
Deferred tax assets EEBIBEE

Provisions Losses

for trade available
receivables for offsetting

and write-down

against future

for inventories taxable profits Others Total
AR
EWRES 3 85 AR 3R
RREER EBREHER
FE MR ZEE Hith Gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THET THET THET THET
Gross deferred tax assets at RZE-—AF—A—HZ
1 January 2015 BRI ERE 88 13,919 2,807 16,814
Deferred tax credited/(charged) to the ERRGAMZEEEA/
consolidated income statement (H0B%) ZIRIEFEIA
during the year (Note 14) (H15E14) 34 (1,729) (134) (1,829)
Exchange realignment 0 53 - (654) - (654)
Gross deferred tax assets at R-ZZE—RAF+=-A
31 December 2015 and =+—HRZE—RF
1 January 2016 —RB—BZEE
MBEEE®E 122 11,536 2,673 14,331
Acquisition of a subsidiary (Note 44) WEE—TEMRB AR (Ait44) - 2,599 - 2,599
Deferred tax credited to the FARGE WEmRFTA
consolidated income statement ZIEERIE (Hiti4)
during the year (Note 14) 1,047 3,581 565 5,193
Exchange realignment TE 5 - (643) 7 (636)
Gross deferred tax assets at RZZE—RF+=A
31 December 2016 =t+—HZEL
MIAEERAE 1,169 17,073 3,245 21,487
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32 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 32 EEFIA (48)
Deferred tax liabilities FEiEHRIBEEE

Depreciation
allowance in
Revaluation excess of related

of properties depreciation Total
BRFEZ
EfhYE BETERE st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T FHBT T
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZEBE-—RAF—HA—HZ

at 1 January 2015 EREHIEAGEE 32,951 1,574 34,525
Deferred tax credited to the FARGAERBERITALZ

consolidated income statement BRI (H5t14)

during the year (Note 14) - (333) (333)
Deferred tax debited to equity HEG Tt REFMES

during the year arising on FRARERNRZ

revaluation of land and buildings EERIE (f75t14)

(Note 14) 3,337 - 3,337
Exchange realignment [ 3 2 (1,639) - (1,639)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZZE—HF+=HA

at 31 December 2015 and =+—BEZE—RX

1 January 2016 F—A—HZEE

MR B 34,649 1,241 35,890
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to  FRPEARZERINB/(GEAN)

the consolidated income statement 2 iBFERIIE (HfF14)

during the year (Note 14) 3,773 (124) 3,649
Deferred tax credited to equity HEG T REFmES

during the year arising on FARE=RTAZ

revaluation of land and buildings RIEFLIB (f15E14)

(Note 14) (713) = (713)
Exchange realignment b 5 2 (1,655) - (1,655)
Gross deferred tax liabilities RZE—~"F+=A

at 31 December 2016 =+—BZIEL

BIEEEE%E 36,054 1,117 37,171
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32 DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

For the purpose of the balance sheet presentation, certain
deferred tax assets and liabilities have been offset. The
following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances of the
Group for financial reporting purposes:

AR A BT R T

EIETIA (48)

REREERBRMS A TRLERESE
ENMBEEHHENE - %{/\Eﬁ‘%qﬁlﬁ%ﬁﬁ #®
AEBRERIBERDNIT

2016 2015
—E—RHF —E-h%F
HK$’000 HK$’000
TE T TBT
Net deferred tax assets recognised RIFEEEBBRPERZ
in the consolidated balance sheet RIERIE & B FE 16,400 13,396
Net deferred tax liabilities recognised RIFEEEBBRPERZ
in the consolidated balance sheet R IB B E/F5E (32,084) (34,955)
(15,684) (21,559)

The Group had unrecognised tax losses arising in Hong
Kong of HK$67,746,000 (2015: HK$53,180,000) that are
available indefinitely for offsetting against future taxable
profits of the companies in which the losses arose. The
Group also has unrecognised tax losses arising in the PRC
of HK$109,041,000 (2015: HK$116,931,000) that will expire
in one to five years for offsetting against future taxable
profits. The Group has tax losses not recognised amounting
to HK$176,787,000 (2015: HK$170,111,000) in total.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised amounting to
HK$38,438,000 (2015: HK$38,007,000) in respect of these
losses as they have arisen in subsidiaries that have been
loss-making for some time and it is not considered probable
that taxable profits will be available against which the tax
losses can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets of HK$17,073,000 (2015: HK$11,536,000)
has been recognised in respect of tax losses as of 31
December 2016 which the Group would utilise through
proper business planning in the coming years.

REBERREABZAERBEEIER
67,746,000/ 7T (ZZF —FA 4 : 53,180,000
Bor)  TERHBRAAKINEREEZ
NEZ KRR RF - REBE AR
B 2 R B SR B 75 5 #8109,041,00078
T (= & — A £ :116,931,0008 7T)
BR—Z2RFERNER - 7] AREKERK
ERB AN  REBERERNBE
B & 176,787,000 L (Z & — A F -
170,111,000 ) - AR ZEEBEEESE
REE—BRERNESSEEZHNBAR
BEERBEF 0] AAKINZERIEEE
ZAJREERK E&Ifﬁﬁﬁ%’%’*l&ﬂaﬁﬁwz
i XE B 18 & EE 538,438,000 L (ZF —
T : 38,007,000/ 7T) °

ER-E—RE+-_A=+—HAHEE
1B IR I R 18 & E17,073,000/8 70 (=
T—FHEF 11,536,000 7C) © AEBBH
RAREEFBEE FEHTEEA -
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32

33

34

DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10%
withholding tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign
investors from the foreign investment enterprises
established in the PRC. The requirement is effective from
1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31 December
2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there
is a tax treaty between the PRC and the jurisdiction of
the foreign investors. For the Group, the applicable rate
ranges from 5% to 10%. As at 31 December 2016, the
Group has unremitted earnings amounted to approximately
HK$165,489,000 (2015: HK$179,106,000). The corresponding
deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised, given that
the Company is able to control the dividend policy of these
subsidiaries and it is probable that these retained profits will
not be distributed in the foreseeable future because of the
Group’s funding plan of its PRC expansion.

There are no income tax consequences attaching to the
payment of dividends by the Company to its equity holders.

DEFERRED INCOME

The deferred income amounting to HK$10,603,000 (2015:
HK$11,635,000) of non-cash subsidies in relation to parcels
of land located in Wuxi, the PRC, was granted by the Jiangsu
Province Xishan Economic Development Management
Committee in 2004. The subsidy was in the form of a
reduction of the consideration for the acquisition of a
parcel of land in Wuxi paid by the Group. The purpose of the
subsidies is for industrial development in these areas.

32 IRFERIA (48)

BEPRBEMETE - RPRBEKZZ I
BERBEIINEEESIR 2B AZRK
10% 2 T8 - RERTETBE T /NF—
A—BREEW  BAR-_ZTtF+_A
=+t HUEBEEZAF - ki B EINEH
REEmMBAZRER 2 EIAREEERR
& AT RBEBRNB R - #A&E
M BRAMRENF5%EI0% > R_Z
—ANE+-A=+—H8 KEBZXEH
B %) 5165,489,000/8 7T (ZE—FHEF -
179,106,000/ 7T ) © EERZN A Bl REYE § 5%
EMBRARCREBEBERAEERF
BEREH BT EFEZFREB RN
A RAERAJETE DK + MK ERE
BERIEB(E -

ARAAERERE AL ZREDIKE
R ©

33 |AEUW A

10,603,000/ 7T (ZZF— A : 11,635,000
BIL) CBEEWA BT EES SR L2
RS HIHEBHLKERERE
BRZEER_TTNFERE - K T%SW
B2 AR AR E B AUE RN E
# 2 T T2 RAE - BB YRR
ZEMERETEER -

SHARE CAPITAL 34 fg 7K
ordinary shares EER
2016 2015
—EB-RF —E-HF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FE T FET
Issued and fully paid: BEITRAR
475,547,534 (2015: 476,239,534) 475,547,534% (ZE—RF :
ordinary shares of HK$0.10 each 476,239,5341% ) FAXEE

0.1078 7T 2 L 47,555 47,624
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34 SHARE CAPITAL (CONTINUED) 347N (48)
ordinary shares (continued) Emi (88)
A summary of the transactions involving the Company’s HRARBRAZRSGBMENT :

share capital is as follows:

Number of Share
shares in issue Issued premium
2ETRA capital account Total
B CERTRE RORER @t
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’'000

TER TER TERT

At 1 January 2015 RZZE-h%—A—H 479,239,534 47,924 168,158 216,082
Re-purchase of shares EEl 3 (3,000,000) (300) (2,296) (2,596)
At 31 December 2015 and R-E—HF+=A
1 January 2016 —t—HBERZE—RF
—R—H 476,239,534 47,624 165,862 213,486
Re-purchase of shares EOR K (692,000) (69) (404) (473)
At 31 December 2016 NZE—RF+=-B=+—H 475,547,534 47,555 165,458 213,013
Purchase of own shares A= =gy
During the Year, the company repurchased its own shares on RAFE @ ARRIRBRAELDES Fi%
the Stock Exchange as follows: M -

Purchase price per share

Number of shares SREBEE Aggregate
Month/Year repurchased Highest Lowest price paid
/R eEmRoEE BE RIK S 4EE
(HK$) (HK$) (HK$)
(#Bx) (B7T) (BT)
January 2016 —T—RF—H 692,000 0.70 0.68 473,560
Total BET 692,000 473,560
The total amount paid on the repurchased shares of MEER IR D X T2 8%8473,5605 7T 5
HK$473,560 was paid wholly out of retained profits. BB R R BT
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35

162

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 26 May 2006, the Company adopted the Share Option
Scheme for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible persons, including employees, directors and other
persons as specified under the scheme document, who
contribute to the success of the Group’s operations.

The Share Option Scheme became effective on 26 May 2006
and will remain in force for 10 years from that date.

The maximum number of the shares which may be issued
upon exercise of all outstanding share options granted and
yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option schemes of the Company shall not, in
aggregate, exceed 30% of the total number of issued shares
from time to time provided that the total number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all share options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other
share option schemes of the Company shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the total number of issued shares on 26 May
2006.

Each grant of the share options to a director, chief executive
or substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of their
associates, under the Share Option Scheme must comply with
the requirements of rule 17.04 of the Listing Rules and must
be subject to approval of the independent non-executive
directors to whom share options have not been granted.
In addition, any grant of share options to a substantial
shareholder or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, which would result in
the shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of all share
options already granted and to be granted to such person
in the 12-month period up to and including the date of such
grant in excess of 0.1% of the total number of shares of the
Company in issue and with an aggregate value in excess of
HK$5 million, is subject to prior approval from shareholders
in a general meeting.

35 B Ak fEnt &

RZBZEXRFRAZTARB » KAGRMA—
HERETE - BERHAEEZKINKE
EH BRIz e B/ AL (BiEFHEIXEH T
AZES  E=RHMAL) REER KO
e

BREAEN _FETNFAA-T"BRA
AR % B AR ET 106 HfR AR AR

HITERBERRETE RA R FE M EMmE
IRIEFTEIR B ERITE 2B M ARITEER
EMA TEITZRNEE aREZTEHE
BIAREETRMDBE 230% - HETEHER
BIEARE T 8 R AN BME A A A BB AR i At 2
AR 2 T BB m Al 21T 2 IR AR 8L -
AHRHTEBATEFAA=-ZTHEEHE
TR D 4222 10% ©

REBREFEEBRAMARGES =17
BMABREERFHEE 2 EABMEARL
BREAME EMHRE17.041 2 E AL
ARRERBRE B IERITESIE -
SHN  RAARREERF KB LIEHNITE
ERFEEFAMBBARLBERE - BB
BEEzZERLAH (2EZB) T =EA M
EHITEZ A TEER RBER 2 A R E
mBE BTG TFETZROBBEARARDE
1T B 7 #8 870.1% % 42 {8 {& 8 185,000,000/
7L AJRESRERIRR RS EEEE -
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35 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED)

The exercise price of the share options is determinable by
the Directors, but may not be less than the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the Company’s shares, (ii) the average
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets for the five trading
days immediately preceding the date of offer, and (iii) the
closing price of the Company’s shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotation sheet on the date of offer of the
share options, which must be a trading day.

The Group did not recognise any share option expense for

both years ended 31 December 2015 and 2016.

The following share options were outstanding under the
Share Option Scheme during the year:

AR A BT R T

35 RS ET S (4)

BREZITFERESET  ETEERT
W=k z&eE  OARBKRMHEE - (i)
AARBRHOREBEEZLENHHTARRS
BB EBEMERMEAFHERTE - &
(INARARROREREZLOBEH (KBERR
58) BT ERERAE 2 WHE -

REZE_ZE—AFR_ZFT—A"F+-A=+
—BIEWMEEE - AEEMEERTAER
R -

RER - BIRERTEI T 2 RETTE BN
T

2016 2015
—E—RF —E-—FREF
Weighted Weighted
average average
exercise Number of exercise Number of
price options price options
hnHEF BRE EFH 8 R A
TEE #E TEE #E
HK$ HK$
BT BT
At 1 January Rn—H—H 2.196 2,530,000 2.206 2,960,000
Forfeited during the year FAEME 1.894 (450,000) 2.262  (430,000)
At 31 December Rt+=—A=+—H 2.262 2,080,000 2.196 2,530,000
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A M ERERMEE
QL s - 2=
35 SHARE OPTION SCHEME (CONTINUED) 35 Bk ERTEl (A8)
The exercise price and exercise periods of the share options REER - RETEEREZITEERITE
outstanding as at the balance sheet date are as follows: BN -
Exercise price?
Exercise period! HK$ per share Number of options
1TEHA" 1THE(E? IBRERE
BRAET 2016 2015
—E-RE CZE-HEF
8-8-2007 to 25-5-2016 ~—ZEELFN\ANB=E
—E-R"FRA-1+HH 1.6 - 250,000
15-9-2011 to 14-9-2020 —ZE——FNA+HBZE
—ETFAA+ITA 2.262 1,046,000 1,146,000
15-9-2012 t0 14-9-2020 —ZT—= ihﬂ +HAZ
—ETFAATEHA 2.262 1,034,000 1,134,000
2,080,000 2,530,000
I The vesting period of the share options is from the date of grant I EBRECZEBHDERLBHEEETEHR
until the commencement of the exercise period. 18
2 The exercise price of the share options is subject to adjustment 2 E§H§$EZT?1;¥{“§&AIﬁi\ﬁ’iﬁﬂ*'ﬁéﬁ =¥
in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar changes in the NEEA Z AL B (e A% -

Company’s share capital.

At 31 December 2016, the Company had 2,080,000 (2015: R-ZE—RNF+-_A=1+—8 AQAE
2,530,000) share options outstanding under the Share A% #E 5+ 2 T~ 52,080,0001) (Z & — R 4F :
Option Scheme. The exercise in full of these share options 2,530, OOOT’\) RETHEZBERE - BIER
would, under the present capital structure of the Company, BRICERNGEHE  BEHTEZSEER
result in the issue of 2,080,000 (2015: 2,530,000) additional ﬁé H@% B #172,080,0001 (ZE —HF :
ordinary shares of the Company and additional share capital 2,530,0001% ) 2N 5] g8 AN E 8 AR AT 2 A RE A1
of HK$208,000 (2015: HK$253,000) and share premium of % Z5208,000/ 7T (=T — H % : 253,000/8
approximately HK$4,497,000 (2015: HK$5,304,000) (before TL) &5 % B 494,497,000 T (ZE—H
issue expenses). F :5304,000870) (RHOKRETHAY) -

At the date of approval of these financial statements, the R ELETBHRERERD  XRAIER
Company had 2,080,000 (2015: 2,530,000) share options 5t &) T 52,080,000 (Z & — A F:
outstanding under the Share Option Scheme, which 2,530,0001%) KIEITE Z B - L5 K
represented approximately 0.44% (2015: 0.53%) of the NERZ BB BTG 20.44% (ZF—H
Company’s shares in issue as at that date. &1 0.53%)
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36 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans

The Group makes contributions in a newly acquired
subsidiary, Luminous Town Electric Co., Limited. The
plans are administered by trustees, the majority of
which are independent, with their assets held separately
from those of the Group. The trustees are required by
the Trust Deed to act in the best interest of the plan
participants and are responsible for setting investment
policies of the plans.

The plans are funded by contributions from the
Group in accordance with an independent actuary’s
recommendation based on annual actuarial valuations.
The latest independent actuarial valuations of the
plans were at 31 December 2016 and were prepared by
Greatfine Wealth Management Consulting Inc.

The plans expose the Group to actuarial risks, such as
interest rate risk, investment risk and longevity risk.
Information about the plan is disclosed below:

(i) The amounts recognised in the consolidated balance
sheet are as follows:

AR A BT R T

36 18 B iR IREF
(@) REBARIKEET S

A E 1 — R AR KB A IR E T

BRI BRARHEE - HHEAETEIBFEE A
B KB HEEBEYL HEERZ

512 AEDFIRA - REEERE
HEABUGAH B2 RARENSZ
FRTE AABEHTHSHE LR
ARE -

ZEFTERARERIEBLISEED 2 1
BEERRFEREMLERNTKES - ZF
AR ROMBYREMREZRHA
T-REt-A=1+—8 BEREE
EEBERRDERABRER

ZEHBSARMEEELAR - WA
AR REARRESER - 5 EE
WAREEMT

(i)

/7

RFREERERAER 2B

-

2016
=
HK$’000
THET

Present value of wholly or partly funded
obligations
Fair value of plan assets

(1,469)
2,348

879

A portion of the above liability is expected to be
settled after more than one year. However, it is
not practicable to segregate this amount from
the amounts payable in the next twelve months,
as future contributions will also relate to future
services rendered and future changes in actuarial
assumptions and market conditions. The Group
expects to pay HK$8,000 in contributions to defined
benefit retirement plans in 2017.

Mo LB EEFERE —FRE
B o AR BRI EFKIRE KR
KArER Mt 2 lRFG AR IBE R R
MZBRES  #NAR+ @A
A I R B S SRIR 3 R R A
AT REEBHABRA_FT—LF
FUTE 18 MR K & 5t 8 L 508,0008
T o
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36 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 36 B BRINER (58)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (a) RERARKEEFTE (F)
(Continued)
(i) Plan assets consist of the following: (i) ATEIEEBEUATRIE
2016
—E—KEF
HK$’000
FExT
Central Trust Fund held in a Taiwanese bank R—REaERITEEZ
PR{ETES 2,348
2,348
(i) Movements in the present value of the defined (i) AR EEREZE

benefit obligation

2016
—E—REF
HK$’000
FET
At 1 January R—H—H -
Acquisition of a subsidiary UG B8 — FE B BB A &) 2,344
Remeasurements: EEp
— Actuarial losses arising from changes in — R EESI B BEEE
financial assumptions 23
— Experience adjustment — RERHE (971)
(948)
Current service cost & ARG A AR 28
Interest cost FBAAR a1
_Exchange realignment | A 4.
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—H 1,469
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36 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 36 B BRINER (58)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (a) RERARKEEFTE (F)
(Continued)
(iv) Movements in plan assets (iv) sHEIEEC &
2016
—E—KEF
HK$’000
FHET
At 1 January m—H—H =
Acquisition of a subsidiary W g — R B A A 2,314
Group’s contributions paid to the plans SEHZFHE 22 HK 8
Remeasurements - experience adjustment EETE — S£BRAE (19)
Interest income FEWA 40
Return on plan assets, excluding interest income  stEIEE 2B - TEFEHBUA 5
At 31 December R+=—HA=+—H 2,348
(v) Amounts recognised in the consolidated income ) REZelmR kiFae 2 E W a R
statement and consolidated statement of NERZ SR T

comprehensive income are as follows:

2016

—E—REF

HK$’000

TH T

Current service cost & R ARAS A AN 28

Net interest on net defined benefit asset ATEBNEEZFHE 1

Total amounts recognised in profit or loss R8P HER BT 29
Actuarial gain FEE (929)

Total amounts recognised in other REMEERETPHER 2 25

_...Comprehensive income . (929)
Total defined benefit costs AEBAKAERE (900)
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36 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS 36 R BIRIKEF (58)
(CONTINUED)
(a) Defined benefit retirement plans (a) RERARKEEFTE (F)
(Continued)
(v) (Continued) ) (&)

The current service cost and the net interest on
net defined benefit liability are recognised in the
following line items in the consolidated income

B BRI AR R R R R B 2
BRI BRGE A W KA TEE
i

statement:
2016
—E—REF
HK$’000
FET
Cost of sales $HE AR -
Selling and distribution costs HERDIEER =
Administrative expenses THEA 29
29
(vi) Significant actuarial assumptions (expressed as (vi) ERIEE R (LAMEFHES
weighted averages) and sensitivity analysis are as ™) RERRESTIT
follows:
2016
—E—REF
HK$’000
FET
Discount rate B IH & 0.90%
Future salary increases RIRTEEAN 1.00%
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36 EMPLOYEE RETIREMENT BENEFITS
(CONTINUED)

(a) Defined benefit retirement plans

(Continued)
(vi) (Continued)

The below analysis shows how the defined benefit
obligation would have increased (decreased) as a
result of 0.5% change in the significant actuarial
assumptions:

AR A BT R T

6 R BRIKEHN (B)

(@) RAEBABRKEETE (&)

(vi) (%&)

AT 2 #7517~ R T 48 7 & a0 {a]
A B A f8 & R 5% 0.5% 2 & h i 1
o CRid) -

Increase in Decrease in

0.5% 0.5%

#N0.5% W 40.5%

2016 2016

—EBE-RFE ZEB-RF

HK$’000 HK$’000

F#ET F#ET

Discount rate AL & (14) 16
Future salary increases RIRTEIE N 15 (14)

The above sensitivity analysis is based on the
assumption that changes in actuarial assumptions
are not correlated and therefore it does not take
into account the correlations between the actuarial
assumptions.

(b)Defined contribution retirement plan

The Group also operates a Mandatory Provident Fund
Scheme (“the MPF scheme”) under the Hong Kong
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance for
employees employed under the jurisdiction of the Hong
Kong Employment Ordinance and not previously covered
by the defined benefit retirement plan. The MPF scheme
is a defined contribution retirement plan administered
by independent trustees. Under the MPF scheme, the
employer and its employees are each required to make
contributions to the plan at 5% of the employees’
relevant income, subject to a cap of monthly relevant
income of HK$30,000. Contributions to the plan vest
immediately.

A EBREDSTIERBERR
ZEBEE TR 2 REKR > MILK
AARIBERRZEZBERRE -

(b) EFEMFRAKEETE

REETBRBEESRHERESFE
&bl AR EE B EEEAIFMERA 2
#I%Mﬁ ERFAERARESETE 2R
& ok Bl M AR 2 RIKEF T E
Uﬁﬁ ETEl]) - BT EI B
AEAETEZ TREEREKRSFE -
BIERESHE  BEXRERESE
Y 7B% R B AR A Z5%EITHEK -
LR AT A MEEKA30,0008 T °
HazatEl 2 BRI RS -
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IR E RS ERR M
37 OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 37 REHLN L HE
As lessee ERFEMHE A

The Group leases certain of its office properties, factory
premises, and warehouses under operating lease
arrangements. Leases for office properties, factory premises,

and warehouses are negotiated for terms ranging from one FREF o
to twenty years.
At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum RZE—RFE+-_A=+—8"

lease payments under non-cancellable operating leases

falling due as follows:

ZARRKEHESEREMT

AEBRELEHEOLHEEETHAE
ME - IBYERER - WREME T
BYELERENME AR —Z= -+

REEIR

ﬁ%?T?ﬁiﬁé%&%?ﬂ #P0 T5I BRRE B B S A

2016 2015

—E—REF —ZE—FEF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TET FET

Within one year —F R 16,047 12,974

In the second to fifth years, inclusive F_EZERF (PREEERTE) 2,815 -

18,862 12,974

As lessor fEAHBA

At 31 December 2016, the Group had total future minimum RZEBE—RF+-_A=+—8 ' A£ER

lease receipts under non-cancellable operating leases falling

due as follows:

RN AT RUEE A S A A T 51 HA ) 2 BA U ER
ZARRKEESEENT -

2016 2015

—E-XRFE ZZE-EF

HK$’000 HK$’000

TFHET FHET

Within one year —F R 1,899 3,927
In the second to fifth years, inclusive FE-EZERT (BREEEMT) = 1,894
1,899 5,821

170



Annual Report 12016 Fi3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

38 COMMITMENTS

In addition to the operating lease commitments detailed
in Note 37 above, the Group had the following capital
commitments at the balance sheet date:

AR A BT R T

38 HIE

BR £ SCHYRE37FTRF A 2 AR & TH KO ARSI
AEEREREBBUTEAREIE :

2016 2015
—E—XRHF —E—RF
HK$’000 HK$’000
T T TH T

Contracted, but not provided for: B ] #4918 R -
— Plant and machinery — BB ks 9,433 18,473
— Buildings —EF 653 697
— Land i 1,140 1,217
11,226 20,387

39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

As at 31 December 2016, Man Yue Holdings Inc. which is
incorporated in Bahamas had a 44.09% equity interest in
the Company as the single largest shareholder. The ultimate
controlling party of the Company is Ms. Kee Chor Lin, a
director of the Company, with her principal place of business
at 16/F., Yiko Industrial Building, 10 Ka Yip Street, Chai Wan,
Hong Kong.

(a) In addition to the transactions detailed in Note 11, the
Group had the following material transactions with its
joint ventures and the associate:

VEBEBALTR S

RZE—RFE+ZA=+T—8 RERBS
SF A% 32 #IMan Yue Holdings Inc.JA 88 —
R R &5 R A R R F144.09%0% 745 4
o ARABIZHBIERAT AR RGES
Bt HEXELEMI AR BLE
EEHRER TEANEICE -

) RIS 2R H - REEBEE
BELERBERNRIZERAR S
T

2016 2015
—E—XREF —E-HF
Note HK$’000 HK$’000
k=2 FHBT THxT
Joint ventures: SEE

— Purchases of raw materials —BERME (i) 37,115 38,641
— Rental expenses —HeFEX (i) 13,559 14,912
— Interest income received — B F BUA (i) 3,556 4,546

An associate: —EBE R A
— Sales of raw materials — BERME (i) 529 8,926
— Sales of finished goods — HERKm (i) 1,384 6,410
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39 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
(CONTINUED)

172

(c)

(d)

Notes:

(i)  The above purchases and sales of raw materials and finished
goods were determined on the basis agreed by both parties
and were conducted in the normal course of business.

(ii) The rental was charged at rates with mark-to-market yield.

(iii) The interest was charged at a rate of 4.90% (2015: 6.15%) per
annum.

Remuneration for key management personnel is set
out in Notes 12 and 13 of the consolidated financial
statements.

The loans to a joint venture, amounts due from and due
to joint ventures, and amount due from an associate are
set out in Notes 23 and 24 of the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

None of the above related party transactions falls under
the definition of connected transaction or continuing
connected transaction as defined in chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

VAEALRS (B)

()

(d)

HaE -

() E3MAE i R AR BB G PR AT
© 5 e RN - B IE R £T5i812
RS -

(i EEHREBHEZLEAE -

(i) METDIETFEI90E(ZE—HF 615
B) 2 BKREHE o

FEEBABZHFINEN G S FR
KHFEE12 %13 °

LT HEeEELECLER  EBRKE
NEEDE 2 FRIE AN EW — L
RNAZFEHRAEE 276 B
RMsFE23 824 -

LRBEEALRZHMEBR LHRA
FUAERFEZABRZAFEMER
% o



Annual Report 12016 Fi3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
fRE B RR AT

40FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  401z4ERIEl oz &/ T A

2016
—EB-RE

Assets at

fair value

through

Loans and  the profit Available-

receivables and loss for-sale Total

LA fE

BNk ARz
FEWFRIE ZEE AHHE st

HK$’000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TET TEx TER

Assets as per halance sheet BEGEBRFITEE
Available-for-sale investments AEHERE - - 14,462 14,462
Loans to a joint venture BT —HAZLEZER 100,077 - - 100,077
Due from joint ventures fEd & & %2 FOE 26,782 = = 26,782
Net defined benefit retirement assets SR E@AMR K14 E 879 - - 879
Trade and other receivables JE W B 5 BR 3  HoAth FE LR

excluding prepayments FOE (TEEEMNZE) 527,965 = = 527,965
Financial assets at fair value AR R EFFABR

through profit or loss LERMEE = 45 = 45
Cash and cash equivalents Be kR EEY 283,116 = = 283,116
Time deposits over three months =ARAREZEBER 7,775 = - 7,775

946,594 45 14,462 961,101
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ARa RIS ERR M

A40FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  40#zMERE|Ho v e/m T A (&)
(CONTINUED)
Other
Liabilities financial
at fair value liabilities at
through the amortised
profit and loss cost Total
DARESTA REBHEEASR
khizkz8E 2HitteMAE #st
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
BT THET BT
Liabilities as per balance sheet EERBERMTER
Bank loans RITER - 809,748 809,748
Derivative financial instruments TEeRIA 7,994 - 7,994
Due to joint ventures EE&tEsHIEA = 19,751 19,751
Trade and other payables excluding BN ESER KX EMENFIE
non-financial liabilities (TREkEHERE) - 276,848 276,848
Dividends payable FETR B = 43 43
7,994 1,106,390 1,114,384
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A40FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY  40#zMERE|Ho v e/m T A (&)
(CONTINUED)
2015
—E-RfF
Assets at
fair value
through
Loans and  the profit Available-
receivables and loss for-sale Total
LR RE
EXKk FABHE
FEWRIE ZEE UHEE wct
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
THT FHT THT FBT
Assets as per balance sheet EESERATEE
Available-for-sale investments A ERE - - 12,701 12,701
Loans to a joint venture KT-HAELEZER 96,989 - - 96,989
Due from joint ventures EUEE ¥ A 34,438 - - 34,438
Due from an associate R — M & A Rl 2 5B 3,651 - - 3,651
Trade and other receivables JE W 5 R 5K K EL b FE LU RRIE
excluding prepayments (FEEEMNFIE) 385,895 - - 385,895
Financial assets at fair value NAREABREZ
through profit or loss CREE - 51 - 51
Time deposits over three months =18 B F 2 EHifF= 11,936 - - 11,936
Cash and cash equivalents RBekIReEEDY 347,797 - - 347,797
880,706 51 12,701 893,458

175



Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited‘ ERRRERARAT

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AR A BRI A

40FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY

41

176

(CONTINUED)

Il

4058 BRI c T H (&)

Other
Liabilities financial
at fair value liabilities at
through the amortised
profit and loss cost Total
UARESTA REHRART R
hEkzEE 2HitemaE #et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET TET TET
Liabilities as per balance sheet EEEBBRARAR
Bank loans RITER - 813,575 813,575
Derivative financial instruments TEemIT A 15,764 - 15,764
Due to joint ventures BEEEZHIEB - 19,780 19,780
Trade and other payables excluding 8 2R R E A ER
non-financial liabilities FE (TBEEEREARE) - 255,516 255,516
Dividends payable JERT AR B - 43 43
15,764 1,088,914 1,104,678

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group has certain financial instruments, including bank
loans and cash and short term deposits, of which main
purpose is to fund the Group’s operations. The Group has
various other financial assets and liabilities such as trade
receivables and trade and bills payables, which arise directly
from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments
are foreign currency risk, interest rate risk, liquidity risk
and credit risk. The Board reviews and agrees policies for
managing each of these risks and they are summarised
below. The Group’s accounting policies in relation to
derivatives are set out in Note 3 to the consolidated financial
statements.

41 5B B3R B R REUR

AEEBEETERIA (BERITERNU
MRS MEMER)  TERENNR/AE
BZEBRHES AKBEZEEMS
MEENBE (WREKBSRRLENE
PERRFER) DEEREBTEL

KEAEEERIAZEBARAINEE
2 FIEER - ADELEBRRERE
% EERRIRBTEREBARZHK
% - W T » ARE A BT ET A
BEHBE RN A M REN A3 -
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)Foreign currency risk

The Group is exposed to currency risk primarily through
sales and purchases which give rise to receivables,
payables and cash balances that are denominated
in a foreign currency, i.e. a currency other than the
functional currency of the operations to which the
transactions relate. The currencies giving rise to this risk
are primarily USD, Renminbi and Japanese Yen.

For the Group’s companies with HKD as functional
currency, it is not expected that any significant
movements in the USD/HKD exchange rate as the HKD is
pegged to the USD.

The Group’s operations outside Hong Kong do not
undertake significant transactions in a currency other
than their respective functional currencies. Funds are
retained by the operations outside Hong Kong for use
within the respective operations.

AR A BT R T

41 Rk EIE B R RIKNE

(a) 715 LB

AREBAS G REREERE NI
B AAEARSZERREENRER
AN E¥) SHEZHE RIRIE
EAzBWHRR  BANERANRREHE
o BEXZRBRZEETERET
AREREHE -

AEERATDEEERET - MR
BT - W E B EET
& HREFEARD -

AEBREBRINZEBLAAELE
BNREEEUINZEBETEAR
5 RBEBRINIEBEEESIFR
BERBLZA -
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AR A BRI A

41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(a)Foreign currency risk (Continued)

41 AR EIE B E RECR

(@) SN ELBR (48)

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity at the
balance sheet date to a reasonably possible change
on translation of Japanese Yen denominated cash and
bank balance and trade and bills payables, Renminbi
denominated cash and bank balance, trade receivables
and trade and bills payables and USD denominated
cash and bank balance, trade and other receivables and
trade and other payables, with all other variables held
constant, of the Group’s loss before tax. In this respect,
it is assumed that the pegged rate between the HKD and

TRINITREER - EFEEMER
FRELBZERT - ANEEER A E
BHmEHEERE RRITER
ENEZEAEEER AREER
T MIRTTHE S - BIE 2 IRFA N E
NEZERERE - BRETHER
& MIRTTHE - BIE S MEAMARR
ARENE S REMERRAGELIRA
BEPIHRM - RUME - AEH
BRAETEEXTZHEERHIEX

the USD would be materially unaffected by any changes BILHEMEEK 7 EEEH 2 ERF
in the movement in value of the HKD against other 2.
currencies.
Increase/ (Increase)/
(decrease) decrease
in Japanese in loss
Yen rate before tax
BEERX RKRUAEER
EF/ (3g1n) /
(TB#) L
% HK$’000
Btk F#ET
2016 —E—-RE
If HKD had weakened against i B 7T % B [ElfE R T E
Japanese Yen 5 (196)
If HKD had strengthened against BT d HElER
Japanese Yen (5) 196
2015 —E-REF
If HKD had weakened against i 7T 5%, B [BlfE & T p&
Japanese Yen 5 (645)
If HKD had strengthened against BT B EER A
Japanese Yen (5) 645
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41 F R R E IR B AR R BUR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (um>
(a)Foreign currency risk (Continued) () FhEE @By (48 )
Increase/ Decrease/
(decrease) (increase)
in in loss
RMB rate before tax
ARKER REANEE
EF/ B/
(~F#) (3 hn)
% HK$’000
Btk FExT
2016 —E-XRF
If HKD had weakened against RMB B 7T AR B FE R RF 5 (1,828)
If HKD had strengthened against RMB BT AREER EH (5) 1,828
2015 —E-h1F
If HKD had weakened against RMB 8787 B AR B[ R R 5 1,385
If HKD had strengthened against RMB BT ARKEER A (5) (1,385)
Decrease/
Increase/ (increase)
(decrease) in loss
in USD rate before tax
EnEEXE REAEBE
EFA/CTEE) B2 /(Ehn)
% HK$’000
BoL FET
2016 —~E
If RMB had weakened against USD i AR W ETTIE R TRE 5 21,084
If RMB had strengthened against USD i ARME K ETER A (5) (21,084)
2015 —E-HF
If RMB had weakened against USD i AR 3 3 T = T & 5 19,987
If RMB had strengthened against USD MAREEFETLEER FH (5) (19,987)
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)Interest rate risk

180

The Group’s exposure to the risk of changes in market
interest rates relates primarily to their bank loan
obligations with floating interest rates. To manage any
exposure arising from the changes in market interest
rates, the Group enters into interest rate swap, in which
the Group agrees to exchange, at specified intervals,
the difference between fixed and variable rate interest
amounts calculated by reference to an agreed-upon
notional principal amount. This interest rate swap is not
qualified as hedging for accounting purposes.

The following table sets out the carrying amounts of the
Group’s bank borrowings as at the end of the reporting
period that are exposed to interest rate risk:

41 AR EIE B E RECR

(%8
(b) 2= . a2

AEBEFEY TSN REFHERE
ZRANERIEAEZRITERE
T - REEMBGNXEHHMBERL
R AEBEFVAMREHEH - &
b REEBBERETREXBES
EHMELBBACTBIEMBIES
HYRERBE2ER REFBAMNM
5 - MERERHESOITEERIEE I o

TREJIAEER K E AR AR E
A R E R 2 RITEEZREE

2016 2015

—E—AE —ZEBE-EE

HK$’000 HK$’000

FHET THExT

HKD BT 677,166 680,795
uso E 126,800 132,780
Other currencies Hin§% 5,782 -
809,748 813,575
The following table demonstrates the sensitivities to a TRHEPEMEEMESHEIFTITE 2

reasonably possible change in the interest rates, with all
other variable held constant, of the Group’s loss before
tax (with all other variables held constant).

BRAT  AKREBRTABEEYNER
FHERZEEEPNHRE -



Annual Report 12016 Fi3R

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(b)Interest rate risk (Continued)

AR A BT R T

41 %ﬁ%@kﬁﬁ%ﬁ EREINEE

ne=<

il

(b) M =@z (%)

2016 2015

—E-RF “E-FfF
Increase/  (Increase)/ Increase/  (Increase)/
(decrease) decrease (decrease) decrease
in basis in loss in basis in loss
points hefore tax points before tax
BB AR B BB AIEE
E g/ (Bm)/ B/ (381n)/
(OR2) D (R2) WD
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
HKD BT 100 (6,772) 100 (6,808)
usb Y 100 (1,268) 100 (1,328)
HKD BT (100) 6,772 (100) 6,808
uso ETT (100) 1,268 (100) 1,328

(c) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk of non-availability of funds to
meet all contractual financial commitments as they fall
due. The Group’s objective is to maintain a prudent
financial policy, to monitor liquidity ratios against risk
limits and to maintain contingency plan for funding to
ensure that the Group maintains sufficient cash to meet
its liquidity requirements.

(o) RBE=Ek

mBETRRIERENGESIARN
FrBRH 2 8 M BEERR - A&
BERREREBEIMIBEHE - &
ZRBRRBERADEDLE IR
BEZETE  BEAEEAGR
WREANENERDESTE -
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AR A BRI A

41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities
as at the balance sheet date, based on the contractual

undiscounted payments, was as follows:

41 B SR B

I

(&

IBI=4%

il

(o) RBEEER (&)

D

\
J
Ji

n
RetE 2

B B2 REER

FEH AEBERESQARRAN
TRAEIMBERNT

2016
—E-KEF

Within 1 year
or on demand Over 1 year Total

—FRW®
BRER B —F et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FH&ET FHET THExT
Due to joint ventures EfN&ERE A 19,751 - 19,751
Trade and bills payables BB SERRER 183,419 - 183,419

Other payables and accrued HM R FRIE R

liabilities FEEtEaE 86,204 - 86,204
Derivative financial instruments 744 g T A 3,875 4,258 8,133
Bank loans RITER 579,084 264,857 843,941
Dividends payable FERHIR B 43 - 43
872,376 269,115 1,141,491
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk (Continued)

AR A BT R T

41 AR EIE B E RECR

(c) RBVEZER ()

Credit risk arises from the possibility that the
counterparty to transaction is unwilling or unable to
fulfill its obligation thereby incurring financial loss to the
Group. The Group manages the credit risk by setting up
a team responsible for the determination of credit limits,
credit approvals and other monitoring procedures to
ensure that follow-up action is taken to recover overdue
debts. The Group has entered into credit insurance
contracts with the Hong Kong Export Credit Insurance
Corporation and other financial institutions to mitigate
the credit risk arising from the receivable balances.

In addition, it is the Group’s policy to review regularly
the recoverable amount of trade receivables to ensure
that adequate impairment provisions are made against
the irrecoverable amounts. There are no significant
concentrations of credit risk within the Group as the
customer bases of the Group’s trade receivables are
widely dispersed in different sectors and industries.

2015
—E-EHEF

Within 1 year
or on demand Over 1 year Total

—FRA®
RER BB —F et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FET F#ET F#ET
Due to joint ventures FEREZPE T FIA 19,780 - 19,780
Trade and bills payables BB ZERFRER 191,786 - 191,786

Other payables and accrued H A S FRIE &
liabilities JEEtBE 63,730 - 63,730
Derivative financial instruments TTHEEmITE 5,040 10,724 15,764
Bank loans RITER 523,129 317,899 841,028
Dividends payable JERTAR B 43 - 43
803,508 328,623 1,132,131
(d)Credit risk (d) EE =R

WX S E TR AR T EEETTEE
MmEHAEE AT BIBKRE - E3]
HEERR AKREEBRL—(AHE
FEEEEEERSE FHEEAK
HMERRERF - N ERRRIURET
PUKREBBMEES  EEEERR -
AEBERFBLOEHRRRMEAD
TREBFILEERREA - UEUE
KERKFREHRZEERR -

BESh - REE 2 R 2T HEH R
BEHBRRZAINE S5 - ARERR T
A E g R R SR ERE - BN
AEEZREESEREFPEREZ
DR EERENTE  WAEEKR
KREERR -
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41 A A e 3R B AR MBUR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (%8

(d)Credit risk (Continued) (d)EERPB: (&)

184

Further quantitative data in respect of the Group’s
exposure to credit risk arising from trade receivables
are disclosed in Note 26 to the consolidated financial

are to safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, so that it can continue to provide returns
for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. The
Group prices its products and services commensurately
with the level of risk and secures access to finance at a
reasonable cost.

The Group actively and regularly reviews and manages
its capital structure and strives to maintain a balance
between higher shareholder returns that might be
possible with higher levels of borrowings and the
advantages and security afforded by a sound capital
position, and makes adjustments to the capital structure
in the light of changes in economic conditions.

The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
a net debt to capital ratio. For this purpose, the Group
defines net debt as interest-bearing debt (which includes
bank loans), less cash and cash equivalents and time
deposit with banks.

During 2016, the Group’s strategy is to strengthen the
net debt to capital ratio which was unchanged from
2015, and it aims to achieve net debt to capital at the
range of 20% to 30%. In order to maintain or adjust
the ratio, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends
paid to shareholders, issue new shares, return capital to
shareholders, raise new debt financing or sell assets to
reduce debt.

AEBEREREZERRSI B2 EER
B E—FTEEHBERGS M
WRMIEE26

statements.
(e)Capital management (e) EXRNER
The Group’s primary objectives when managing capital AEFEEAERE 2 EEZBEZAREARA

SEBRNEEBRSEREREES
B BERRRAED WL S
mBF B AH KA o REBEREER
IKFREMMIRTSEB A RIREEK
RESRE -

A BT 5 B A AR TR
SR - DAEI A B 1
KT 2 BHERRERER T2 &
AR A 2 B R 2 B2 T
& AR B B A
et s -

AREBNEEFEURALRERE
REEAGEBZEE LM E - &
SEBEEFEAT/AEREE (B
RIRTER)  BRERBESFEDA
MERTTEMITFRK -

RZTE—RF - AEBZREEBILSE
BEFEEBRALE  ZEERE-T
—RFERHF BEFEEEFBEHRA
bt RIZFEH N F20%E30% © A 1R 1K
AEFALE  AEEXSAERRK
RRTZRESEE - BITHRG R
EBRATERE B5HEEHEND
EEENREARE -
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41 B E R E I B AR R BUR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (%8)
(e)Capital management (Continued) (e) EAREIE ()
The Group’s adjusted net debt to capital ratios at 31 RZE—REER_ZT—RF+-_A=
December 2016 and 2015 were as follows: +—8" $E B AREBEFEAR
NS 31N
2016 2015
—EB—RF —E—FEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FET
Bank loans IRITER 809,748 813,575
Less: Cash and cash equivalents B IRERIREEEY (283,116) (347,797)
Less: Time deposits over 3 months B BIHRBE=EA 2
to maturity when placed TEHATE K (7,775) (11,936)
Net debt EEF5E 518,857 453,842
Equity attributable to equity holders of RAERERE ARGER
the Company 1,242,410 1,391,978
Net debt to capital ratio EE R R AL = 41.8% 32.6%
Neither the company nor any of its subsidiaries are NANT R EEAME A TS 8T )
subject to externally imposed capital requirements. B ANy E AR E R H o
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41 Rk S IR B2 R BUR

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (m%i
(f) Fair value estimation (f) A AREMET
Fair value hierarchy NAEEH

TREJIREEEEERRE BE A
RGFEZANEEYEZRARE T
BEBMBHRESENRBRAAE
EDBRR=ASFREIARESFHR - A
REHEZERER - REORRHA
RTFIBERT G AELTEEKE
NEZIM

The following table presents the fair value of the
Group’s properties measured at the end of the reporting
period on a recurring basis, categorised into the three-
level fair value hierarchy as defined in HKFRS 13, Fair
value measurement. The level into which a fair value
measurement is classified is determined with reference
to the observability and significance of the inputs used
in the valuation technique as follows:

FBEE: EERAE—EBHA
BB EZARE  ARFTER
HHAREEXRERLERT S Z

Level 1 valuations: Fair value measured using only
Level 1 inputs i.e. unadjusted quoted prices in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities at the
measurement date.

E_EftE ERE_EHAK
BHEXARME DRFEE—
BrxaEsEe \BEAREER
BEATABRGARE - TA 8
28 A\ BRI BOXEUS T 5 A K
2B ABUE -

Level 2 valuations: Fair value measured using Level
2 inputs i.e. observable inputs which fail to meet
Level 1, and not using significant unobservable
inputs. Unobservable inputs are inputs for which
market data are not available.

FZBEE: ERERTAHE
BWABIBEZAAME -

Level 3 valuations: Fair value measured using
significant unobservable inputs.

NMERBZAARESAEERR L

The fair value of interest rate swaps is the estimated

186

amount that the Group would receive or pay to
terminate the swap at the end of the reporting period,
taking into account current interest rates and the
current creditworthiness of the swap counterparties. The
Group engaged external valuer to perform valuations for
the interest rate swaps which is categorised into level 2
of the fair value hierarchy.

HAT R s B A RS IR S S 2
Bt EPEEREMNERE
HRXGUTERZEE - ARERE
SNEREERMA DB RAABRERE =
JBZFIRis BT E -
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)
The fair values of the Group’s available-for-sales unlisted
equity securities are based on cash flows discounted
using a rate based on the market interest rate and the
risk premium specific to such investments.

The Group engaged external valuer to perform
valuations for the available-for-sale unlisted equity
securities. The external valuer report directly to the
management. A valuation report with analysis of changes
in fair value measurement is prepared by external
valuer at each interim and annual reporting date, and is
received and approved by the management.

The fair value of insurance contracts is determined using
the discounted cash flow model. The duration of the cash
flows and the specific timing of inflows and outflows are
determined by conditions in accordance with the terms
of the respective insurance contracts. The periodic cash
flow is estimated as gross redemption value and interest
income less surrender charges. The series of periodic net
income for the contracting periods is then discounted.
The fair value measurement is negatively correlated to
the discount rate.

The discount rates used in these discounted cash flow
models ranged from 3.0% to 10.8%. These financial
assets are categorised into level 3 of the fair value
hierarchy.

AR A BT R T

41 B RS R R B IR B AR SRR

(f) »Efksr ()

N ERR (E)

AEBZAIEHEFREMRAESZ
AAEDRBERZZFRENRTE
T35 ) 3R K e i (B #O RE 3R R B3R 3R

N
EZLE °

REBEZ BN EERM B A LS
EHBRAE S ETHE - SN ERD
BEEAEEERS - I AAEFE
HE) T 2 (HER S B MDA E R R
EPHANFEREENGRE HBE
ERERWNAE -

rRAERZAFEDIRAMRRER
BEAETE HeREZHRAUAMRA
Fnt 2 BEREIRESRERE R
ZIEFETE - EHBRESRENGER
HEREENMMNBRARERE -
EEEE —EBEHFRATI T IA
& - AP EFEHMRKTIRAH
@ o
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=
H
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o
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A M ERERMEE
41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT 41 ,@%ELE Ve B IR RIBUR
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED) (45
(f) Fair value estimation (Continued) (f) D EMET (8)
Fair value hierarchy (Continued) NAEEH ()
The following table presents the Group’s financial TREVAKSERFLHE B A HBEERZ
instruments carried at fair value, by valuation method, NREMERzEMmIT A -
at year end.
2016
—E—RF
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
B BB =B Mt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FExT FExT FHET FHET
Assets BE
Available-for-sale investments At HERE - - 14,462 14,462
Financial assets at fair value NARETAEBRZ
through profit or loss TEEE 45 - - 45
Total assets BERE 45 - 14,462 14,507
Liabilities =1
Derivative financial instruments: $74 & T E :
— Interest rate swap — FEEHEH = 7,994 = 7,994
Total liabilities BERE - 7,994 - 7,994
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41 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (CONTINUED)

(f) Fair value estimation (Continued)

Fair value hierarchy (Continued)

AR A BT R T

1 BT B SR A R

\/

(f) A AEME (8)
NAEREL (E)

2015
—E—1F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
E—F E_E F=B Tt

HK$'000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$’000
TR FERT TR FET

Assets BE
Available-for-sale investments  AJ &R E - - 12,701 12,701
Financial assets at fair value ARAREFFAEBRZ

through profit or loss SREE 51 - - 51
Total assets BEBE 51 - 12,701 12,752
Liabilities =L
Derivative financial instruments: T4 &R T A :

— Interest rate swap — FEEFEHELD - 15,764 - 15,764
Total liabilities BfEEE - 15,764 - 15,764

During both years, there were no significant transfers of
financial instruments among level 1, level 2 and level 3.

RREFE F—B F_EIFE=
Bee@mTAWESKER -
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42 RESERVES 42 f# 1
Reserve movement of the Group REBREELE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

ARARE BEARE
Available-
for-sale
Asset investment  Exchange PRC
Share Share Contributed revaluation revaluation ~fluctuation reserve Other Retained
premium option surplus* reserve reserve reserve funds* reserve profits Total
HE
BEER REEfR  EXRD Gl

BivaE  BRE AARH e e B BRS  HtEE  REEY &5t
HK$000  HKS000  HKS000  HK'00D  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK§'000  HK$'000
tén TRz  TEx TEr TEx fEx  TEx  TEx TR TER

Balance at 1 January 2016 RoE-nE-A-HzER 165,862 2,525 2,800 76,537 1,625 232,183 55,930 (162) 807,054 1,344,354
Profit for the year AEREN c c c ; o 0 . < (14,905 (14,905)
Other comprehensive income: Efp2mbs:
Asset revaluation surplus, net of tax TRHEREEERRS . . . (1,386) . . . . . (1,386)
Remeasurement of net defined B e RERNEE
benefit assets c c o o ° ° ° 2 m m

Change in fair value of available-for-sale  THHERANLEZED

investments - g g g 254 . . . . 254
Currency translation differences ENES
= Group -55E . . . . - (50) . . - ()
= Joint ventures -RERE c c c . . (8311) . . . (8311)
~ An associate - —ABELT . . . . . (381) . . . (381)

Total comprehensive income for the year B2 -F-AE+-A=1-H

ended 31 December 2016 R 2ENREE = - - (1,386) B4 (133,829) - - (14,134)  (149,005)
Employee share option scheme: [ESBRETE:
— Share option forfeited - BHERERE - (554) - - - - - - 554 -
Share repurchased BERR (404) = = = > ° ° ° ° (404)
Transferred to retained profits ERERBET - - - - - - 489 - (489) -
Balance at 31 December 2016 RZF-~E+ZA
“t-HzE8 165,458 1,91 2,800 75,151 1,879 98,354 56,419 (162) 792,985 1,194,855
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42

Reserve movement of the Group

Rt (8)
REEREZE (&)

(Continued)
Attributable to equity holders of the Company
ADFRE 5E AR
Available-
for-sale
Asset investment  Exchange PRC
Share Share Contributed revaluation revaluation ~ fluctuation reserve Other  Retained
premium option surplus* reserve reserve reserve funds* reserve profits Total
AftLE
BEEf, REEH EXKE e
RiEE  BRE SAR 1 ff B BES  HbEE REEA @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRn TEx TR  TEn  TEx  TEr  TEn  TER  TEn  TEn
Balance at 1 January 2015 WoE-RF-F-B7&% 168,158 2,932 2,800 72,855 1,049 361,344 55,479 (162) 851,475 1,515,930
Loss for the year KEERE (45095 (45,099)
Other comprehensive income: Eh2Eig:
Asset revaluation surplus, net of tax TREEREEERES 9,509 9,59
Change in fair value of avallable-for-sale AT HERERLEZED
investments 576 576
Currency translation differences ERZR
= Group -K£8 (116,590) (116,590)
— Joint ventures -RERE (7.794) (7794)
— An associate -—REHERA (4,777) (477)
Total comprehensive income for the year  BZ-F-R%+2R
ended 31 December 2015 “t-AEEEZ
2ENEES 9,599 5 (12961) (45095 (164,08])
Employee share option scheme: EEBRETE
— Share option forfeited -EnERRE (407) (407)
Share repurchased EElo) (2.29) (2296)
Transferred to retained profits BRERBET )| - (451)
Transferred from retained profits dueto ~ HEERME - BEREEE
transfer of property, plant and machinery AN EMEREREER
to investment properties (5,917) 5917
2014 final dividend “E-MERDRE 49 @m)
Balance at 31 December 2015 RZF-RF+2A
TRk 165,862 2,525 2,800 76,537 1,65 232,183 55,930 (162) 807,054 1344354
L The Group’s contributed surplus represents the difference between 1 AREBZHABBEMEERBAR ZROE
the nominal value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired over ERE L ARME AR RDMETARATRG
the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued in exchange HEZZEZE-
therefor.
#  Pursuant to the relevant laws and regulations in the PRC, a portion #  WREPEMEBEERER  AEERPERT
of the profits of the Group’s subsidiaries which are established in ZHBRARBHO BN EEBREPRFEES
the PRC has been transferred to the PRC reserve funds which are HEERAIRIRA -

restricted as to use.
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N SR (= e
A3BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MBARRPIEEEBERNMREREE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
> ==
Balance sheet BEEEBER
2016 2015
—EB-XF C—B-HEF
HK$’000 HK$’000
THBT FET
Non-current assets ERBEE
Investments in subsidiaries BB AR ZIE 63,901 63,901
Available-for-sale investments AR ERE 3,961 3,910
Total non-current assets EMBEELE 67,862 67,811
Current assets REBEE
Due from subsidiaries SN e 632,587 634,761
Prepayments AT IR 1,685 2,330
Cash and cash equivalents BE&EBEEEY 269 272
Total current assets MENEEMRE 634,541 637,363
Current liabilities REBEE
Due to subsidiaries FEATB B A B 2 5B 398,548 382,493
Other payables and accrued liabilities HEiERIAENESTEE 2,611 4,960
Dividends payable FET LB 43 43
_Total current liabilities nBeEsE 401,202 387,496
_Netcurrentassets MBEAESME 233,339 249,867
NET ASSETS EEFE 301,201 317,678
EQUITY s
Share capital A& 7R 47,555 47,624
Reserves e 253,646 270,054
TOTAL EQUITY EmEE 301,201 317,678
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43 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE

MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY

(CONTINUED)

N
w)
B
S

it

AIAES FEREES

Available-
for-sale
investment
Share Share Contributed revaluation Retained
premium option surplus reserve profits Total
AftHE
REEf
R RE BRE SRR 1 st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THx TR TR TR TR THER
At 1 January 2016 RZE—R~E-F—8 165,862 2,525 63,623 277 31,767 270,054
Loss for the year TEEER = - - - (15,501)  (15,501)
Change in fair value of MEHEREA B ED
available-for-sale investments o o = 51 = 51
Employee share option scheme: EEBRETE
— Share options forfeited -EHEERE - (554) = = = (554)
Re-purchase of shares Brkm (404) - - - = (404)
At 31 December 2016 RIZ-RE
+=A=+-8 165,458 1971 63,623 28 2,266 253,646
At 1January 2015 R-Z-hF—-HA—H 168,158 2,932 63,623 46 60,632 295,391
Loss for the year rEEER - - (18,073) (18,073)
Change in fair value of ENEREANEZEE
available-for-sale investments - 231 231
Employee share option scheme: EEBRETE
— Share options forfeited - BERERRE (407) - - (407)
Re-purchase of shares BERG (2,296) - - (2,296)
2014 final dividend “E-MERBRE - - (4,792) (4,792)
RZE-1F
At 31 December 2015 +ZA=t—H 165,862 2,525 63,623 277 37,767 270,054
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43

194

BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE
MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
(CONTINUED)

The Company’s contributed surplus represents the excess
of the fair value of the shares of the subsidiaries acquired
over the nominal value of the Company’s shares issued
in exchange therefore. Under the Companies Act 1981 of
Bermuda (as amended), a company may make distributions
to its members out of the contributed surplus in certain
circumstances.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of share
options granted which are yet to be exercised, as further
explained in the accounting policy for share-based payment
transactions in Note 3(w)(i) to the consolidated financial
statements. The amount will either be transferred to the
share premium account when the related options are
exercised, or be transferred to retained profits should the
related options expire or be forfeited.

A3 7K

N

NAAER R RS

( ==
==
mE

~—r

RRB ZBABERIEPTIEIENB A R 2 A
DR A ERE AR SR B A BIRD 31T
ZARBBRMEEZZR - REARE—
NN—FREE (BRIAR) » RAAIER
TERTEHARERD K TR °

BREFEERER OB R ARITERRE
ZRRE  E—TREBERRAMBHRERM
AE3WOAB BIARN BER RS
SRR - R RHNE BEEEET
FERERERMDGER AR IER
REEmAERE - MERBREBEN -
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44BUSINESS COMBINATION AL ETE St

On 21 June 2016, the Group entered into a sales and n= NENAZ+H—H AEEHR
purchases agreement with Yageo Corporation to acquire the EHXT%EFEA AIRFIBEBAR - WHEEN
15.74% equity interest of Luminous Town. As a result, the BTF15.74%0 4 - FAitt - ZEBRERE
Group’s equity interest in Luminous Town increased from F 2 BHER 43.16%1E £58.90% © B IERE
43.16% to 58.90% and obtained control of Luminous Town. WEF 2B - BN E T A S B
Luminous Town became a subsidiary of the Group. B RE] -

From the date of acquisition to 31 December 2016, Luminous RUWEBHBEZE —_ET—XRF+_A=+—
Town contributed revenue of HK$92,575,000 and profit B BHEFREASIAEREBRRAR
of HK$3,173,000 to the Group’s revenue and net profit Yim ) 7 BB A5 S U A 92,575,000 JT K it F
respectively for the Year. Had the acquisition taken place on 3,173,0008 7T ° WK EBER _ZE—F—A
1 January 2016, the consolidated revenue and loss for the —HELE - AIREEAFESHRELREK
year of the Group would have been HK$1,069,715,000 and A M E5181,069,715,0007%8 7T X 11,275,000
HK$11,275,000. In determining these amounts, management Lo BEZERE ' EEERI WK
assumed that fair value adjustments to the acquired assets RZE—RNF—A—H%4 - WEBHAM
and liabilities that arose on the date of acquisition would WHREENBBZ AR BERABRERFTIE o

have been the same if the acquisition had occurred on 1
January 2016.

The following table summarises the consideration paid TR ERBBEESZ N 2REURR
for the acquisition, the fair value of assets acquired and WHEEHFTE FMUBEERBEZAR
liabilities calculated at the acquisition date. ' -
As at
21 June 2016
R=F—7RF
AA=Z+—H
HK$’000
FET
Purchase consideration to be settled in cash NIReEEZEBERE 25,318
Forfeited share of an associate as purchase B2 U8 — fE B & R Rl &8
consideration (Note 24) ERBERE (Hit24) 69,411
Total Purchase consideration BEERE 94,729
Fair value of net assets acquired — shown as below BB FEEZARE — R TX (94,726)
Goodwill S 3
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44BUSINESS COMBINATION (CONTINUED)

196

The fair values of the identifiable assets acquired and

liabilities are taken as follows:

44 X5 A ()

PR BRI EERBE

AREWT

Fair value

on date of

acquisition

RUEEE B

ZRARE

HK$’000

FExT

Property, plant and equipment W - BE MG 20,627

Intangible assets mILEE 2,165
Prepayments on purchases of property, BEMXE  BEKR

plant and equipment B2 TR RIE 283

Deferred tax assets BERIBE E 2,599

Inventories 5E 27,780

Trade receivables FEWE R 82,272

Prepayments, deposits and other receivables FBFIE - e REMEWGRIE 20,443

Pledged deposits EIRTF N 13,988

Cash and cash equivalents RekReEEY 83,436

Trade and bills payables [ENEZEREANEE (37,640)

Other payables and accrued liabilities HEMENFIERETAE (32,745)

Tax payable FERIBEIR (30)

Bank loans — current portion RITER — mEEty (21,112)

Bank loans — non-current portion IRITER — IERBE D (1,203)

Provision for long service payments RHEIRG B E (39)

160,824

Non-controlling interests FEVERR #E = (66,098)

Net assets FEE 94,726

Purchase consideration BERE 25,318

Cash consideration paid ENRENKE 25,318

Cash acquired FrisiRe (83,436)

Net cash inflow ReMmAFE (58,118)
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45 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016

Up to the date of issue of these financial statements, the
HKICPA has issued a number of amendments and new
standards which are not yet effective for the year ended 31
December 2016 and which have not been adopted in these
financial statements. These include the following which may
be relevant to the Group.

Effective for accounting
periods beginning on or after
Amendments to HKAS 7, Statement of cash 1 January 2017

flows: Disclosure initiative

Amendments to HKAS 12, Income taxes:
Recognition of deferred tax assets for

1 January 2017

unrealised losses

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments 1 January 2018

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with 1 January 2018
customers

Amendments to HKFRS 2, Share- 1 January 2018

based payment: Classification and
measurement of share-based payment
transactions

HKFRS 16, Leases 1 January 2019

The Group is in the process of making an assessment of
what the impact of these amendments and new standards
is expected to be in the period of initial application. So far
the Group has identified some aspects of the new standards
which may have a significant impact on the consolidated
financial statements. Further details of the expected impacts
are discussed below. As the Group has not completed its
assessment, further impacts may be identified in due course
and will be taken into consideration when determining
whether to adopt any of these new requirements before
their effective date and which transitional approach to take,
where there are alternative approaches allowed under the
new standards.
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NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 9, Financial instruments

HKFRS 9 will replace the current standard on accounting
for financial instruments, HKAS 39, Financial instruments:
Recognition and measurement. HKFRS 9 introduces new
requirements for classification and measurement of financial
assets, calculation of impairment of financial assets and
hedge accounting. On the other hand, HKFRS 9 incorporates
without substantive changes the requirements of HKAS 39
for recognition and derecognition of financial instruments
and the classification of financial liabilities. The Group is
currently assessing the impacts of adopting HKFRS 9 on its
financial statements. Based on the preliminary assessment,
the Group has identified that impairment is likely to be
affected.

The new impairment model in HKFRS 9 replaces the
“incurred loss” model in HKAS 39 with an “expected credit
loss” model. Under the expected credit loss model, it will
no longer be necessary for a loss event to occur before an
impairment loss is recognised. Instead, an entity is required
to recognise and measure expected credit losses as either
12-month expected credit losses or lifetime expected
credit losses, depending on the asset and the facts and
circumstances. This new impairment model may result in
an earlier recognition of credit losses on the Group’s trade
receivables and other financial assets. However, a more
detailed analysis is required to determine the extent of the
impact.
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45 POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,

NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 15, Revenue from contracts with
customers

HKFRS 15 establishes a comprehensive framework for
recognising revenue from contracts with customers. HKFRS
15 will replace the existing revenue standards, HKAS 18,
Revenue, which covers revenue arising from sale of goods
and rendering of services, and HKAS 11, Construction
contracts, which specifies the accounting for revenue from
construction contracts. The group is currently assessing the
impacts of adopting HKFRS 15 on its financial statements.
Based on the preliminary assessment, the Group is not likely
to be affected.

The Group’s revenue recognition policies are disclosed
in note 3(v). Currently, revenue from the sale of goods
is generally recognised when the risks and rewards of
ownership have passed to the customers.

Under HKFRS 15, revenue is recognised when the customer
obtains control of the promised good or service in the
contract.

The Group recognises revenue for the sale of that good or
service at a single point in time, being when control has
passed. Transfer of risks and rewards of ownership is only
one of the indicators that will be considered in determining
when the transfer of control occurs.
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POSSIBLE IMPACT OF AMENDMENTS,
NEW STANDARDS AND INTERPRETATIONS
ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE FOR
THE YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2016
(CONTINUED)

HKFRS 16, Leases

In respect of lease accounting for lessees, the current
policy is set out in note 3(j). Under HKFRS 16, lessees will
no longer distinguish between finance lease and operating
leases. Instead, subject to practical expedients, lessees will
account for all leases in a similar way to current finance
lease accounting, i.e. at the commencement date of the
lease the lessee will recognise and measure lease liability
at the present value of the minimum future lease payments
and will recognise a corresponding “right-of-use” asset.
After initial recognition of this asset and liability, the lessee
will recognise interest expense accrued on the outstanding
balance of the lease liability, and the depreciation of
the right-of-use asset, instead of the current policy of
recognising rental expenses incurred under operating lease
on a systematic basis over the lease term. As disclosed in
note 37, at 31 December 2016, the Group’s future minimum
lease payments under non-cancellable operating lease
amounted to $18,862,000. Most of these amounts may
therefore need to be recognised as lease liabilities, with
corresponding right-of-use assets, once HKFRS 16 is adopted.
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Five Year Financial Summary
hFHBHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and non-
controlling interests of the Group for the last five financial years,
as extracted from the published audited financial statements is

set out below.

ATAAEEBEBERETRFE 2FREA R
BE BENMEZEBRERERME - DR
BENE 2 EEZMHRE

Results E
2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E-NE —E-REFE ZE-NFE —EB-=F —T——F
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TET FET TERT TET FHET
Revenue A 987,027 974,421 1,186,967 1,322,182 1,391,650
(Loss)/profit before tax BER (B8) 5T (4,460) (37,396) 55,996 80,269 98,933
Tax B (8,642) (8,442) (12,160) (19,438) (20,098)
(Loss)/profit for the year ARNEE (EE) /15 F| (13,102) (45,838) 43,836 60,831 78,835
Attributable to: TF &I
— Equity holders of the — — AR RIRLIERERA A
Company (14,905) (45,095) 43,257 61,021 79,875
— Non-controlling — R R R
interests 1,803 (743) 579 (190) (1,040)
(13,102) (45,838) 43,836 60,831 78,835

Assets, liabilities and non-controlling interests

AE BERFERRRES

2016 2015 2014 2013 2012
—E—NE —E-REFE —E--NME —B-=F —FT—_—&
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
TERT TET TERT TET FTHET

Total assets BEHBE 2,475,167 2,553,022 2,749,435 2,778,270 2,921,938
Total liabilities BERE (1,162,592)  (1,156,762) (1,180,290)  (1,239,528) (1,490,332)
Non-controlling interests JE1% AR A% 5 1 2 (70,165) (4,282) (5,291) (7,411) (4,905)

1,242,410 1,391,978 1,563,854 1,531,331 1,426,701
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EEEUILECR
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annual report for the financial year ended 31 December 2016

BE T R"FT_A=tHUMBFEZFERS

audit committee of the Company
ARBIZERELZES

board of directors of the Company

ARFZEES

board diversity policy of the Company
RARZEEG L TLBUR

bye-laws of the Company
PAN/NS /NS F L

Man Yue Technology Holdings Limited
BRNREBRAR AR

company secretary of the Company
PiN/NE] /NS LS

directors of the Company

RRBZES

earnings before interest expenses, taxation, depreciation and amortisation

REHMEXH ~ BHIR - FrEREHA AT

Aluminum Electrolytic Capacitors
InEREANR

Electric Double Layer Capacitors

R T L
EEEERNE

Electronic Industry Citizenship Coalition
BFTEARBE

Environmental, Social and Governance

R -HEgkER

Energy Storage System
RRERTRES
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i

Group
REHE

HK
BB

SO
B AR 2 AR A

Listing Rules

LA

Luminous Town
B E T

Model Code
RSl

Nomination Committee

REEZEE®

RoOHS

ROHS

Polymer Caps
|:| /'\%EE"?‘?‘ o9

PRC
FE

Remuneration Committee

HEZEE

R&D
e

Company and its subsidiaries

EAN/NCIDS @G = N

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the PRC
P EFBRERTTRER

International Organization for Standardization
B PR AR (b A 4

Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited
ERBMERIMERARES LHRA

Luminous Town Electric Co., Ltd.

BREFROHERA

Multi-layer Polymer Capacitors

BAREST

EAERE

Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
BT AESETESFRR HNITLETE]

nomination committee of the Company

ARAIZREBEZEE

European Union’s Directives on Restriction of the Use of Certain Hazardous
Substances in Electrical and Electronic Equipment

BE(ER  EFRETREEARLEENEES)

Conductive Polymer Aluminum Solid Capacitors
BESH FIREEREERSE

People’s Republic of China
REE AR HFIE

remuneration committee of the Company

ARBIZHHNEES

research and development
D ks
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SFO Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
B 5 K EE & BH MBI (BBEMIES7IE)

Share Option Scheme
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Stock Exchange
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share option scheme adopted by the Company on 26 May 2006 and revised on 27
May 2010

ARAIRNZEERNFRAAZT AEBERMAITAR T —ZFAA - Tt RIEF] 2k
KT8

the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited
EABERIMARRAT]

financial year ended 31 December 2016
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Hong Kong dollar
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United States dollar
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per cent
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